
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Licensing Policy Committee 
 
 

Date: Monday, 16 August 2021 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Council Chamber, Level 2, Town Hall Extension 

 
Everyone is welcome to attend this committee meeting. 
 

 
Access to the Council Chamber 

Public access to the Council Chamber is on Level 2 of the Town Hall Extension, 
using the lift or stairs in the lobby of the Mount Street entrance to the Extension. 

There is no public access from any other entrance of the Extension. 
 

Face Masks/Track and Trace 
Anyone attending the meeting is encouraged to wear a face mask for the duration of 
your time in the building and to provide contact details for track and trace purposes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Membership of the Licensing Policy Committee 

Councillors - Ludford (Chair), Grimshaw (Deputy Chair), Davies and Rawlins 

Public Document Pack



Licensing Policy Committee 

 

 

Agenda 
 
1.   Urgent Business 

To consider any items which the Chair has agreed to have 
submitted as urgent. 
 

 

2.   Appeals 
To consider any appeals from the public against refusal to allow 
inspection of background documents and/or the inclusion of items 
in the confidential part of the agenda. 
 

 

3.   Interests 
To allow Members an opportunity to [a] declare any personal, 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests they might have in 
any items which appear on this agenda; and [b] record any items 
from which they are precluded from voting as a result of Council 
Tax/Council rent arrears; [c] the existence and nature of party 
whipping arrangements in respect of any item to be considered at 
this meeting. Members with a personal interest should declare 
that at the start of the item under consideration.  If Members also 
have a prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest they must 
withdraw from the meeting during the consideration of the item. 
 

 

4.   Minutes 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held 
on 19 March 2021. 
 

5 - 6 

5.   Revised Gambling Policy 2022 - 2025 
The report of the Director of Planning, Building Control and 
Licensing is enclosed. 
 

7 - 70 



Licensing Policy Committee 

 

 

Information about the Committee  

The Licensing Policy Committee monitors and keeps under review the Council’s 
policy with respect to its licensing functions during the three-year period of the policy, 
and makes arrangements for consulting statutory consultees and other appropriate 
persons or bodies in relation to the Council’s policy. The Committee then makes 
recommendations to the Council as Licensing Authority, as to any proposed revisions 
to its licensing policy during the period of the policy, and in relation to any new policy 
for the subsequent three-year period. 
 
The Council is concerned to ensure that its meetings are as open as possible and 
confidential business is kept to the strict minimum. When confidential items are 
involved these are considered at the end of the meeting at which point members of 
the public are asked to leave. 
 
Smoking is not allowed in Council buildings.  
 
Joanne Roney OBE 
Chief Executive 
Level 3, Town Hall Extension, 
Albert Square, 
Manchester, M60 2LA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Further Information 

For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact the Committee 
Officer:  
 
 Ian Hinton Smith 
 Tel: 0161 234 3043 
 Email: ian.hinton-smith@manchester.gov.uk 
 
This agenda was issued on Thursday, 5 August 2021 by the Governance and 
Scrutiny Support Unit, Manchester City Council, Level 3, Town Hall Extension (Lloyd 
Street Elevation), Manchester M60 2LA



This page is intentionally left blank



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Licensing Policy Committee  19 March 2021 

Licensing Policy Committee 

Minutes of a meeting held on 19 March 2021 

Acting under Delegated Powers 

Present: Councillor Grimshaw (Chair).                
Councillors, Davies, Leech and Taylor 
 

Apologies: Councillors, Ludford and Akbar 
 
Other Attendees: Councillor Doswell 
 
LPC/21/01 Urgent Business 
 
Decision 
 
The Chair of the Committee approved the inclusion of an item of Urgent Business. 
Cllr Leech sought clarification on the use of glass/plastic drinking vessels in regard to 
Pavement Licences. The Principal Licensing Officer stated that any request for 
glassware use would be considered case by case and on the merits of each 
individual premises. 
   
LPC/21/02 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 
2020. 
 
LPC/21/03 Review of Statement of Licensing Policy (Licensing Act 2003) 
 
The Committee considered a report, for approval by the Committee, on the revision 
of the current Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 
The recommendation within the report requested that the policy is submitted to Full 
Council on 31 March 2021 with a recommendation that the policy be approved and 
adopted with effect from 1 April 2021. 
 
The Principal Licensing Officer presented the report, stating that the Licensing Policy 
was revised in January 2021 with a view to removing the Cumulative Impact Policy 
(CIP), currently in place for Fallowfield and Wilmslow Road, and Withington Special 
Policies, due to the requirement for a Cumulative Impact Assessment (CIA) to have 
been undertaken prior to publication of the Council’s Policy. The Principal Licensing 
Officer informed the Committee that ‘Cumulative Impact Assessments’ were 
introduced in the 2003 Act by the Policing and Crime Act 2017, with effect from 6 
April 2018, adding that, although the Council’s policies for Fallowfield and Withington 
pre-dated that legislation, they should have been reviewed and, if appropriate, 
replaced with CIAs, at the time of the overarching Policy review. The Principal 

Page 5

Item 4



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Licensing Policy Committee  19 March 2021 

Licensing Officer invited the Committee to consider and ask any questions relevant 
to this removal of policy. 
 
A Local Ward Councillor made comments outlining their concerns if the CIP were to 
be removed and gave mention to the number of local residents this removal would 
have a detrimental effect on and stated that they preferred to see the CIP remain 
and be strengthened further. 
 
During further discussions between the Committee and Legal Services it was agreed 
that the Committee could depart from Statutory Guidance with good reason, stating 
that the effects that lockdown has had on licensed premises and also on the 
Licensing Team’s ability to make accurate assessments would be an acceptable 
reason for departure. 
 
A Committee member asked that it be noted that matters the Committee had 
requested feedback on at the 16 November 2020 Committee meeting had not been 
addressed during this meeting. 
 
The Chair stated that they felt the CIP should remain within the Statement of 
Licensing Policy and put the matter to a vote. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee departed from the Statutory Guidance and voted against revising the 
Statement of Licensing Policy, effectively retaining the Cumulative Impact Policy for 
Fallowfield and Withington and accepted the changes for hyperlinks to external 
documents as set out in the policy. 
 

Page 6

Item 4



Manchester City Council 
Report for Resolution 

 
Report to:  Licensing Policy Committee – 16 August 2021 
  
Subject: Revised Gambling Policy 2022 – 2025 
 
Report of:  Director of Planning, Building Control & Licensing   
 

 
Summary 
 
To present a draft revised Gambling Policy for approval by the Committee to go out 
to public consultation 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the policy is approved for consultation 
 

 
Wards Affected: All 
 

Environmental Impact Assessment - the impact of the decisions proposed in this 
report on achieving the zero-carbon target for the city  

None 

 
 

Manchester Strategy Outcomes Summary of the contribution to the 
strategy 

A thriving and sustainable City: 
supporting a diverse and distinctive 
economy that creates jobs and 
opportunities 

Licensed premises provide a key role as an 
employer, in regeneration, and in attracting 
people to the city. The efficient processing of 
applications as well as effective decision 
making in respect of them, plays an essential 
role in enabling businesses to thrive and 
maximise contribution to the economy of the 
region and sub-region. 

A highly skilled city: world class and 
home grown talent sustaining the 
city’s economic success 

 

A progressive and equitable city: 
making a positive contribution by 
unlocking the potential of our 
communities 

 

An effective licensing regime works with 
Operators and other agencies to ensure, as far 
as it is able, matters of equality and local 
issues are addressed.   

Page 7

Item 5



A liveable and low carbon city: a 
destination of choice to live, visit 
and work. 

 

The Licensing process provides for local 
residents and other interested parties to make 
representations in relation to licensing 
applications to safeguard local place-based 
interests. The authority must aim to permit 
gambling insofar as doing so is reasonably 
consistent with the licensing objectives of 
preventing gambling from being a source of 
crime or disorder, being associated with crime 
or disorder or being used to support crime; 
ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair 
and open way; and protecting children and 
other vulnerable people from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling. 

A connected city: world class 
infrastructure and connectivity to 
drive growth 

 

Licensed premises play an important role in 
ensuring an economically successful City, and 
the licensing policy seeks to achieve desirable 
and high quality premises to help drive that 
growth.  

 
Full details are in the body of the report, along with any implications for: 
 

● Equal Opportunities Policy 
● Risk Management 
● Legal Considerations 

 

 
Financial Consequences – Revenue 
 
None 
 
Financial Consequences – Capital 
 
None 
 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name: Danielle Doyle  
Position: Licensing Unit Manager  
Telephone: 0161 234 4962  
E-mail: 
danielle.doyle@manchester.gov.uk  

Name: Fraser Swift 
Position: Principal Licensing Officer  
Telephone: 0161 234 1176 
Email: fraser.swift@manchester.gov.uk 
 

  

 
Background documents (available for public inspection): 
 
 

Page 8

Item 5

mailto:d.doyle@manchester.gov.uk
mailto:f.swift@manchester.gov.uk


1. Introduction 
 

1.1 The Gambling Act received royal assent in April 2005 and consolidates 
regulation of casinos, bingo, gaming machines, lotteries, betting and remote 
gambling in one Act. 
 

1.2 The Act established a non-departmental public body – the Gambling 
Commission – which has responsibility for advising both central and local 
government on issues relating to gambling. The Gambling Commission also 
issues Operating Licences to organisations and individuals, which are required 
to operate licensed premises and Personal Functional Licences, which are 
required by individuals who perform any function which enables them to 
influence the outcome of gambling, or relating to the receiving or paying of 
money in connection with gambling, such as a dealer or croupier. 
 

1.3 The Gambling Commission is required by section 25 of the Act to issue 
Guidance to licensing authorities on the discharge of their functions under the 
Act. This Guidance deals primarily with matters intended to assist licensing 
authorities in the development of their gambling policy and sets out the 
principles that must be applied by the licensing authority in exercising its 
functions under the Act. 
 

1.4 The City Council has responsibilities under the Act to issue premises licences, 
permits and temporary use notices in respect of premises where it is proposed 
that gambling should take place. Additionally, the City Council will continue to 
be responsible for the registration of Small Society Lotteries. 
 

1.5 Members will be aware that under the Act the Council, as Licensing Authority, 
is required to produce a policy every three years setting out how it intends to 
implement the Act. Our next revision is required to be in place with effect from 
January 2022. 

 
2. Updates to policy 

 
2.1 The revised policy is intended to provide a clear and consistent approach to 

what considerations will be taken into account when licensing gambling 
premises and the activities carried on at them. 

 
2.2 A copy of the amended policy is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
2.3 Key changes include: 

i. Reference to current strategies: Updated Our Manchester Strategy; 
Manchester’s Economic Recovery and Investment Plan; 

ii. New public health information (see 3.11) 

iii. Enforcement section includes reference to Primary Authority register 
(3.32) 

iv. Expectations on information to be included on plans accompanying 
applications (3.49) 

Page 9

Item 5



v. Enhanced considerations for applications (Section 5) including  

a. expectations of local area risk assessments (5.8) 

b. operation of the premises consistent with the licensing objectives, 
including more detail around vulnerability to gambling-related harm; 

c. staffing provision 

d. data gathering and sharing 

e. Staff training 

f. Gaming machines and layouts 

vi. Reference to entertainment bingo (6.23) 

2.4 We have collaborated on this revised policy in conjunction with public health 
leads working as part of the GM Gambling Harm Reduction programme 
(https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/health/gambling/) with 
a view to ensuring the gambling licensed premises in the city will operate in a 
way that will support the wider work around gambling harm reduction.  
 

3. Consultation Strategy 
 

3.1 The Gambling Act 2005 requires us to consult with various groups before we 
determine our policy.  

 The chief officer of police for Manchester 

 One or more persons who represent the interests of gambling 
businesses in Manchester 

 One or more persons who appear to represent the interest of persons 
who are likely to be affected by the implementation of the Gambling Act 
in Manchester 
 

3.2 We will also consult with: 

 The Responsible Authorities who are consulted on Gambling 
applications in Manchester (Greater Manchester Police, Planning, 
Environmental Health, Child Safeguarding Board, Greater Manchester 
Fire and Rescue Service, HM Revenue and Customs, Gambling 
Commission) 

 All Ward Councillors of Manchester City Council 

 All Strategic Area Managers  

 Gamcare 

 All gambling premises in Manchester 

 Gambling Trade Associations 

 Cityco 

 Public Health 

 GM Gambling Harm Reduction programme manager 
 

3.3 The proposed revised policy will also be made available on the Public 
Consultations page of the council’s website  

Page 10

Item 5



 
3.4 The attached draft policy has been prepared for public consultation. Subject to 

approval by the Licensing Policy Committee, an 8-week public consultation 
would start. The final policy taking account of consultation responses will then 
be presented to the Licensing Policy Committee and then require the approval 
of full Council on 1 December.  

 
4. Key Policies and Considerations 
 
4.1 The proposals concern the Council’s Statement of Policy under the Gambling 

Act 2005. 
 
5. Conclusion 
 
5.1 That the policy is approved for public consultation. 
 
 

Page 11

Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



!

! "!

GM Statement of Principles under 
the Gambling Act 2005 

Page 13

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! #!

Table of Contents 

1. Foreword ............................................................................................................................. 4 
2. Introduction ........................................................................................................................ 5 

Publication of this Policy ........................................................................................................................ 6 
Manchester ............................................................................................................................................ 7 

3. General principles ............................................................................................................. 14 

Other regulatory regimes ..................................................................................................................... 14 
Responsible Authorities........................................................................................................................ 14 
Public Health ........................................................................................................................................ 15 
Determining whether a person is an interested part in relation to a premises licence, or an application 
for or in respect of a premises licence .................................................................................................. 17 
Exchange of information between the licensing authority and the Gambling Commission (s29 and s30 
of GA2005), and the exchange of information between the licensing authority and other persons listed 
in Schedule 6 of the Act ........................................................................................................................ 18 
Functions of the licensing authority under Part 15 of the GA2005 with respect to the inspection of 
premises and the power under s346 of the Act to institute criminal proceedings in respect of the 
offences specified in that section ......................................................................................................... 19 
Commenting on a licence application ................................................................................................... 21 
Factors that will not be relevant ........................................................................................................... 21 
Split Premises ....................................................................................................................................... 22 
Premises “ready for gambling” ............................................................................................................. 22 
Applications and plans ......................................................................................................................... 23 
Tracks ................................................................................................................................................... 24 

4. Determining Premises Licences ......................................................................................... 25 

How the Licensing Authority decides whether to grant or refuse an application ................................. 25 
How the licensing committee decides what conditions to apply to premises licences ......................... 25 
Determining whether to review a licence ............................................................................................. 27 

5. Relevant factors when considering applications and reviews ........................................... 29 

Location of the premises ...................................................................................................................... 29 
Gambling-related harm ........................................................................................................................ 30 
Local risk assessments .......................................................................................................................... 31 
Local Area Profile.................................................................................................................................. 34 
How the premises will operate consistent with the licensing objectives .............................................. 35 
Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder 
or being used to support crime: ........................................................................................................... 35 
Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way ................................................................ 37 
Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling ........ 37 
Expectations of operators: Staffing provision ....................................................................................... 40 
Expectations of operators: Data gathering and sharing ........................................................................ 40 
Expectation of applicants: Staff Training and Knowledge ..................................................................... 41 
Expectation of applicants: Gaming machines / layouts ........................................................................ 42 

Page 14

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! $!

6. Premises-specific considerations ....................................................................................... 44 

Adult Gaming Centres........................................................................................................................... 44 
Casinos ................................................................................................................................................. 44 
‘No Casinos’ resolution ......................................................................................................................... 44 
Bingo premises ..................................................................................................................................... 45 
Electronic bingo gaming machines ....................................................................................................... 46 
Gaming machines at bingo premises .................................................................................................... 46 
'Entertainment’ Bingo .......................................................................................................................... 47 
Betting Premises ................................................................................................................................... 48 
(Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres ............................................................................................. 49 
Occasional use notices .......................................................................................................................... 49 

7. Permits and other permissions.......................................................................................... 50 

Alcohol Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits ........................................................................... 50 
Prize Gaming Machine Permits ............................................................................................................. 50 
Unlicensed FECs (uFEC) ......................................................................................................................... 51 
Small Society Lotteries ......................................................................................................................... 51 

8. Appendix 1 –Responsible Authorities ................................................................................ 53 

Licensing Authority ............................................................................................................................... 53 
Environmental Health........................................................................................................................... 53 
Greater Manchester Police ................................................................................................................... 53 
The fire and rescue authority ............................................................................................................... 53 
Safeguarding Board .............................................................................................................................. 54 
HM Revenue & Customs ....................................................................................................................... 54 
Planning................................................................................................................................................ 54 
Gambling Commission .......................................................................................................................... 54 
Applications must be submitted to: ..................................................................................................... 54 

9. Appendix 2 – Template for data collection ....................................................................... 55 
10. Appendix 3 - Glossary .................................................................................................... 56 
!

 

Page 15

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! %!

"& '()*+(),!

!
"&" !
-(!.*!/0.1234*,

Page 16

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! 5!

#& 678)(,0982(7!

#&" :3!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=>!+*!<)*!)*?02)*,!8(!/*)@()A!84*!@(11(+27;!@07982(73!07,*)!84*!
B<A.127;!:98C!!

"D E*!)*3/(732.1*!@()!129*7327;!/)*A23*3!+4*)*!;<A.127;!<982F282*3!<)*!8(!8<G*!/1<9*!
.=!233027;!/)*A23*3!129*79*3!!

#D 6330*!/)(F232(7<1!38<8*A*783!+4*)*!28!23!/)(/(3*,!84<8!;<A.127;!<982F282*3!+211!
8<G*!/1<9*!.08!<!/)*A23*3!23!7(8!=*8!)*<,=!@()!03*!

$D H*;01<8*!A*A.*)3I!910.3!<7,!A27*)3I!+*1@<)*!27382808*3!+4(!+234!8(!07,*)8<G*!
9*)8<27!;<A27;!<982F282*3!.=!233027;!910.!;<A27;!/*)A283!<7,J()!910.!A<9427*!
/*)A283!

%D 6330*!910.!A<9427*!/*)A283!8(!9(AA*)92<1!910.3!
5D 6330*!/*)A283!@()!07129*73*,!'<A21=!K78*)8<27A*78!L*78)*3!+4*)*!L<8*;()=!M!
A<9427*3!A<=!.*!03*,!

ND H*9*2F*!7(82@29<82(73!@)(A!/)*A23*3!129*73*,!@()!(7O3<1*3!(@!<19(4(1!@()!03*!(@!
8+(!()!@*+*)!L<8*;()=!L!()!M!;<A27;!A<9427*3!!

PD 6330*!129*73*,!/)*A23*3!;<A27;!A<9427*!/*)A283!@()!/)*A23*3!129*73*,!@()!(7O
3<1*3!(@!<19(4(1!@()!03*!(@!8+(!()!A()*!L<8*;()=!L!()!M!A<9427*3!

QD H*;238*)!3A<11!3(92*8=!1(88*)2*3!
RD 6330*!/)2S*!;<A27;!/*)A283!!
"TD H*9*2F*!<7,!*7,()3*!-*A/()<)=!U3*!V(829*3!@()!8*A/()<)=!03*!(@!/)*A23*3!@()!
;<A.127;!

""D H*9*2F*!W99<32(7<1!U3*!V(829*3!@()!.*8827;!<8!8)<9G3!

#&"& B<A.127;!23!,*@27*,!27!84*!:98!<3!*284*)!;<A27;>!.*8827;!()!8<G27;!/<)8!27!<!1(88*)=!
#&#& B<A27;I!A*<73!/1<=27;!<!;<A*!@()!84*!94<79*!8(!+27!<!/)2S*&!
#&$& XE*8827;I!A*<73!A<G27;!()!<99*/827;!<!.*8!(7C!

• 84*!(089(A*!(@!<!)<9*>!9(A/*8282(7!()!(84*)!*F*78!
• 84*!12G*124((,!(@!<7=8427;!(990))27;!()!7(8!(990))27;!
• +4*84*)!<7=8427;!23!8)0*!()!7(8&!!

#&%& :!XY(88*)=I!23!+4*)*!/<)8292/<783!<)*!27F(1F*,!27!<7!<))<7;*A*78!+4*)*!/)2S*3!<)*!
<11(9<8*,!+4(11=!.=!<!/)(9*33!(@!94<79*&!!

Page 17

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! N!

#&5& -4*!)*3/(732.2128=!@()!)*;01<827;!;<A.127;!23!34<)*,!.*8+**7!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!
<7,!1(9<1!<084()282*3&!-4*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!23!)*3/(732.1*!@()!233027;!(/*)<827;!
129*79*3!8(!();<723<82(73!<7,!27,2F2,0<13!+4(!/)(F2,*!@<921282*3!@()!;<A.127;!<7,!
/*)3(7<1!129*79*3!8(!/*)3(73!+()G27;!27!84*!;<A.127;!27,038)=&!-4*!L(AA2332(7!8<G*3!
84*!1*<,!)(1*!(7!*730)27;!84<8!;<A.127;!23!9(7,098*,!27!<!@<2)!<7,!(/*7!+<=!84)(0;4!84*!
<,A27238)<82(7!<7,!*7@()9*A*78!(@!(/*)<827;!<7,!/*)3(7<1!129*79*!)*?02)*A*783&!-4*!
L(AA2332(7!23!<13(!)*3/(732.1*!@()!)*A(8*!;<A.127;!<982F282*3!3094!<3!@<921282*3!
/)(F2,*,!F2<!84*!278*)7*8>!8*1*F232(7!()!)<,2(&!!

#&N& Z*!<)*!<13(!)*?02)*,!8(C!

• [)(F2,*!27@()A<82(7!8(!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!)*;<),27;!,*8<213!(@!129*79*3!
2330*,!

• \<278<27!<!)*;238*)!(@!84*!/*)A283!<7,!129*79*3!84<8!<)*!2330*,!07,*)!84*!
@07982(73!<.(F*&!

#&P& -4*!9(07921!4<3!<!)*3/(732.2128=!07,*)!84*!B<A.127;!:98!#TT5!8(!,*92,*!+4*84*)!8(!
;)<78!()!)*]*98!<//129<82(73!<7,!27!84*!9<3*!(@!/)*A23*3!129*79*!<//129<82(73!8(!,*92,*!
<7=!9(7,282(73!8(!<//1=!+4*)*!84*!,*9232(7!23!8<G*7!8(!;)<78&!:11!,*9232(73!A<,*!.=!84*!
129*7327;!<084()28=!27!)*1<82(7!8(!/)*A23*3!129*79*3!^<7,!3(A*!(84*)!<084()23<82(73!_!3**!
3/*92@29!3*982(73!@()!,*8<213D!<)*!.<3*,!(7!84*!:98>!)*1*F<78!;02,<79*>!L(,*3!(@![)<9829*>!
(0)!B<A.127;![(129=!<7,!84*!84)**!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3&!!-4*3*!(.]*982F*3!<)*C!

• [)*F*7827;!;<A.127;!@)(A!.*27;!<!3(0)9*!(@!9)2A*!()!,23(),*)>!.*27;!<33(92<8*,!
+284!9)2A*!()!,23(),*)!()!.*27;!03*,!8(!30//()8!9)2A*!

• K730)27;!84<8!;<A.127;!23!9(7,098*,!27!<!@<2)!<7,!(/*7!+<=!
• [)(8*9827;!9421,)*7!<7,!(84*)!F017*)<.1*!/*)3(73!@)(A!.*27;!4<)A*,!()!*`/1(28*,!
.=!;<A.127;!

#&Q& 67!84*!9<3*!(@!/)*A23*3!129*79*3!^<7,!3(A*!(84*)!<084()23<82(73!_!3**!3/*92@29!3*982(73!
@()!,*8<213D>!84*!129*7327;!9(AA288**!+211!/*)A28!;<A.127;!(71=!3(!@<)!<3!28!23!)*<3(7<.1=!
9(73238*78!+284!84*3*!84)**!(.]*982F*3&!

[0.129<82(7!(@!8423![(129=!
#&R& Y29*7327;!<084()282*3!4<F*!<!)*?02)*A*78!8(!,*F*1(/>!9(73018!(7>!<7,!/0.1234!<!

38<8*A*78!(@!129*7327;!/(129=!*F*)=!84)**!=*<)3!+284!)*;<),3!8(!84*!/)2792/1*3!84*=!
/)(/(3*!8(!<//1=!27!*`*)92327;!@07982(73!07,*)!84*!B<A.127;!:98!#TT5&!!

Page 18

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! P!

#&"T& -4*!/(129=!38<8*A*78!@()A3!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=I3!A<7,<8*!@()!A<7<;27;!1(9<1!
;<A.127;!/)(F232(7!<7,!3*83!(08!4(+!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!F2*+3!84*!1(9<1!)23G!
*7F2)(7A*78!<7,!84*)*@()*!283!*`/*98<82(73!27!)*1<82(7!8(!(/*)<8()3!+284!/)*A23*3!27!84*!
1(9<128=&!!

#&""& -4*!<084()28=!23!(7*!(@!84*!"T!\*8)(/(128<7!M238)2983!(@!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)&!67!B)*<8*)!
\<794*38*)!+*!4<F*!<!34<)*,!<2A!)*,0927;!;<A.127;!)*1<8*,!4<)A3>!(0)!<//)(<94!
@(903*3!(7!/)*F*7827;!;<A.127;!4<)A3!@)(A!(990))27;>!<3!+*11!<3!2A/)(F27;!4(+!+*!
30//()8!(0)!)*32,*783!+4(!<)*!<1)*<,=!*`/*)2*7927;!4<)A3>!*284*)!,2)*981=!()!<3!<!)*3018!
(@!3(A*(7*!*13*I3!;<A.127;&!-4*!)*7*+<1!(@!129*7327;!/(1292*3!/)*3*783!<7!(//()80728=!
@()!1(9<1!<084()282*3!8(!*A.*,!84*3*!/)2792/1*3&!Y29*7327;!1*<,3!<9)(33!B)*<8*)!
\<794*38*)!4<F*!<;)**,!8(!8<G*!<!9(AA(7!<//)(<94!8(!)*@)*3427;!;<A.127;!129*7327;!
/(1292*3&!

#&"#& -4*!@(11(+27;!/*(/1*!<7,!();<723<82(73!4<F*!.**7!9(73018*,!27!/)*/<)27;!84*!
38<8*A*78C!

• a8(!.*!9(A/1*8*,!+284!30AA<)=!(@!9(73018**3b!

#&"$& -4*!:084()28=!9(73018*,!0/(7!8423![(129=!.*@()*!@27<12327;!<8!<!@011!L(07921!A**827;!4*1,!
(7!84*!a*78*)!,<8*b&!

\<794*38*)!!
#&"%& \<794*38*)!23!84*!()2;27<1!A(,*)7!928=!<7,!84*!*9(7(A29!*7;27*!(@!84*!V()84!Z*38&!Z284!

<!9(79*78)<82(7!(@!/*(/1*!<7,!.0327*33!<982F28=!+284(08!/<)<11*1!27!84*!7()84*)7!K7;1<7,>!
\<794*38*)c3!42;4!*9(7(A29!/)(,0982F28=!23!*33*782<1!8(!84*!V()84!<7,!84*!L28=!H*;2(7&!
\<794*38*)!23!<8!84*!4*<)8!(@!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)!<7,!28!23!84*!V()84!Z*38c3!)*;2(7<1!
9*78)*!@()!@27<79*>!9(AA*)9*>!)*8<21>!90180)*!<7,!1*230)*>!<7,!23!4(A*!8(!<!A<]()!
278*)7<82(7<1!<2)/()8!<7,!(7*!(@!84*!1<);*38!380,*78!/(/01<82(73!27!K0)(/*&!!

#&"5& \<794*38*)!4<3!07,*);(7*!<!)*A<)G<.1*!8)<73@()A<82(7!3279*!84*!A2,!"RRT3&!d2;4!
?0<128=!7*+!.021,27;3!<7,!38)(7;!0).<7!,*32;7!4<F*!4*1/*,!9)*<8*!<!,23827982F*!<7,!
9(78*A/()<)=!L28=!L*78)*&!-4*!L28=!4<3!<13(!.**7!4(A*!8(!A<7=!3099*33@01!
)*;*7*)<82(7!/)(]*983!27910,27;!84*!)*,*F*1(/A*78!(@!d01A*>!+4294!<98*,!<3!<!A(,*1!@()!
\<794*38*)c3!<//)(<94!8(!)*;*7*)<82(7>!<7,!84*!9)*<82(7!(@!K<381<7,3&!!

#&"N& \<794*38*)!4<3!1*,!84*!)*F2F<1!(@!928=!9*78)*!12F27;&!-423!1*F*1!(@!27,2;*7(03!/(/01<82(7!
4<3!<,,*,!7(8!(71=!8(!84*!*9(7(A=!(@!84*!L28=>!.08!<13(!8(!283!F28<128=>!(@@*)27;!<72A<82(7!
<7,!<982F28=!<)(07,!84*!91(9G&!!

Page 19

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! Q!

#&"P& \<794*38*)!23!,=7<A29!<7,!9)*<82F*!.*9<03*!28!23!279)*,2.1=!,2F*)3*!+284!<!)294!A2`80)*!
(@!90180)*3>!()2;273>!1<7;0<;*3>!9038(A3!<7,!12@*38=1*3&![*(/1*!<)*!+*19(A*,!@)(A!<11!
(F*)!84*!+()1,!@()!84*!9(78)2.082(7!84*=!9<7!A<G*&!-4*!;<=!9(AA0728=!<7,!.1<9G!<7,!
A27()28=!*84729!;)(0/3!4<F*!4*1/*,!34</*!84*!L28=I3!3099*33!<7,!38=1*&!!

#&"Q& :3!84*!9*78)<1!40.!(@!84*!)*;2(7<1!8)<73/()8!7*8+()G>!\<794*38*)!23!*<321=!<99*332.1*!
<7,!/)(F2,*3!<!@2@84!(@!<11!](.3!27!84*!L28=!H*;2(7&!\<794*38*)I3!*9(7(A29!;)(+84!4<3!
.**7!,)2F*7!.=!84*!)</2,!*`/<732(7!(@!<!70A.*)!(@!3*98()3!27910,27;!9(AA*)92<1!<7,!
/)(@*332(7<1!3*)F29*3>!392*79*!<7,!)*3*<)94>!90180)*!<7,!A*,2<>!<,F<79*,!
A<70@<980)27;!<7,!6L-&!68!23!7(+!(7*!(@!84*!8(/!K0)(/*<7!9282*3!@()!.0327*33!1(9<82(73&!!

#&"R& \<794*38*)!23!<!9*78)*!(@!*`9*11*79*!@()!)*3*<)94!<7,!1*<)727;&!68!23!4(A*!8(!3*F*)<1!
273828082(73!(@!42;4*)!*,09<82(7!27910,27;!84*!U72F*)328=!(@!\<794*38*)>!84*!\<794*38*)!
\*8)(/(128<7!U72F*)328=!^\\UD>!84*!H(=<1!V()84*)7!L(11*;*!(@!\0329>!84*!L*78)<1!
\<794*38*)!U72F*)328=!d(3/28<13!<7,!84*!U72F*)328=!d(3/28<1!(@!e(084!\<794*38*)&!!

#&#T& \<794*38*)!4<3!(7*!(@!84*!1<);*38!380,*78!/(/01<82(73!27!K0)(/*>!+284!(F*)!RT>TTT!
380,*783!<8!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)I3!@2F*!072F*)3282*3>!<7,!(F*)!$QT>TTT!380,*783!<8!84*!##!
d2;4*)!K,09<82(7!673828082(73!^dK63D!+28427!<7!4(0)I3!,)2F*&!-4*)*!+*)*!P%>"N%!380,*783!
*7)(11*,!<8!(7*!(@!\<794*38*)I3!84)**!dK6e!27!#T"PJ"Q>!(@!+4294!%Q>$R$!4<,!<!8*)A!82A*!
<,,)*33!27!\<794*38*)!^dKe:D&!W@!84*!)*A<2727;!9&#5>TTT!380,*783>!<!32;72@29<78!
/)(/()82(7!12F*!<8!4(A*!+284!84*2)!@<A212*3!<9)(33!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)!<7,!.*=(7,&!!

#&#"& \<794*38*)!072F*)3282*3!4<F*!<!42;4!)*8*782(7!)<8*!(@!380,*783>!+284!(F*)!5Tf!(@!
380,*783!38<=27;!27!84*!928=!<@8*)!;)<,0<827;&!!

#&##& M*3/28*!84*!42;4!1*F*13!(@!380,*783>!\<794*38*)!<13(!4<3!<!42;4*)!/)(/()82(7!(@!
)*32,*783!+284!7(!@()A<1!?0<12@29<82(73!+4294!<983!<3!<!A<]()!.<))2*)!8(!<99*3327;!84*!
](.3!<F<21<.1*&!!

#&#$& \<794*38*)!4<3!<!)*1<82F*1=!42;4!)<8*!(@!+()G1*337*33>!,0*!8(!42;4!07*A/1(=A*78!
<A(7;38!84(3*!)*;238*)*,!<3!,23<.1*,!<7,!84*!/)(/()82(7!(@!84*!/(/01<82(7!,*/*7,*78!
0/(7!279(A*!30//()8&!\<7=!(@!84*!)*32,*783!91<2A27;!(08!(@!+()G!.*7*@283!<)*!1<9G27;!
84*!<//)(/)2<8*!3G2113!+4294!+(01,!4*1/!84*A!3*90)*!84*!;)(+27;!70A.*)!(@!](.!
(//()807282*3!27!84*!L28=&!-4*!3G2113!;</!.*8+**7!)*32,*783!<7,!<F<21<.1*!+()G!23!<!G*=!
94<11*7;*!@()!\<794*38*)&!!

#&#%& Z*!G**/!)*9(),3!(@!84*!,<8<!<7,!278*112;*79*!<.(08!279(A*!<7,!+*1@<)*!.*7*@283&!

Page 20

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! R!

#&#5& :3!(@!W98(.*)!#T#T>!84*)*!+*)*!$%>5"5!07*A/1(=*,!27!\<794*38*)&!-423!@2;0)*!23!A<,*!
0/!(@!)*32,*783!27!\<794*38*)!91<2A27;!g(.3**G*)3!:11(+<79*!^ge:D!<7,!U72F*)3<1!
L)*,28!^ULD!<7,!)*/)*3*7827;!Q&QNf!(@!)*32,*783!<;*,!"NON%&!

#&#N& Z42138!84*!*9(7(A=!4<3!.**7!)*38)0980)*,!<7,!7*+!](.3!<)*!.*27;!9)*<8*,>!84*!L28=!23!
38211!8<9G127;!84*!3(92<1>!/4=329<1!<7,!*7F2)(7A*78<1!1*;<9=!(@!=*<)3!(@!*9(7(A29!,*9127*&!
:99(),27;!8(!84*!#T"R!67,*`!(@!\0182/1*!M*/)2F<82(7!^6\MD>!\<794*38*)!)<7G3!N!(08!(@!
$#N!1(9<1!<084()282*3!27!K7;1<7,>!+4*)*!"!23!84*!A(38!,*/)2F*,&!

#&#P& -4*!4*<184!(@!\<794*38*)I3!)*32,*783!23!<13(!<A(7;38!84*!+()38!27!84*!9(078)=>!W7!$T!
g07*!#T#">!84*!67382808*!(@!d*<184!K?028=!/0.1234*,!84*!)*30183!(@!283!+()G!+284!B)*<8*)!
\<794*38*)&!-4*!+()G!+284!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)>!8(!27@()A!<7,!30//()8!<982(7!(7!4*<184!
27*?0<1282*3>!.*;<7!27!#T"R&!68!+<3!<1)*<,=!84*!9<3*!84<8!4*<184!27!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)>!
<1(7;!+284!84*!)*38!(@!84*!V()84!Z*38>!4<,!30@@*)*,!A()*!84<7!<)*<3!(@!K7;1<7,!27!84*!
e(084!,0)27;!84*!,*9<,*!(@!<038*)28=!<7,!)*;)*332F*!@07,27;!<11(9<82(73&!-4*7!9<A*!84*!
/<7,*A29>!<7,!A<,*!28!<11!+()3*C!*`/(327;!84*!07,*)1=27;!27*?0<1282*3!27!3(92*8=!<7,!
<A/12@=27;!84*A&!L(F2,O"R!A()8<128=!+<3!#5f!42;4*)!27!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)!84<7!27!
K7;1<7,!<3!<!+4(1*>!<7,!84*!3(92<1!;)<,2*78!27!A()8<128=!@)(A!9(F2,O"Rh<!91(3*!127G!
.*8+**7!,*/)2F<82(7!<7,!A()8<128=h+<3!38**/*)!27!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)&!-4*!*@@*98!(@!
84*!/<7,*A29!+<3!,)<A<829&!M0)27;!#T#T>!12@*!*`/*98<79=!@*11!.=!"&#!=*<)3!27!+(A*7!27!
84*!V()84!Z*38!<7,!"&N!=*<)3!27!A*7i!9(A/<)*,!8(!<!@<11!27!K7;1<7,!(@!T&R!<7,!"&$!
=*<)3&!

#&#Q& \<794*38*)!4<3!<942*F*,!*`9*/82(7<1!;)(+84!(F*)!84*!/<38!8+(!,*9<,*3>!+284!F*)=!
32;72@29<78!279)*<3*3!27!84*!928=I3!/(/01<82(7!<7,!3038<27*,!*9(7(A29!;)(+84>!4*1/*,!.=!
A<]()!27F*38A*78!<7,!38)(7;!/<)87*)342/3&!-4*!928=I3!<33*83>!27@)<38)0980)*>!277(F<82(7>!
/(/01<82(7!<7,!3G2113!4<F*!*7<.1*,!84*!928=!8(!.*!A()*!)*3212*78!8(!84*!1<38!)*9*332(7!84<7!
A<7=!(84*)!/<)83!(@!84*!Uj>!<7,!4<F*!/(+*)*,!;)(+84!(F*)!84*!/<38!,*9<,*&!!

• [(/01<82(7C!e8)(7;!1*F*1!(@!/(/01<82(7!;)(+84!<3!A()*!;)<,0<8*3!<7,!=(07;!<,0183!
<)*!<88)<98*,!.=!7*+!4(0327;!<7,!9<)**)!(//()807282*3!27!84*!928=>!279)*<327;!84*!
70A.*)!(@!)*32,*783!<;*,!#5_$R&!e(0)9*C!\<794*38*)!L28=!L(07921!'()*9<3827;!
\(,*1!e#T#T!^@()*9<38!,(*3!7(8!27910,*!2A/<98!(@!LWk6MO"RD!

• N#P>TTT!)*32,*783!*`/*98*,!.=!#T#5!

#&#R& M*F*1(/27;!<!A()*!2791032F*!*9(7(A=!<7,!3(92*8=!23!<!G*=!94<11*7;*!2,*782@2*,!27!84*!
928=I3!W0)!\<794*38*)!e8)<8*;=&!-423!A*<73!9(77*9827;!<11!84*!9282S*73!(@!\<794*38*)!8(!

Page 21

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! "T!

84*!(//()807282*3!(@!*9(7(A29!;)(+84!<7,!8<9G127;!84*!32;72@29<78!27*?0<1282*3!<A(7;!
\<794*38*)I3!,2F*)3*!9(AA07282*3&!!

#&$T& M*/)2F<82(7>!/(F*)8=!<7,!4*<184!(089(A*3!+*)*!32;72@29<78!94<11*7;*3!.*@()*!LWk6MO
"R>!<7,!84*!/<7,*A29!4<3!4*2;48*7*,!27*?0<1282*3!)2;48!<9)(33!84*!928=C!

• '<A21=!/(F*)8=C!%5>"5T!9421,)*7!12F27;!27!/(F*)8=>!<@8*)!4(0327;!9(383!8<G*7!278(!
9(732,*)<82(7!27!\<)94!#T"R&!:@@*9827;!<)(07,!%T&Nf!(@!84(3*!<;*,!07,*)!"N>!
8423!)<8*!23!32;72@29<781=!42;4*)!84<7!84*!Uj!<F*)<;*&!LWk6MO"R!0/,<8*C!M0)27;!
\<=!#T#T!<8!84*!4*2;48!(@!84*!/<7,*A29>!$>"PP!4(03*4(1,3!32;7*,!0/!8(!)*9*2F*!
@((,!)*3/(73*!30//()8&!e(0)9*C!H*3*<)94!.=!84*!L*78)*!@()!H*3*<)94!27!e(92<1!
[(129=!<8!Y(0;4.()(0;4!U72F*)328=!@()!84*!K7,!L421,![(F*)8=!L(<1282(7!

• H(0;4!31**/27;C!R"!/*(/1*!+*)*!9(078*,!<3!31**/27;!)(0;4!27!\<794*38*)!928=!
9*78)*!27!#T"R>!9(A/<)*,!8(!"#$!27!#T"Q&!d(+*F*)>!<3!<!)<8*!/*)!"T>TTT!
4(03*4(1,3!^%&#D!8423!23!A()*!84<7!8+29*!84*!7<82(7<1!<F*)<;*!^"&QD&!

• U7*A/1(=A*78!.*7*@283C!e2;72@29<78!279)*<3*!27!WVe!91<2A<78!9(078!.*8+**7!
\<)94!#T#T!<7,!:0;038!#T#Ti!07*A/1(=A*78!91<2A<78!)<8*!<1A(38!,(0.1*,>!@)(A!
%&Nf!8(!R&"f&!

#&$"& \<794*38*)!23!<8!<!9)2829<1!/(278>!,0*!8(!84*!9(A.27*,!94<11*7;*3!(@!84*!9(78270*,!
2A/<983!(@!LWk6MO"R>!84*!Uj!*`2827;!84*!KU>!<7,!84*!079*)8<2782*3!27!(0)!+*11O
*38<.1234*,!278*)7<82(7<1!)*1<82(7342/3!<7,!8)<,*&!:,</827;!<7,!A282;<827;!84*!2A/<98!(@!
912A<8*!94<7;*!23!<!A<]()!94<11*7;*!;2F*7!84*!928=I3!S*)(O9<).(7!<A.282(73>!.08!<13(!<7!
(//()80728=!8(!.021,!278(!(0)!)*9(F*)=!/1<73&!!

#&$#& W0)!K9(7(A29!B)(+84![1<7!3*83!(08!84*!2A/()8<79*!(@!27F*3827;!27!(0)!/*(/1*>!(0)!
/1<9*3>!<7,!(0)!/)(3/*)28=!8(!9(78270*!8(!38)*7;84*7!(0)!)(1*!27!,)2F27;!*9(7(A29!;)(+84!
84)(0;4(08!84*!V()84!<7,!.*=(7,!84*!.(07,<)2*3!(@!84*!928=&!-4*!7*`8!/4<3*!(@!/0.129O
3*)F29*!)*@()A!<7,!4*<184!<7,!3(92<1O9<)*!278*;)<82(7!+211!)*?02)*!)*,(0.127;!*@@()83!8(!
9(77*98!<11!(0)!)*32,*783!8(!84*!(//()807282*3!(@!*9(7(A29!;)(+84!<7,!)*,09*!,*A<7,!

W0)!\<794*38*)!e8)<8*;=!

#&$$& The Our Manchester Strategy was @()A<11=!<,(/8*,!.=!84*!L(07921!27!g<70<)=!#T"N!
<7,!+<3!1<0794*,!27!\<)94!#T"N>!3*8827;!(08!(0)!1(7;O8*)A!F232(7!@()!\<794*38*)I3!
@080)*!<7,!/)(F2,27;!<!@)<A*+()G!@()!<982(7!.=!03!<7,!(0)!/<)87*)3!<9)(33!84*!928=&!!

#&$%& -4*!(F*)<)9427;!F232(7!23!@()!\<794*38*)!8(!.*!27!84*!8(/!@12;48!(@!+()1,O91<33!9282*3!.=!
#T#5C!

Page 22

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! ""!

• Z284!<!9(A/*8282F*>!,=7<A29!<7,!3038<27<.1*!*9(7(A=!84<8!,)<+3!(7!(0)!
,23827982F*!38)*7;843!27!392*79*>!<,F<79*,!A<70@<980)27;>!90180)*>!9)*<82F*!<7,!
,2;28<1!.0327*33>!<7,!84<8!90182F<8*3!<7,!*79(0)<;*3!7*+!2,*<3!

• Z284!42;41=!3G211*,>!*78*)/)2327;!<7,!27,038)2(03!/*(/1*!
• :!928=!9(77*98*,!278*)7<82(7<11=!<7,!+28427!84*!Uj!
• :!928=!84<8!/1<=3!283!@011!/<)8!27!12A2827;!84*!2A/<983!(@!912A<8*!94<7;*!
• :!928=!+4*)*!)*32,*783!@)(A!<11!.<9G;)(07,3!@**1!3<@*>!9<7!<3/2)*>!3099**,!<7,!
12F*!+*11!

• :!91*<7>!<88)<982F*>!90180)<11=!)294>!(08+<),O1((G27;!<7,!+*19(A27;!928=!

#&$5& d<1@+<=!84)(0;4!84*!()2;27<1!e8)<8*;=>!+*!)*3*8!/)2()282*3!@()!84*!=*<)3!8(!#T#5>!
<9G7(+1*,;27;!_!.08!1((G27;!.*=(7,!_!90))*78!94<11*7;*3>!8(!A<G*!30)*!84*!928=!
<942*F*3!283!<A.282(7&!!

#&$N& -4*!)*3*8!(@!(0)!;(<13!23!.<3*,!(7!(F*)!$QTT!9(73018<82(7!)*3/(73*3!,0)27;!30AA*)!
#T#T&!!

#&$P& W0)!9(AA07282*3!+<78!<!)*7*+*,!@(903!(7!=(07;!/*(/1*>!(0)!*9(7(A=>!4*<184>!
4(0327;>!(0)!*7F2)(7A*78!<7,!27@)<38)0980)*&!!

#&$Q& -4)(0;4!*<94!/)2()28=!)073!\<794*38*)I3!9(AA28A*78!8(!.021,!<!A()*!*?0<1>!2791032F*!
<7,!3038<27<.1*!928=!@()!*F*)=(7*!+4(!12F*3>!+()G3>!F(1078**)3>!380,2*3!<7,!/1<=3!4*)*&!
W71=!.=!+()G27;!8(;*84*)!9<7!+*!<942*F*!(0)!F232(7!.=!A<G27;!<7!2A/<98!(7!(0)!
/)2()282*3!(@!A<G27;!\<794*38*)C!!

• :!84)2F27;!<7,!3038<27<.1*!928=!!!
• :!42;41=!3G211*,!928=!!!
• :!/)(;)*332F*!<7,!*?028<.1*!928=!!!
• :!12F*<.1*!<7,!S*)(O9<).(7!928=!!!
• :!9(77*98*,!928=!!!!

#&$R& Z*I11!.*!8)<9G27;!/)(;)*33!(@!84*!38)<8*;=!=*<)O(7O=*<)!27!84*!e8<8*!(@!84*!L28=!)*/()8&!!
#&%T& 6A/1*A*7827;!84*!38)<8*;=!23!(F*)3**7!.=!84*!W0)!\<794*38*)!'()0A!A<,*!0/!(@!

/<)87*)3!@)(A!<9)(33!84*!928=&!!!
#&%"& W0)!,*8<21*,!/1<73!@()!30//()827;!84*!,*12F*)=!(@!(0)!42;4O1*F*1!@)<A*+()G!@()!<982(7!

<)*C!!!

• M*F*1(/27;!<!\()*!6791032F*!K9(7(A=!_!W0)!\<794*38*)!67,038)2<1!e8)<8*;=!_!
*38<.1234*3!/)2()282*3!@()!84*!928=!8(!9)*<8*!<!A()*!2791032F*!*9(7(A=!84<8!<11!

Page 23

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! "#!

)*32,*783!<)*!/<)8!(@!<7,!9<7!.*7*@28!@)(A&!L)092<1!8(!28!<)*C!84*!\<794*38*)!
K9(7(A29!H*9(F*)=!<7,!67F*38A*78![1<7i!<7,!84*!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)!B((,!
KA/1(=A*78!L4<)8*)&!!!

• Z()G!<7,!eG2113!e8)<8*;=!_!<2A3!8(!,*F*1(/!<!+()G!<7,!3G2113!3=38*A!84<8!A**83!
84*!7**,3!(@!<11!.0327*33*3>!<7,!30//()8!)*32,*783!@)(A!<11!.<9G;)(07,3!8(!;*8!
3G2113!<7,!<88)2.08*3!*A/1(=*)3!7**,&!!!

• L421,)*7!<7,!l(07;![*(/1*I3![1<7_W0)!\<794*38*)>!W0)!L421,)*7!#T#T_#T#%!_!
4(+!84*!928=!+211!.021,!<!3<@*>!4<//=>!4*<184=!<7,!3099*33@01!@080)*!@()!9421,)*7!
<7,!=(07;!/*(/1*&!!

• \<794*38*)C!:!B)*<8![1<9*!8(!B)(+!W1,*)!_!\<794*38*)c3!F232(7!8(!9(78270*!
.*27;!<7!:;*!')2*7,1=!928=&!!!

• '<A21=![(F*)8=!e8)<8*;=!#T"P_#T##!_!<2A3!@()!*F*)=(7*!27!84*!928=!8(!4<F*!84*!
3<A*!(//()807282*3!<7,!12@*!94<79*3>!7(!A<88*)!+4*)*!84*=!<)*!.()7!()!12F*&!!!

• W0)!d*<1842*)!\<794*38*)!Y(9<128=![1<7!_!,*8<213!84*!38)<8*;29!<//)(<94!8(!
2A/)(F27;!4*<184!(089(A*3!@()!)*32,*783!+42138!9)*<827;!3038<27<.1*!4*<184!<7,!
9<)*!3*)F29*3&!!!

• \<794*38*)![(/01<82(7!d*<184![1<7!#T"Q_#T#P!_!1(7;O8*)A!/1<7!8(!8<9G1*!
*78)*794*,!4*<184!27*?0<1282*3&!!!

• Y(9<1![1<7!_!84*!3/<82<1!@)<A*+()G!@()!84*!928=!3*8827;!(08!,*F*1(/A*78!;02,<79*i!
,0*!8(!.*!/0.1234*,!27!#T#$&!!!

• H*32,*782<1!B)(+84!e8)<8*;=!#T"5_#T#5!_!;02,*3!\<794*38*)I3!<//)(<94!8(!
4(0327;!,*F*1(/A*78!<7,!30//1=&!!

• \<794*38*)!L12A<8*!L4<7;*!')<A*+()G!#T#T_#T#5!_!4(+!+*!/1<7!8(!8<9G1*!
912A<8*!94<7;*!<7,!)*,09*!84*!928=I3!9<).(7!@((8/)278&!!!

• B)**7!<7,!E10*!67@)<38)0980)*!e8)<8*;=!_!2A/)(F27;!;)**7!3/<9*3!<7,!
+<8*)+<=3&!!!

• M2;28<1!e8)<8*;=!_!4(+!+*!+211!<942*F*!(0)!,2;28<1!<A.282(73&!!!
• L28=!L*78)*!-)<73/()8!e8)<8*;=!_!G*=!8)<73/()8!/(1292*3!<7,!(//()807282*3!@()!84*!
@080)*&!!!

• L1*<7!:2)![1<7!_!/)(/(3<13!8(!,*9)*<3*!<2)!/(11082(7!27!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)&!!!
• B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)!e8)<8*;=!_!84*!928=!)*;2(7I3!<A.282(7!8(!A<G*!B)*<8*)!
\<794*38*)!84*!.*38!/1<9*!8(!;)(+!0/>!;*8!(7!<7,!;)(+!(1,&!

Page 24

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! "$!

[(+*)27;!H*9(F*)=!

#&%#& Powering Recovery: Manchester’s Economic Recovery and Investment Plan has 
.**7!/)(,09*,!.=!\<794*38*)!L28=!L(07921>!27!/<)87*)342/!+284!84*!/)2F<8*!3*98()>!<7,!
9(A/1*A*783!84*!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)!L(A.27*,!:084()28=!<7,!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)!
Y(9<1!K78*)/)23*![<)87*)342/!928=!)*;2(7!/)(/(3<13&!!

#&%$& 68!3*83!(08!+4<8!\<794*38*)!23!,(27;!8(!3038<27!84*!*9(7(A=!<7,!283!/*(/1*>!<7,!+4<8!
\<794*38*)!/)(/(3*3!8(!,(!27!84*!@080)*!27!)*3/(73*!8(!84*!LWk6MO"R!/<7,*A29>!<3!
+*11!<3!(84*)!94<11*7;*3!<7,!(//()807282*3&!-423!23!<!/(3282F*!38<8*A*78!<.(08!
\<794*38*)I3!@080)*>!+421*!)*9(;72327;!84*!94<11*7;*3!<7,!2A/<98!(@!LWk6MO"R!(7!
\<794*38*)I3!/*(/1*!<7,!/0.129J9(AA0728=!3*)F29*3&!

#&%%& -4*!(//()807282*3!2,*782@2*,!27!84*!W0)!\<794*38*)!67,038)2<1!e8)<8*;=!<)*!A()*!)*1*F<78!
84<7!*F*)i!2@!<7=8427;>!84*!7**,!8(!)*O*38<.1234!*9(7(A29!;)(+84!<7,!27F*38A*78!
A(A*780A!4<3!)*27@()9*,!84*!84)**O/211<)!<//)(<94!.<3*,!(7C!!
[*(/1*C!K?02/!)*32,*783!<7,!+()G*)3!+284!84*!?0<12@29<82(73!<7,!3(@8*)!3G2113!84<8!+211!
*7<.1*!84*A!8(!<99*33!A()*!(//()807282*3&!!
[1<9*C!K730)*!3038<27<.1*!;)(+84!23!<942*F*,!27!G*=!<33*83>!27910,27;!84*!928=!9*78)*!
<7,!<)(07,!84*!:2)/()8&!L)*<8*!84*!9(7,282(73!84<8!+211!,*12F*)!<!A()*!2791032F*>!S*)(O
9<).(7!*9(7(A=!.=!27F*3827;!27!8)<73/()8!27@)<38)0980)*>!,2;28<1!27@)<38)0980)*!<7,!84*!
*7F2)(7A*78&!!
[)(3/*)28=C!L)*<8*!42;4*)O?0<128=!](.!(//()807282*3>!27910,27;!.*88*)!/<=>!2A/)(F*,!
+()G27;!9(7,282(73!<7,!@1*`2.2128=>!/<)82901<)1=!+28427!84*!@(07,<82(7<1!*9(7(A=&!

#&%5& K38<.123427;!3038<27<.1*!;)(+84!27!/*(/1*!<7,!3G2113!23!<!42;4!/)2()28=>!<3!23!1(7;O8*)A!
3038<27<.2128=!27!(0)!/1<9*!<7,!<33*83>!+4294!23!9)2829<1!8(!84*!@080)*!,*F*1(/A*78!(@!84*!
928=&!!

#&%N& -4*!\<794*38*)!L12A<8*!L4<7;*!')<A*+()G!(08127*3!(0)!38)<8*;=!8(+<),3!A<G27;!
\<794*38*)!<!84)2F27;>!S*)(O9<).(7>!912A<8*O)*3212*78!928=>!+4294!8423!/1<7!+211!4*1/!8(!
,*12F*)&!!

!

Page 25

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! "%!

3. B*7*)<1!/)2792/1*3 

$&" 67!A<G27;!,*9232(73!(7!/)*A23*3!129*79*3>!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!34<11!<2A!8(!/*)A28!84*!
03*!(@!/)*A23*3!@()!;<A.127;!27!3(!@<)!<3!28!8427G3!28C!

• 67!<99(),<79*!+284!<7=!)*1*F<78!9(,*!(@!/)<9829*!2330*,!.=!84*!B<A.127;!
L(AA2332(7i!

• 67!<99(),<79*!+284!<7=!)*1*F<78!;02,<79*!2330*,!.=!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7i!
• H*<3(7<.1=!9(73238*78!+284!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3i!<7,!
• 67!<99(),<79*!+284!84*!<084()28=I3!38<8*A*78!(@!129*7327;!/(129=!

$&# :3!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=>!+*!+211!)*;01<8*!;<A.127;!27!84*!/0.129!278*)*38>!+4294!+211!.*!
)*@1*98*,!27!8423!/(129=!38<8*A*78&!

$&$ -423!/(129=!38<8*A*78!,(*3!7(8!07,*)A27*!84*!)2;48!(@!<7=!/*)3(7!8(!A<G*!
)*/)*3*78<82(73!(7!<7!<//129<82(7!()!8(!3**G!<!)*F2*+!(@!<!129*79*!+4*)*!/)(F232(7!4<3!
.**7!A<,*!@()!84*A!8(!,(!3(&!

$&% -423!/(129=!,(*3!7(8!(F*))2,*!<7=.(,=I3!)2;48!8(!A<G*!<7!<//129<82(7>!A<G*!
)*/)*3*78<82(73!<.(08!<7!<//129<82(7>!()!<//1=!@()!<!)*F2*+!(@!<!129*79*&!!

$&5 K<94!<//129<82(7!+211!.*!9(732,*)*,!(7!283!A*)283!27!<99(),<79*!+284!84*!)*?02)*A*783!(@!
84*!B<A.127;!:98!<7,!+284(08!)*;<),!8(!,*A<7,&!

W84*)!)*;01<8()=!)*;2A*3!
$&N -4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!<F(2,!,0/129<82(7!+284!(84*)!)*;01<8()=!)*;2A*3>!3(!@<)!<3!

/(332.1*&!:!)<7;*!(@!;*7*)<1!,082*3!<)*!2A/(3*,!(7!84*!3*1@O*A/1(=*,>!*A/1(=*)3!<7,!
(/*)<8()3!(@!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3>!.(84!27!)*3/*98!(@!*A/1(=**3!<7,!(@!84*!;*7*)<1!/0.129>!
.=!1*;231<82(7!;(F*)727;!4*<184!<7,!3<@*8=!<8!+()G!<7,!@2)*!3<@*8=&!-4*)*@()*>!3094!
)*?02)*A*783!,(!7(8!7**,!8(!.*!27910,*,!27!84*!/(129=!38<8*A*78&!

H*3/(732.1*!:084()282*3!
$&P H*3/(732.1*!:084()282*3!<)*!;*7*)<11=!/0.129!.(,2*3!84<8!A038!.*!7(82@2*,!(@!<11!

<//129<82(73!<7,!+4(!<)*!*78281*,!8(!A<G*!)*/)*3*78<82(73!8(!84*!L(07921!2@!84*=!<)*!
)*1*F<78!8(!(7*!()!A()*!(@!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3&!!

$&Q e*982(7!"5P!(@!84*!:98!,*@27*3!84(3*!<084()282*3&!'()!8423!<)*<!84*=!<)*C!O!!

• -4*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!
• B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)![(129*!

Page 26

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! "5!

• B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)!'2)*!<7,!H*390*!
• -4*![1<7727;!:084()28=!
• -4*!<084()28=!+4294!4<3!@07982(73!27!)*1<82(7!8(!/(11082(7!8(!84*!*7F2)(7A*78!()!
4<)A!8(!40A<7!4*<184!

• \<794*38*)!e<@*;0<),27;![<)87*)342/!
• d\!H*F*70*!<7,!L038(A3!
• -4*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=&!!

$&R -4*!9(78<98!,*8<213!(@!<11!84*!H*3/(732.1*!:084()282*3!<)*!<F<21<.1*!<)*!3*8!(08!27!
://*7,2`!"&!

$&"T -4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!4<3!,*32;7<8*,!84*!\<794*38*)!e<@*;0<),27;![<)87*)342/!<3!84*!
.(,=!84<8!23!9(A/*8*78!8(!<,F23*!28!<.(08!84*!/)(8*982(7!(@!9421,)*7!@)(A!4<)A&!-4*!
/)2792/1*3!84<8!4<F*!.**7!03*,!27!A<G27;!8423!,*32;7<82(7!23!84<8!84*!.(<),!23C!

• )*3/(732.1*!@()!84*!+4(1*!(@!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=I3!<)*<!!
• <73+*)<.1*!8(!,*A(9)<829<11=!*1*98*,!/*)3(73!

[0.129!d*<184 

$&"" Z421*!@()!3(A*!;<A.127;!23!<7!*7](=<.1*!<982F28=>!28!23!<!3(0)9*!(@!4<)A!@()!A<7=&!
$&"# H*3*<)94!30;;*383!84<8!27!<!928=O)*;2(7!12G*!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)!84*)*!<)*!

<//)(`2A<8*1=!$R>TTT!/*(/1*!12F27;!+284!<!;<A.127;!,23(),*)>!+284!<!@0)84*)!""Q>TTT!<8!
)23G>!4(+*F*)!+*!G7(+!84<8!3*1@O)*/()8*,!30)F*=3!07,*)*382A<8*!8)0*!/)*F<1*79*!(@!
4<)A!;2F*7!84*!07@()807<8*1=!34<A*!<7,!382;A<!<33(92<8*,!+284!;<A.127;!,23(),*)&!'()!
*F*)=!/*)3(7!+4(!;<A.1*3>!28!23!*382A<8*,!84<8!.*8+**7!32`!<7,!8*7!/*(/1*!<)*!X<@@*98*,!
(84*)3I!<7,!*`/*)2*79*!32A21<)!4<)A3&!-4*3*!A<=!.*!,*/*7,*783>!/<)*783>!/<)87*)3>!
@)2*7,3!()!9(11*<;0*3&!
!

:)*<! K382A<8*!(@!:,018!
[(/01<82(7!#T"N!

K382A<8*,!70A.*)!(@!
/)(.1*A!;<A.1*)3!

K382A<8*,!70A.*)!
(@!X<8!)23GI!;<A.1*)3!

B)*<8*)!
\<794*38*)!

#>"%Q>NNT! $Q>NPN! ""Q>"PN!

E(18(7! #"N>R#T! $>RT5! "">R$"!

E0)=! "%5>QQT! #>N#N! Q>T#$!

\<794*38*)! %"N>%QT! P>%RP! ##>RTN!

W1,4<A! "P$>RTT! $>"$T! R>5N5!

Page 27

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! "N!

:)*<! K382A<8*!(@!:,018!

[(/01<82(7!#T"N!

K382A<8*,!70A.*)!(@!

/)(.1*A!;<A.1*)3!

K382A<8*,!70A.*)!

(@!X<8!)23GI!;<A.1*)3!

H(94,<1*! "N%>Q#T! #>RNP! R>TN5!

e<1@(),! "R#>Q%T! $>%P"! "T>NTN!

e8(9G/()8! ##P>R#T! %>"T$! "#>5$N!

-<A*32,*! "P$>RNT! $>"$"! R>5NQ!

-)<@@(),! "PR>R#T! $>#$R! R>QRN!

Z2;<7! #5N>T#T! %>NTQ! "%>TQ"!

!
$&"$ :7=(7*!+4(!;<A.1*3!23!F017*)<.1*!8(!4<)A&!\*7>!=(07;*)!<,0183!^<;*,!"QO$%D!<7,!

<,0183!@)(A!<!1(+*)!3(92(*9(7(A29!()!.1<9G!<7,!A27()28=!*84729!.<9G;)(07,3!<)*!A()*!
12G*1=!8(!.*!91<332@2*,!<3!;<A.1*)3!*`/*)2*7927;!3(A*!1*F*1!(@!4<)A&!B<A.127;!)*1<8*,!
4<)A3!<)*!(@8*7!,*39)2.*,!<8!<7!27,2F2,0<1!1*F*1>!4(+*F*)!84*3*!4<)A3!4<F*!<!+2,*)!
2A/<98!(7!9(AA07282*3!<7,!3(92*8=!+284!9(383!8(!84*!Uj!<3!<!+4(1*!*382A<8*,!<8!.*27;!
.*8+**7!m#NTA!<7,!m"&"N.7&!

$&"% [*(/1*!12F27;!+284>!()!<8!)23G!(@!,*F*1(/27;>!<!;<A.127;!,23(),*)!A<=!*`/*)2*79*!38)*33>!
<7`2*8=!<7,!,*/)*332(7>!@27<792<1!1(33*3>!,*.83!<7,!*`42.28!9(A/0132F*!.*4<F2(0)3>!3094!
<3!94<327;!1(33*3&!B<A.127;!)*1<8*,!4<)A3!A<=!<99)0*!(F*)!<!1(7;!/*)2(,!(@!82A*!()!
F*)=!?029G1=!<8!<!82A*!(@!9)2323>!A<7=!4<)A3!4<F*!<!1<3827;!1*;<9=!.*=(7,!27282<1!)*9(F*)=!
@)(A!;<A.127;!,23(),*)&!d<)A3!<33(92<8*,!+284!;<A.127;!27910,*!/(()!A*78<1!4*<184!
<7,!+*11.*27;>!)*1<82(7342/!.)*<G,(+7>!7*;1*98!(@!(84*)!/)2()282*3!27!12@*>!/(()!
/*)@()A<79*!<8!+()G!()!394((1!<7,!9)2A27<1!<982F28=&!68!23!*382A<8*,!84<8!@()!*F*)=!,<=!(@!
84*!=*<)>!(7*!/*)3(7!8<G*3!84*2)!(+7!12@*!<3!<!)*3018!(@!;<A.127;!,23(),*)&!

$&"5 :+<)*7*33!(@!;<A.127;!4<)A3!<3!<7!*A*);27;!/0.129!4*<184!/)(.1*A!4<3!279)*<3*,!27!
)*9*78!=*<)3>!4(+*F*)![0.129!d*<184!<)*!7(8!<!)*3/(732.1*!<084()28=!07,*)!84*!B<A.127;!
:98!#TT5&!V(7*84*1*33>!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!9(73018!84*!M2)*98()!(@![0.129!d*<184!
(7!<11!/)*A23*3!129*79*!<//129<82(73!<7,!+211!<,F23*!84*!M2)*98()!(@![0.129!d*<184!8(!
9(732,*)!84*!03*!(@!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7I3!8((1G28!@()!/0.129!4*<184!<7,!
3<@*;0<),27;C!488/3CJJ+++&;<A.127;9(AA2332(7&;(F&0GJ@()O129*7327;O
<084()282*3JY29*7327;<084()28=O8((1G28J[0.129O4*<184O<7,Oe<@*;0<),27;O8((1G28&<3/`!

$&"N B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)!4<3!<!;<A.127;!4<)A3!)*,0982(7!/)(;)<AA*!^+4294!<2A3!8(!)*,09*!
84*!4<)A3!9<03*,!.=!;<A.127;!8(!84*!/(/01<82(7&!Y29*79*!<//129<783!<7,!4(1,*)3!+211!.*!
*`/*98*,!8(!34(+!4(+!84*=!<)*!<982F*1=!/)(8*9827;!84*!1(9<1!/(/01<82(7!@)(A!;<A.127;!

Page 28

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! "P!

4<)A3!+284!84*2)!/)(9*33*3!<7,!(/*)<82(73>!<7,!9(732,*)!4(+!84*!1(9<82(7>!(/*727;!
4(0)3!<7,!/)(A(82(7!(@!84*2)!<982F282*3!9<7!A272A2S*!(//()807282*3!@()!4<)A!8(!84*!
F017*)<.1*!;)(0/3!1238*,!<.(F*&!e*982(7!5!(@!8423!,(90A*78!(7!/)(8*9827;!F017*)<.1*!
;)(0/3!42;412;483!3(A*!(@!84*!38<7,<),3!129*79*!4(1,*)3!<)*!*`/*98*,!8(!A**8!8(!
A272A2S*!4<)A!8(!9038(A*)3!<7,!1(9<1!)*32,*783&!

$&"P -4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!)*9(;723*3!84<8!1(9<1!<084()28=!/0.129!4*<184!8*<A3!9<7!(@@*)!
2732;483!@)(A!84(3*!2A/<98*,!.=!;<A.127;!4<)A3!<7,!(@@*)!9(78*`80<1!27@()A<82(7!<.(08!
8)*<8A*78!<7,!30//()8!27!84*!1(9<1!<)*<!<7,!9<7!<,,!F<10*!8(!84*!129*7327;!<//129<82(7!
/)(9*33!+4*)*!84*)*!<)*!9(79*)73!)<23*,!<.(08!)23G!(@!4<)A!8(!F017*)<.1*!;)(0/3!
1(9<11=&!!

$&"Q B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)I3!;<A.127;!4<)A3!)*,0982(7!/)(;)<AA*!23!1238*727;!8(!)*32,*783!
+284!12F*,!*`/*)2*79*!(@!;<A.127;!<7,!23!9(AA2332(727;!283!(+7!)*3*<)94!8(!.*88*)!
07,*)38<7,!/)(.1*A!;<A.127;!27!84*!)*;2(7&!:3!@27,27;3!@)(A!8423!)*3*<)94!*A*);*>!
129*79*!4(1,*)3!+211!.*!*`/*98*,!8(!30//()8!84*!,*12F*)=!(@!)*9(AA*7,<82(73!8(!4*1/!
A272A2S*!;<A.127;!4<)A3!8(!84*!1(9<1!/(/01<82(73&!

M*8*)A2727;!+4*84*)!<!/*)3(7!23!<7!278*)*38*,!/<)8!27!)*1<82(7!8(!<!/)*A23*3!

129*79*>!()!<7!<//129<82(7!@()!()!27!)*3/*98!(@!<!/)*A23*3!129*79*!
$&"R '()!84*!/0)/(3*3!(@!84*!B<A.127;!:98>!<7!X278*)*38*,!/<)8=I!23C!

<D e(A*(7*!+4(!12F*3!30@@292*781=!91(3*!8(!84*!/)*A23*3!8(!.*!12G*1=!8(!.*!<@@*98*,!
.=!84*!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3!

.D d<3!.0327*33!278*)*383!84<8!A2;48!.*!<@@*98*,!.=!84*!<084()23*,!<982F282*3!
9D H*/)*3*783!/*)3(73!+4(!3<823@=!/<)<;)</4!^<D!()!^.D!

$&#T Z4*84*)!()!7(8!<!/*)3(7!23!<7!X278*)*38*,!/<)8=I!23!0182A<8*1=!84*!,*9232(7!(@!84*!
Y29*7327;!:084()28=!+4294!2330*3!84*!129*79*!()!8(!+4294!84*!<//129<82(7!23!A<,*&!!

$&#" -(!,*8*)A27*!+4(!12F*3!X30@@292*781=!91(3*!8(!84*!/)*A23*3!8(!.*!12G*1=!8(!.*!<@@*98*,!.=!
84*!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3I>!+*!+211!9(732,*)!84*!@(11(+27;!(7!<!9<3*O.=O9<3*!.<323C!

• -4*!32S*!(@!84*!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3!
• -4*!7<80)*!(@!84*!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3!
• -4*!,238<79*!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!@)(A!84*!<,,)*33!(@!84*!/*)3(7!A<G27;!84*!
)*/)*3*78<82(7!

• -4*!/(8*782<1!2A/<98!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!^70A.*)!(@!9038(A*)3>!)(08*3!12G*1=!8(!.*!
8<G*7!.=!84(3*!F232827;!84*!/)*A23*3D!!

Page 29

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! "Q!

• 84*!92)90A38<79*3!(@!84*!/*)3(7!+4(!12F*3!91(3*!8(!84*!/)*A23*3&!-423!23!7(8!84*2)!
/*)3(7<1!94<)<98*)238293>!.08!84*2)!278*)*383!+4294!A<=!.*!)*1*F<78!8(!84*!,238<79*!
@)(A!84*!/)*A23*3!*&;&!X30@@292*781=!91(3*!8(!.*!12G*1=!8(!.*!<@@*98*,I!9(01,!4<F*!<!
,2@@*)*78!A*<727;!@()!^<D!<!/)2F<8*!)*32,*78!^.D!<!)*32,*782<1!394((1!@()!9421,)*7!
+284!8)0<7827;!/)(.1*A3!<7,!^9D!<!)*32,*782<1!4(38*1!@()!F017*)<.1*!<,0183!

• -4*!X9<894A*78I!<)*<!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!^2&*&!4(+!@<)!/*(/1*!8)<F*1!8(!F2328!28D&!

3.22 d<F27;!<!X.0327*33!278*)*38I!+211!.*!;2F*7!84*!+2,*38!/(332.1*!278*)/)*8<82(7!<7,!27910,*!
9(AA0728=!<7,!F(1078<)=!;)(0/3>!394((13>!94<)282*3>!@<284!;)(0/3!<7,!A*,29<1!/)<9829*3&!
-4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!9(732,*)!84*!@(11(+27;!@<98()3!)*1*F<78!+4*7!,*8*)A2727;!
+4*84*)!<!/*)3(7I3!.0327*33!278*)*383!A<=!.*!<@@*98*,C 

• -4*!32S*!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!
• -4*!X9<894A*78I!<)*<!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!^2&*&!4(+!@<)!/*(/1*!8)<F*1!8(!F2328!28D!
• +4*84*)!84*!/*)3(7!A<G27;!84*!)*/)*3*78<82(7!4<3!.0327*33!278*)*383!27!84*!
<@@*98*,!9<894A*78!<)*<!!

$&#$ 67!3(!@<)!<3!+4(!)*/)*3*783!/*)3(73!+4(!3<823@=!/<)<;)</43!^<D!()!^.D>!8423!+(01,!
27910,*!@()!*`<A/1*C!!

2& H*32,*783I!<33(92<82(73!<7,!8*7<783I!<33(92<82(73!
22& -)<,*!<33(92<82(73!<7,!8)<,*!072(73!
222& :7=!(84*)!/*)3(7!+284!+)288*7!/*)A2332(7!@)(A!3(A*.(,=!+4(!3<823@2*3!

/<)<;)</4!^2D!()!^22D!
2F& Y(9<1!9(079211()3!<7,!\[3!

K`94<7;*!(@!27@()A<82(7!.*8+**7!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!<7,!84*!B<A.127;!

L(AA2332(7!^3#R!<7,!3$T!(@!B:#TT5D>!<7,!84*!*`94<7;*!(@!27@()A<82(7!.*8+**7!

84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!<7,!(84*)!/*)3(73!1238*,!27!e94*,01*!N!(@!84*!:98!
$&#% -4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!A<=!34<)*!<//129<82(7!27@()A<82(7!)*9*2F*,!27!84*!9(0)3*!(@!

/)(9*3327;!<//129<82(73!+284!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7>!<!9(738<.1*!()!/(129*!@()9*>!<7!
*7@()9*A*78!(@@29*)>!<7(84*)!Y29*7327;!:084()28=>!4*)!\<]*38=I3!L(AA2332(7*)3!(@!
L038(A3!n!K`923*>!-4*!B<A.127;!://*<1!-)2.07<1>!-4*!V<82(7<1!Y(88*)=!L(AA2332(7>!
-4*!e*9)*8<)=!(@!e8<8*!()!e9(88234!\27238*)3&!

$&#5 Z*!+211!<.2,*!.=!84*!')**,(A!(@!67@()A<82(7!:98!<7,!84*!B*7*)<1!M<8<![)(8*982(7!
H*;01<82(7!^BM[HD!27!283!3<@*;0<),27;J)*1*<3*!(@!27@()A<82(7!()!,<8<&!

Page 30

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! "R!

$&#N 67!84*!9(78*`8!(@!84*!B<A.127;!:98>!+*!+211!)*8<27!(71=!84<8!27@()A<82(7!+4294!)*1<8*3!8(!
84*!/)(9*3327;!(@!<//129<82(73!@()!129*79*3>!/*)A283>!/*)A2332(73!<7,!)*/)*3*78<82(73&!
://129<82(73!<7,!)*/)*3*78<82(73!27!)*3/*98!(@!<//129<82(73!<)*!.(84!27!84*!/0.129!,(A<27!
<7,!<)*!84*)*@()*!<F<21<.1*!(7!)*?0*38!<7,!A<=!.*!/0.1234*,!<3!/<)8!(@!(0)!+*.!
)*;238*)&![*)3(7<1!<,,)*33*3J9(78<98!70A.*)3!<88<94*,!+284!)*/)*3*78<82(73!A<=!<13(!
.*!)*1*<3*,&!67@()A<82(7!A<=!<13(!.*!34<)*,!+284!(84*)!B<A.127;!:98!)*;01<8()3!()!
(84*)!/<)82*3!/)*39)2.*,!.=!84*!e*9)*8<)=!(@!e8<8*&!

$&#P Y29*7327;!<084()282*3!4<F*!38<808()=!,082*3!8(!7(82@=!84*!L(AA2332(7!<3!+*11!<3!84*!
<//129<78!<7,!(84*)!)*3/(732.1*!<084()282*3!(@!84*!;)<78J)*]*982(7!(@!<//129<82(73!^7*+>!
F<)2<82(73>!8)<73@*)3!*89D!<3!+*11!<3!84*!)*F(9<82(7>!30))*7,*)!()!1</3*!(@!<!/)*A23*3!
129*79*!0327;!84*!9())*98!38<808()=!@()A3&!!

$&#Q Z*!+211!27@()A!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!+284(08!,*1<=!2@C!!

• -4*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!)*9*2F*3!27@()A<82(7!84<8!9<03*3!28!8(!?0*382(7!84*!
3028<.2128=!(@!84*!/*)3(7!4(1,27;J<//1=27;!8(!4(1,!<7!(/*)<827;!129*79*!

• -4*)*!<)*!/*)3238*78!()!3*)2(03!,23(),*)!/)(.1*A3!84<8!<7!(/*)<8()!9(01,!()!
34(01,!,(!A()*!8(!/)*F*78>!3(!84<8!84*!L(AA2332(7!A<=!9(732,*)!84*!9(7827027;!
3028<.2128=!(@!84*!(/*)<8()!8(!4(1,!<7!(/*)<827;!129*79*!!

• 6@!28!9(A*3!8(!(0)!<88*782(7!84<8C!<19(4(1O129*73*,!/)*A23*3!()!910.3!()!27382808*3!
<)*!/1<=27;!.27;(!,0)27;!84*!9(0)3*!(@!<!+**G!+4294!27F(1F*3!32;72@29<78!38<G*3!
<7,!/)2S*3!<7,!A<G*3!28!/(332.1*!84<8!84*!m#>TTT!27!3*F*7!,<=3!23!.*27;!
*`9**,*,&!

$&#R -4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!<98!27!<99(),<79*!+284!84*!)*1*F<78!1*;231<82(7!<7,!;02,<79*!
@)(A!84*!L(AA2332(7!<7,!+211!<,(/8!84*!/)2792/1*3!(@!.*88*)!)*;01<82(7&!

'07982(73!(@!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!07,*)![<)8!"5!(@!84*!B:#TT5!+284!)*3/*98!8(!

84*!273/*982(7!(@!/)*A23*3!<7,!84*!/(+*)!07,*)!3$%N!(@!84*!:98!8(!27382808*!

9)2A27<1!/)(9**,27;3!27!)*3/*98!(@!84*!(@@*79*3!3/*92@2*,!27!84<8!3*982(7 

$&$T W0)!/)2792/<1!*7@()9*A*78!)(1*!07,*)!84*!B<A.127;!:98!23!8(!*730)*!9(A/12<79*!+284!84*!
9(7,282(73!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!129*79*!<7,!1*;<1!)*?02)*A*783!27!)*3/*98!(@!(84*)!
/*)A2332(73!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!)*;01<8*3&!d(+*F*)>!+*!+211!<13(!*730)*!84<8!<7=!
07129*73*,!/)*A23*3!+4294!<)*!(/*)<827;!211*;<11=!<)*!,*<18!+284!<//)(/)2<8*1=!8(!*730)*!
9(A/12<79*&!Z4*)*!<//)(/)2<8*>!+*!+211!+()G!+284!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!27!(0)!
*7@()9*A*78!<982F28=&!-4*!L(07921!+211!<,(/8!<!)23GO.<3*,!273/*982(7!<7,!*7@()9*A*78!

Page 31

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! #T!

/)(;)<AA*>!+4294!+211!A*<7!;2F27;!;)*<8*)!<88*782(7!8(!42;4O)23G!/)*A23*3!<7,!<!12;48*)!
8(094!@()!1(+O)23G!/)*A23*3&!67!<11!9<3*3!+*!+211!*730)*!(0)!273/*982(7!<7,!*7@()9*A*78!
/)(;)<AA*!23!(/*)<8*,!27!<99(),<79*!+284!<7=!9(,*3!(@!/)<9829*!2330*,!.=!84*!
B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7>!27!<99(),<79*!+284!84*!B(F*)7A*78I3!K7@()9*A*78!L(79(),<8!
<7,!84*!L(A/12<79*!L(,*&!!

$&$" -4*!L(07921!+211!8<G*!<99(078!(@!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(73!;02,<79*!,(90A*78!2330*,!
27!'*.)0<)=!#T"5!^()!<7=!30.3*?0*78!<A*7,A*783D!X://)(<94!8(!-*38![0)94<327;I!
+4*7!9(732,*)27;!A<G27;!8*38!/0)94<3*3!<8!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3&!-4*!L(07921!+211!<13(!
@(11(+!283!(+7!/(1292*3!<7,!/)(9*,0)*3!)*;<),27;!84*!03*!(@!07,*)<;*!8*38!/0)94<3*)3&!

$&$# -423!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!.*!;02,*,!.=!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7I3!B02,<79*!@()!1(9<1!
<084()282*3!<7,!+211!*7,*<F(0)!8(!.*C!

[)(/()82(7<8*! )*;01<8()3!34(01,!(71=!278*)F*7*!+4*7!7*9*33<)=C!!)*A*,2*3!
34(01,!.*!<//)(/)2<8*!8(!84*!)23G!/(3*,>!<7,!9(383!2,*782@2*,!<7,!
A272A23*,!

:99(078<.1*! )*;01<8()3!A038!.*!<.1*!8(!]0382@=!,*9232(73>!<7,!.*!30.]*98!8(!
/0.129!39)0827=!

L(73238*78! )01*3!<7,!38<7,<),3!A038!.*!](27*,!0/!<7,!2A/1*A*78*,!@<2)1=!

-)<73/<)*78! )*;01<8()3!34(01,!.*!(/*7>!<7,!G**/!)*;01<82(73!32A/1*!<7,!
03*)!@)2*7,1=!

-<);*8*,! )*;01<82(7!34(01,!.*!@(903*,!(7!84*!/)(.1*A>!<7,!A272A23*!32,*!
*@@*983!

$&$$ Z4*)*!84*)*!23!<![)2A<)=!:084()28=!394*A*!27!/1<9*>!84*!9(07921!+211!3**G!;02,<79*!@)(A!
84*![)2A<)=!:084()28=!.*@()*!8<G27;!<7=!*7@()9*A*78!<982(7&!:8!84*!82A*!(@!84*!
/0.129<82(7!(@!8423!/(129=!84*)*!+*)*!3*F*7![)2A<)=!:084()28=!<))<7;*A*783!+284!4(38!
1(9<1!<084()282*3C!

W/*)<8()! [)2A<)=!:084()28=!1(9<1!<084()28=!

E:L-:! H*<,27;!

L()<1!H<927;! \218(7!j*=7*3!

Y<,.)(G*3! \218(7!j*=7*3!

[<,,=![(+*)! H*<,27;!

H<7G!B)(0/! L28=!(@!Z*38A2738*)!

eG=!E*8827;!n!B<A27;! Z<G*@2*1,!

Z2112<A!d211! H*<,27;!

Page 32

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! #"!

$&$% '0)84*)!27@()A<82(7>!27910,27;!<7!27,*`!(@!<11![)2A<)=!:084()28=!<))<7;*A*783!9<7!.*!
@(07,!<8!488/3CJJ/)2A<)=<084()28=)*;238*)&27@(J/<)!!

L(AA*7827;!(7!<!129*79*!<//129<82(7 

$&$5 6@!X278*)*38*,!/<)82*3I!^3**!.*1(+!@()!,*@27282(7D!()!X)*3/(732.1*!<084()282*3I!+234!8(!
9(AA*78!(7!<7!<//129<82(7!@()!<!/)*A23*3!129*79*!)*1<827;!8(!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3>!
84*=!9<7!A<G*!<!X)*/)*3*78<82(7I&!-4*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!9<7!(71=!9(732,*)!
)*/)*3*78<82(73!2@!A<,*!.=!*284*)!<7!X278*)*38*,!/<)8=I!()!X)*3/(732.1*!<084()28=I&!

$&$N :!)*/)*3*78<82(7!23!<!38<8*A*78!84<8!(08127*3!<7=!9(AA*783!84<8!84*!/<)8=!A<G27;!84*!
)*/)*3*78<82(7!+<783!8(!.*!8<G*7!278(!9(732,*)<82(7!.=!84*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!+4*7!
,*8*)A2727;!84*!<//129<82(7&!67!<11!9<3*3!)*/)*3*78<82(73!+211!7**,!8(!.*!X)*1*F<78I&!-4*!
(71=!)*/)*3*78<82(73!12G*1=!8(!.*!)*1*F<78!<)*!84(3*!84<8!A**8!(7*!()!A()*!(@!84*!
@(11(+27;!9)28*)2<C!

• H*1<8*!8(!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3 
• H*1<8*!8(!)*1*F<78!A<88*)3!27!(0)!;<A.127;!/(129=! 
• H*1<8*!8(!)*1*F<78!A<88*)3!27!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7I3!B02,<79*!8(!Y(9<1!
:084()282*3 

• H*1<8*!8(!)*1*F<78!A<88*)3!27!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7I3!L(,*3!(@![)<9829* 

• H*1<8*!8(!84*!/)*A23*3!84<8!<)*!84*!30.]*98!(@!84*!<//129<82(7! 

:VM!

• :)*!7*284*)!@)2F(1(03!7()!F*`<82(03!7()!+211!9*)8<271=!7(8!27@10*79*!84*!<084()28=I3!
,*8*)A27<82(7!(@!84*!<//129<82(7&!

'<98()3!84<8!+211!7(8!.*!)*1*F<78 
$&$P :7=!(.]*982(73!8(!7*+!/)*A23*3!()!)*?0*383!@()!<!)*F2*+!34(01,!.*!.<3*,!(7!84*!

129*7327;!(.]*982F*3!(@!84*!:98&!U712G*!84*!Y29*7327;!:98!#TT$>!84*!:98!,(*3!7(8!27910,*!
84*!/)*F*782(7!(@!/0.129!7023<79*!<3!<!3/*92@29!129*7327;!(.]*982F*&!

$&$Q -4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!7(8!8<G*!278(!<99(078!)*/)*3*78<82(73!84<8!<)*C!!

• )*/*8282F*>!F*`<82(03!()!@)2F(1(03! 
• @)(A!<!)2F<1!;<A.127;!.0327*33!+4*)*!84*!.<323!(@!84*!)*/)*3*78<82(7!23!07+<78*,!
9(A/*8282(7! 

• A()<1!(.]*982(73!8(!;<A.127;! 
• 9(79*)7*,!+284!*`/*98*,!,*A<7,!@()!;<A.127;! 

Page 33

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! ##!

• <7(7=A(03!! ! ! ! !  

$&$R M*8<213!(@!<//129<82(73!<7,!)*/)*3*78<82(73!)*@*))*,!8(!<!129*7327;!30.O!L(AA288**!@()!
,*8*)A27<82(7!+211!.*!/0.1234*,!27!)*/()83!84<8!<)*!A<,*!/0.1291=!<F<21<.1*!<7,!/1<9*,!
(7!84*!9(07921I3!+*.328*!27!<99(),<79*!+284!84*!Y(9<1!B(F*)7A*78!:98!"RP#!<7,!84*!
')**,(A!(@!67@()A<82(7!:98!#TTT&![*)3(7<1!,*8<213!+211!4(+*F*)!.*!)*A(F*,!@)(A!
)*/)*3*78<82(73!27!84*!@27<1!+*.328*!F*)32(7!(@!)*/()83!! ! !

$&%T V<A*3!<7,!<,,)*33*3!(@!/*(/1*!A<G27;!)*/)*3*78<82(73!+211!.*!,2391(3*,!8(!<//129<783!
<7,!(71=!.*!+2844*1,!@)(A!/0.129<82(7!(7!84*!;)(07,3!(@!/*)3(7<1!3<@*8=!+4*)*!84*!
129*7327;!<084()28=!23!3/*92@29<11=!<3G*,!8(!,(!3(&!

e/128![)*A23*3!! ! ! !  

$&%" -4*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!+211!<1+<=3!;2F*!84*!91(3*38!9(732,*)<82(7!8(!+4*84*)!<!30.O
,2F232(7!4<3!9)*<8*,!3*/<)<8*!/)*A23*3!A*)2827;!<!3*/<)<8*!A<9427*!*78281*A*78&!-4*!
:084()28=!+211!7(8!<08(A<829<11=!;)<78!<!129*79*!@()!30.O!,2F2,*,!/)*A23*3!*F*7!2@!84*!
A<7,<8()=!9(7,282(73!<)*!A*8>!/<)82901<)1=!+4*)*!84*!:084()28=!9(732,*)3!84<8!8423!4<3!
.**7!,(7*!27!(),*)!8(!32,*38*/!9(78)(13!(7!84*!70A.*)!(@!A<9427*3!+4294!9<7!.*!
/)(F2,*,!27!<!327;1*!/)*A23*&!-4*!:084()28=!+211!9(732,*)!2@!84*!30.O,2F232(7!4<3!4<)A*,!
84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*!(@!/)(8*9827;!84*!F017*)<.1*&!-4*!:084()28=!A<=!<13(!8<G*!278(!
<99(078!(84*)!)*1*F<78!@<98()3!<3!84*=!<)23*!(7!<!9<3*O.=O9<3*!.<323&!! !

[)*A23*3!o)*<,=!@()!;<A.127;p 
$&%# :!129*79*!8(!03*!/)*A23*3!@()!;<A.127;!+211!(71=!.*!2330*,!27!)*1<82(7!8(!/)*A23*3C!

• 84<8!84*!:084()28=!9<7!.*!3<823@2*,!<)*!;(27;!8(!.*!)*<,=!8(!.*!03*,!@()!;<A.127;!
27!84*!)*<3(7<.1=!7*<)!@080)*>!9(73238*78!+284!84*!39<1*!(@!.021,27;!()!<18*)<82(73!
)*?02)*,!.*@()*!84*!/)*A23*3!<)*!.)(0;48!278(!03* 

• +4*)*!84*=!<)*!*`/*98*,!8(!.*!03*,!@()!84*!;<A.127;!<982F28=!7<A*,!(7!84*!
129*79*&!

$&%$ 6@!84*!9(738)0982(7!(@!<!/)*A23*3!23!7(8!=*8!9(A/1*8*>!()!2@!84*=!7**,!<18*)<82(7>!()!2@!84*!
<//129<78!,(*3!7(8!=*8!4<F*!<!)2;48!8(!(990/=!84*A>!84*7!<7!<//129<82(7!@()!<!/)(F232(7<1!
38<8*A*78!34(01,!.*!A<,*!2738*<,&!!

$&%% 67!,*92,27;!+4*84*)!<!/)*A23*3!129*79*!9<7!.*!;)<78*,!+4*)*!84*)*!<)*!(0838<7,27;!
9(738)0982(7!()!<18*)<82(7!+()G3!<8!<!/)*A23*3>!8423!<084()28=!+211!,*8*)A27*!<//129<82(73!
(7!84*2)!A*)283>!<//1=27;!<!8+(O38<;*!9(732,*)<82(7!/)(9*33C!O!!

Page 34

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! #$!

1) Z4*84*)!84*!/)*A23*3!(0;48!8(!.*!/*)A288*,!8(!.*!03*,!@()!;<A.127;! 
2) Z4*84*)!<//)(/)2<8*!9(7,282(73!9<7!.*!/08!27!/1<9*!8(!9<8*)!@()!84*!3280<82(7!84<8!
84*!/)*A23*3!<)*!7(8!=*8!27!84*!38<8*!27!+4294!84*=!(0;48!8(!.*!.*@()*!;<A.127;!
8<G*3!/1<9*&! 

$&%5 ://129<783!34(01,!7(8*!84<8!8423!:084()28=!23!*78281*,!8(!,*92,*!84<8!28!23!<//)(/)2<8*!8(!
;)<78!<!129*79*!30.]*98!8(!9(7,282(73>!.08!28!23!7(8!(.12;*,!8(!;)<78!3094!<!129*79*&!

$&%N Z4*7!,*<127;!+284!<!/)*A23*3!129*79*!<//129<82(7!@()!@27234*,!.021,27;3>!84*!129*7327;!
<084()28=!+211!7(8!8<G*!278(!<99(078C!

• +4*84*)!84(3*!.021,27;3!4<F*!8(!9(A/1=!+284!84*!7*9*33<)=!/1<7727;!()!.021,27;!
9(73*783i!

• @2)*!()!4*<184!<7,!3<@*8=!)23G3&!!

$&%P -4(3*!A<88*)3!34(01,!.*!,*<18!+284!07,*)!)*1*F<78!/1<7727;!9(78)(1>!.021,27;!<7,!(84*)!
)*;01<82(73>!<7,!A038!7(8!@()A!/<)8!(@!84*!9(732,*)<82(7!@()!84*!/)*A23*3!129*79*&!

$&%Q 68!23!7(8*,!84<8!e&#"T!(@!84*!:98!/)*F*783!129*7327;!<084()282*3!8<G27;!278(!<99(078!84*!
12G*124((,!(@!84*!/)(/(3<1!.=!84*!<//129<78!(.8<2727;!/1<7727;!()!.021,27;!9(73*78!+4*7!
9(732,*)27;!<!/)*A23*3!129*79*!<//129<82(7&!K?0<11=>!84*!;)<78!(@!<!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3!
129*79*!,(*3!7(8!/)*]0,29*!()!/)*F*78!<7=!<982(7!84<8!A<=!.*!<//)(/)2<8*!07,*)!84*!1<+!
)*1<827;!8(!/1<7727;!()!.021,27;!

://129<82(73!<7,!/1<73! 
$&%R -4*!B<A.127;!:98!^35"D!)*?02)*3!<//129<783!8(!30.A28!/1<73!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!+284!84*2)!

<//129<82(7>!27!(),*)!8(!*730)*!84<8!84*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!4<3!84*!7*9*33<)=!
27@()A<82(7!8(!A<G*!<7!27@()A*,!]0,;*A*78!<.(08!+4*84*)!84*!/)*A23*3!<)*!@28!@()!
;<A.127;&!-4*!/1<7!+211!<13(!.*!03*,!@()!84*!:084()28=!8(!/1<7!@080)*!/)*A23*3!273/*982(7!
<982F28=&!

$&5T 68!23!84*!1(9<1!<084()28=I3!/(129=!84<8!28!+211!*`/*98!<//129<783!@()!7*+!/)*A23*3!129*79*3!
<7,!F<)2<82(73!8(!/)(F2,*!<!/1<7!34(+27;!84*!27,29<82F*!1<=(08!(@!84*!/1<7!27910,27;>!.08!
7(8!12A28*,!8(C!

• \<9427*3>!3/*92@2*,!.=!9<8*;()= 
• e8<@@!9(078*)3!

$&5" Z*!9(732,*)!84<8!8423!27@()A<82(7!23!<//)(/)2<8*>!27!9(7]07982(7!+284!84*!/)*A23*3I!)23G!
<33*33A*78>!8(!*@@*982F*1=!<33*33!84*!/)(F232(7!(@!;<A.127;!@<921282*3!<8!84*!/)*A23*3&!

Page 35

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! #%!

Z4*)*!8423!27@()A<82(7!23!7(8!/)(F2,*,>!28!23!A()*!12G*1=!84<8!<!)*/)*3*78<82(7!+211!.*!
A<,*!27!(),*)!8(!*7<.1*!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!8(!<990)<8*1=!<33*33!84*!12G*1=!*@@*98!(@!
;)<7827;!84*!<//129<82(7!)*1<82F*!8(!84*!YLL[!<7,!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3&! ! !
! !

$&5# -4*!/)*A23*3!/1<7!27!283*1@!23!(71=!(7*!A*<73!.=!+4294!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!A<=!3**G!
)*<330)<79*!84<8!84*!)*?02)*A*783!+211!.*!A*8&!68!A<=!.*!84<8!9(7,282(73!<88<94*,!8(!84*!
/)*A23*3!129*79*!)*;<),27;!127*3!(@!32;48!.*8+**7!84*!9(078*)!<7,!84*!;<A27;!
A<9427*3>!38<@@27;!<))<7;*A*783!()!3*90)28=!,*F29*3!<)*!<!A()*!*@@*982F*!A*84(,!(@!
,(27;!3(&!Y(9<1!92)90A38<79*3!<7,!9(79*)73!<7,!84*!1<=(08!(@!<!/<)82901<)!/)*A23*3!
A<=!+*11!,*8*)A27*!+4<8!23!A(38!<//)(/)2<8*!@()!<7!27,2F2,0<1!<//129<82(7&!

-)<9G3 
$&5$ [1<73!@()!8)<9G3!,(!7(8!7**,!8(!.*!27!<!/<)82901<)!39<1*>!.08!34(01,!.*!,)<+7!8(!39<1*!

<7,!34(01,!.*!30@@292*781=!,*8<21*,!8(!27910,*!84*!27@()A<82(7!)*?02)*,!.=!)*;01<82(73&!!
e(A*!8)<9G3!A<=!.*!3280<8*,!(7!<;)290180)<1!1<7,!+4*)*!84*!/*)2A*8*)!23!7(8!,*@27*,!.=!
F2)80*!(@!<7!(08*)!+<11!()!@*79*>!3094!<3!/(278O8(O/(278!)<9*8)<9G3&!67!3094!2738<79*3>!
+4*)*!<7!*78)=!@**!23!1*F2*,>!8)<9G!/)*A23*3!129*79*!4(1,*)3!A<=!*)*98!8*A/()<)=!
38)0980)*3!8(!)*38)298!<99*33!8(!/)*A23*3!q67!84*!)<)*!9<3*3!+4*)*!84*!(08*)!/*)2A*8*)!
9<77(8!.*!,*@27*,>!28!23!12G*1=!84<8!84*!8)<9G!27!?0*382(7!+211!7(8!.*!3/*92@29<11=!,*32;7*,!
@()!84*!@)*?0*78!4(1,27;!(@!3/()827;!*F*783!()!)<9*3&!67!3094!9<3*3!.*8827;!@<921282*3!A<=!
.*!.*88*)!/)(F2,*,!84)(0;4!(99<32(7<1!03*!7(829*3!+4*)*!84*!.(07,<)=!/)*A23*3!,(!7(8!
7**,!8(!.*!,*@27*,&!!

$&5% -423!<084()28=!<//)*92<8*3!84<8!28!23!3(A*82A*3!,2@@29018!8(!,*@27*!84*!/)*923*!1(9<82(7!(@!
.*8827;!<)*<3!(7!8)<9G3&!-4*!/)*923*!1(9<82(7!(@!+4*)*!.*8827;!@<921282*3!<)*!/)(F2,*,!23!
7(8!)*?02)*,!8(!.*!34(+7!(7!8)<9G!/1<73>!.(84!.=!F2)80*!(@!84*!@<98!84<8!.*8827;!23!
/*)A288*,!<7=+4*)*!(7!84*!/)*A23*3!<7,!.*9<03*!(@!84*!,2@@290182*3!<33(92<8*,!+284!
/27/(27827;!*`<98!1(9<82(73!@()!3(A*!8=/*3!(@!8)<9G&!!

$&55 ://129<783!34(01,!/)(F2,*!30@@292*78!27@()A<82(7!84<8!8423!<084()28=!9<7!3<823@=!283*1@!84<8!
84*!/1<7!27,29<8*3!84*!A<27!<)*<3!+4*)*!.*8827;!A2;48!8<G*!/1<9*&!'()!)<9*9(0)3*3!27!
/<)82901<)>!<7=!.*8827;!<)*<3!30.]*98!8(!84*!o@2F*!82A*3!)01*p!^9(AA(71=!G7(+7!<3!.*8827;!
)27;3D!A038!.*!27,29<8*,!(7!84*!/1<7&!

Page 36

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! #5!

4. M*8*)A2727;![)*A23*3!Y29*79*3 

d(+!84*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!,*92,*3!+4*84*)!8(!;)<78!()!)*@03*!<7!<//129<82(7 

%&" Z4*)*!+*!)*9*2F*!<7!<//129<82(7!@()!<!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3!129*79*>!+*!+211!<2A!8(!/*)A28!
84*!03*!(@!/)*A23*3!@()!;<A.127;!+4*)*!28!23!9(732,*)*,C!

<D 67!<99(),<79*!+284!<7=!)*1*F<78!9(,*!(@!/)<9829*!2330*,!.=!84*!B<A.127;!
L(AA2332(7!

.D 67!<99(),<79*!+284!<7=!)*1*F<78!;02,<79*!2330*,!.=!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!!
9D H*<3(7<.1=!9(73238*78!+284!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3!^30.]*98!8(!<!<7,!.D!<7,!
,D 67!<99(),<79*!+284!8423!/(129=!^30.]*98!8(!<!_!9D&!

%&# -4*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!4<3!7(!,239)*82(7!8(!*284*)!;)<78!()!)*@03*!/)*A23*3!129*79*3!27!
92)90A38<79*3!84<8!+(01,!A*<7!,*/<)827;!@)(A!84*!<.(F*!*&;&!84*!9(AA288**!9<77(8!
)*]*98!<//129<82(73!(7!A()<1!;)(07,3&!!

%&$ K<94!9<3*!+211!.*!,*92,*,!(7!283!A*)283&!!
%&% -4*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!+211!7(8!4<F*!)*;<),!8(!<7=!,*A<7,!2330*3!@()!84*!/)*A23*3&!!
%&5 Z4*)*!<7!<)*<!4<3!G7(+7!42;4!1*F*13!(@!();<723*,!9)2A*!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!

9(732,*)!9<)*@011=!+4*84*)!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3!<)*!3028<.1*!8(!.*!1(9<8*,!84*)*!<7,!
+4*84*)!9(7,282(73!A<=!.*!3028<.1*!3094!<3!84*!/)(F232(7!(@!,(()!30/*)F23()3&!

%&N H<84*)!84<7!)*]*98!<//129<82(73!(08)2;48>!+4*)*F*)!/(332.1*!84*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!+211!
1((G!8(!+()G!+284!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3!<7,!8<9G1*!9(79*)73!+284!129*79*!9(7,282(73!84<8!
0/4(1,!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3&!d(+*F*)>!+4*)*!84*)*!<)*!)*<3(73!84<8!;)<7827;!<!
129*79*!+(01,!7(8!.*!9(73238*78!+284!^<D!O!^,D!<.(F*>!84*!<//129<82(7!+211!7()A<11=!.*!
)*@03*,&!

%&P 67!<99(),<79*!+284!84*!B02,<79*!@)(A!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7>!+*!+211!92)901<8*!
X91*<)!<7,!9(A/)*4*732F*I!)*<3(73!@()!<7=!,*9232(7!8(!<11!/<)82*3&!Z*!+211!<13(!928*!84*!
*`8*78!8(!+4294!,*9232(73!4<F*!.**7!A<,*!27!<99(),<79*!+284!84*!L(07921I3!;<A.127;!
/(129=!<7,!84*!B02,<79*!@)(A!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7&!

d(+!84*!129*7327;!9(AA288**!,*92,*3!+4<8!9(7,282(73!8(!<//1=!8(!/)*A23*3!

129*79*3 
%&Q [)*A23*3!Y29*79*3!A<=!.*!30.]*98!8(!<7=!()!<11!(@!84*!@(11(+27;C!!

• L(7,282(73!3/*92@2*,!27!84*!B<A.127;!:98!#TT5!!

Page 37

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! #N!

• L(7,282(73!3/*92@2*,!27!84*!)*;01<82(73!2330*,!.=!84*!e*9)*8<)=!(@!e8<8*!!
• L(7,282(73!<88<94*,!.=!\<794*38*)!L28=!L(07921I3!Y29*7327;!L(AA288**!@(11(+27;!
<!4*<)27;!^+4*)*!7*9*33<)=D&!

%&R Z284!)*3/*98!8(!9(7,282(73>!129*7327;!<084()282*3!<)*!<.1*!8(C!!

• 6330*!129*79*3!+284(08!A(,2@=27;!9(7,282(73!3*8!(08!27!84*!:98!<7,!.=!84*!
e*9)*8<)=!(@!e8<8*!

• K`910,*!,*@<018!9(7,282(73!!
• :88<94!9(7,282(73!+4*)*!28!23!.*12*F*,!8(!.*!<//)(/)2<8*!
• L(7,282(73!A<=!.*!;*7*)<1!27!7<80)*!^2&*&!84*=!<88<94!8(!<11!129*79*3!(@!<!/<)82901<)!
/)*A23*3!8=/*!*&;&!<11!9<327(3D!()!84*=!A<=!.*!3/*92@29!8(!<!/<)82901<)!129*79*&!!

%&"T Z*!+211!*730)*!84<8!<7=!9(7,282(73!+*!2A/(3*!<)*C!!

• [)(/()82(7<8*!8(!84*!92)90A38<79*3!+4294!84*=!<)*!3**G27;!8(!<,,)*33!!!
• H*1*F<78!8(!84*!7**,!8(!A<G*!84*!/)(/(3*,!.021,27;!3028<.1*!<3!<!;<A.127;!
@<92128=!

• M2)*981=!)*1<8*,!8(!84*!/)*A23*3!<7,!84*!8=/*!(@!129*79*!<//12*,!@()!
• '<2)1=!<7,!)*<3(7<.1=!)*1<8*,!8(!84*!39<1*!<7,!8=/*!(@!/)*A23*3!
• H*<3(7<.1*!27!<11!(84*)!)*3/*983&!!

%&"" -4*)*!<)*!<13(!9(7,282(73>!+4294!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!9<77(8!<88<94!8(!/)*A23*3!
129*79*3C!

• L(7,282(73!(7!<!/)*A23*3!129*79*!+4294!A<G*!28!2A/(332.1*!8(!9(A/1=!+284!<7!
(/*)<827;!129*79*!9(7,282(7!!

• L(7,282(73!)*1<827;!8(!;<A27;!A<9427*!9<8*;()2*3>!70A.*)3>!()!A*84(,!(@!
(/*)<82(7!

• L(7,282(73!84<8!)*?02)*!A*A.*)342/!(@!<!910.!()!.(,=&!^-4*!B<A.127;!:98!
3/*92@29<11=!)*A(F*3!84*!A*A.*)342/!)*?02)*A*78!@()!9<327(!<7,!.27;(!910.3!<7,!
8423!/)(F232(7!/)*F*783!28!.*27;!)*2738<8*,D!

• L(7,282(73!)*1<827;!8(!38<G*3>!@**3>!+27727;3!()!/)2S*3!
• L(7,282(73!)*1<827;!8(!,*A<7,!@()!84*!/)*A23*3&!

%&"# M*9232(73!<.(08!9(7,282(73!+211!.*!8<G*7!(7!<!9<3*O.=O9<3*!.<323!9(732,*)27;!B<A.127;!
L(AA2332(7!;02,<79*>!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!L(,*3!(@![)<9829*>!84*!Y29*7327;!
W.]*982F*3!<7,!(0)!/(129=&!

Page 38

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! #P!

M*8*)A2727;!+4*84*)!8(!)*F2*+!<!129*79*!! !
%&"$ :@8*)!<!129*79*!23!;)<78*,>!+4*)*!84*!,<=!8(!,<=!(/*)<82(7!(@!<!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3!23!7(8!

@*18!8(!.*!X)*<3(7<.1=!9(73238*78!+284!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3I>!<!)*F2*+!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!
129*79*!9<7!.*!)*?0*38*,!<8!<7=!82A*&!!

%&"% :!)*F2*+!A<=!.*!27282<8*,!.=!84*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!()!<3!<!)*3018!(@!<7!<//129<82(7!@()!
)*F2*+!@)(A!<7!278*)*38*,!/<)8=!()!)*3/(732.1*!<084()28=&!Z4*)*!28!23!84*!Y29*7327;!
:084()28=!84<8!27282<8*!84*!)*F2*+>!84*=!A<=!,(!8423!@()!<!+4(1*!91<33!(@!/)*A23*3!*&;&!<11!
:,018!B<A27;!L*78)*3!()!27!)*1<82(7!8(!/<)82901<)!/)*A23*3&!-4*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!9<7!
)*F2*+!<!129*79*!@()!<7=!)*<3(7!28!8427G3!<//)(/)2<8*&!!

%&"5 Z4*)*!<7!<//129<82(7!@()!)*F2*+!23!)*9*2F*,!@)(A!<7!278*)*38*,!/<)8=!()!)*3/(732.1*!
<084()28=>!<3!<!129*7327;!<084()28=!+*!A038!,*92,*!+4*84*)!8(!;(!<4*<,!+284!84*!)*F2*+&!
-4*!<//129<82(7!@()!)*F2*+!+211!.*!9(732,*)*,!.<3*,!(7!84*!@(11(+27;C!

• M(*3!84*!)*?0*38!)<23*!2330*3!(84*)!84<7!84(3*!@(07,!07,*)!84*!B<A.127;!
L(AA2332(7I3!B02,<79*>!L(,*3!(@![)<9829*>!84*!Y29*7327;!W.]*982F*3!()!(0)!
;<A.127;!/(129=r 

• !63!28!2))*1*F<78>!@)2F(1(03!()!F*`<82(03r 

• 63!28!3(!A27()!84<8!84*!<084()28=!+211!9*)8<271=!7(8!+234!8(!)*F(G*!()!303/*7,!84*!
129*79*!()!)*A(F*>!<A*7,!()!<88<94!9(7,282(73r 

• 63!28!30.38<782<11=!84*!3<A*!<3!<!/)*F2(03!<//129<82(7!@()!)*F2*+!)*1<827;!8(!84*!
3<A*!/)*A23*3r 

• 63!84*!<//129<82(7!@()!)*F2*+!30.38<782<11=!84*!3<A*!<3!<!)*/)*3*78<82(7!A<,*!<8!
84*!82A*!84*!<//129<82(7!@()!<!/)*A23*3!129*79*!+<3!9(732,*)*,r! 

%&"N 6@!84*!<73+*)!8(!:Vl!(@!84*!<.(F*!?0*382(73!23!X=*3I>!84*!)*?0*38!@()!)*F2*+!A<=!.*!
)*]*98*,&!-4*!/0)/(3*!(@!84*!)*F2*+!23!8(!,*8*)A27*!2@!84*!129*7327;!9(AA288**!34(01,!
8<G*!<7=!<982(7!27!)*1<82(7!8(!84*!129*79*&!6@!<982(7!23!7**,*,>!84*!(/82(73!<)*!8(!*284*)C!

• H*F(G*!84*!/)*A23*3!129*79*!s!
• e03/*7,!84*!/)*A23*3!129*79*!@()!<!/*)2(,!7(8!*`9**,27;!84)**!A(7843!
• K`910,*!<!,*@<018!9(7,282(7!2A/(3*,!.=!84*!e*9)*8<)=!(@!e8<8*!^)*1<827;!8(>!@()!
*`<A/1*>!(/*727;!4(0)3D!()!)*A(F*!()!<A*7,!3094!<7!*`91032(7!

• :,,>!)*A(F*!()!<A*7,!<!129*79*!9(7,282(7!/)*F2(031=!2A/(3*,!.=!84*!Y29*7327;!
:084()28=!

Page 39

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! #Q!

%&"P -(!,*92,*!+4<8!<982(7>!2@!<7=>!7**,3!8(!.*!8<G*7!@(11(+27;!<7!<//129<82(7!@()!)*F2*+>!84*!
129*7327;!9(AA288**!+211!A<G*!283!,*8*)A27<82(7C!!

• 67!<99(),<79*!+284!<7=!)*1*F<78!9(,*!(@!/)<9829*!2330*,!.=!84*!B<A.127;!
L(AA2332(7!

• 67!<99(),<79*!+284!)*1*F<78!;02,<79*!2330*,!.=!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!
• 67!3(!@<)!<3!28!23!)*<3(7<.1=!9(73238*78!+284!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3!
• 67!<99(),<79*!+284!84*!<084()28=I3!38<8*A*78!(@!129*7327;!/(129=!

%&"Q -4*!9(AA288**!+211!<13(!9(732,*)!<7=!)*1*F<78!)*/)*3*78<82(73!<7,!27@()A<82(7!;2F*7!<8!
84*!4*<)27;&!L(,*3!()!/)<9829*!<7,!84*!;02,<79*!)*@*))*,!8(!<.(F*!A<=!.*!(.8<27*,!
@)(A!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7&!

Page 40

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! #R!

5. H*1*F<78!@<98()3!+4*7!9(732,*)27;!<//129<82(73!<7,!)*F2*+3 

5&" 67!9(732,*)27;!<//129<82(73!@()!7*+!;<A.127;!129*79*3>!F<)2<82(73!8(!*`23827;!129*79*3!
<7,!129*79*!)*F2*+3!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!9(732,*)!84*!@(11(+27;!A<88*)3C! ! !

• 84*!1(9<82(7!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!!
• 84*!Y(9<1!:)*<![)(@21*!!
• 84*!Y(9<1!H23G!:33*33A*78!^YH:D!!
• 84*!F2*+3!(@!)*3/(732.1*!<084()282*3!!
• 84*!F2*+3!(@!278*)*38*,!/<)82*3!!
• !9(A/12<79*!4238()=!(@!90))*78!A<7<;*A*78!!
• !84*!4(0)3!(@!(/*)<82(7!! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
• !84*!8=/*!(@!/)*A23*3!!! ! ! ! ! ! !
• 84*!(/*)<82(7!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!27!<99(),<79*!+284!84*!*`/*98<82(73!(@!84*!
129*7327;!<084()28=>!<3!3*8!(08!27!8423!/(129=!

• !84*!/4=329<1!3028<.2128=!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!!
• !84*!1*F*13!(@!9)2A*!<7,!,23(),*)!27!84*!<)*<!!
• !84*!1*F*1!(@!,*/)2F<82(7!<7,!211!4*<184!27!84*!<)*<!!

5&# -4*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!.*12*F*3!84<8!8423!1238!23!7(8!*`4<0382F*!<7,!84*)*!A<=!.*!(84*)!
@<98()3!+4294!A<=!<)23*!84<8!9(01,!.*!9(732,*)*,!)*1*F<78&!-4*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!+211!
9(732,*)!84*!)*1*F<79*!(@!<7=!<,,282(7<1!@<98()3!)<23*,!(7!<!9<3*O.=O9<3*!.<323&!

Y(9<82(7!(@!84*!/)*A23*3 
5&$ -4*!1(9<82(7!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!+211!.*!<7!2A/()8<78!@<98()!<3!28!9<7!2A/<98!(7!<11!84)**!(@!

84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3&!-4*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!+211!9(732,*)!F*)=!9<)*@011=!<//129<82(73!
@()!/)*A23*3!129*79*3!84<8!<)*!1(9<8*,!27!91(3*!/)(`2A28=!8(!3*73282F*!/)*A23*3!3094!<3C!

• e94((13>!27910,27;!072F*)3282*3!
• [<)G3>!38<82(73>!(84*)!8)<73/()8!40.3!<7,!/1<9*3!+4*)*!1<);*!70A.*)3!(@!394((1!
!9421,)*7!A2;48!.*!*`/*98*,!!

• (84*)!/)*A23*3!129*73*,!@()!;<A.127;!!
• /)*A23*3!129*73*,!@()!<19(4(1!!
• 9421,)*7I3!<7,!F017*)<.1*!/*)3(73I!9*78)*3!<7,!<99(AA(,<82(7!!
• =(084!<7,!9(AA0728=!9*78)*3!!

Page 41

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! $T!

• 4*<184!<7,!8)*<8A*78!9*78)*3!!
• 1*230)*!9*78)*3!03*,!@()!3/()827;!<7,!32A21<)!<982F282*3!.=!=(07;!/*)3(73!<7,J()!
F017*)<.1*!/*)3(73!!

• )*12;2(03!9*78)*3!<7,!/0.129!/1<9*3!(@!+()342/! ! !

5&% -4*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!*`/*983!*<94!/)*A23*3!8(!/)(,09*!<7,!G**/!(7!84*!/)*A23*3!<!
1(9<1!)23G!<33*33A*78>!9(F*)27;!84*!<)*<3!3*8!(08!27!8423!/(129=&!

B<A.127;O)*1<8*,!4<)A! ! 
5&5 E*8+**7!N"!<7,!P$!/*)9*78!(@!E)28234!<,0183!;<A.1*!8(!3(A*!*`8*78!*<94!=*<)&!'()!84*!

A<]()28=!(@!84*3*!/*(/1*>!;<A.127;!23!<!4<)A1*33!<7,!3(92<.1*!<982F28=&!d(+*F*)>!
.*8+**7!T&%!<7,!"&"!/*)9*78!(@!E)28234!<,0183!<)*!*382A<8*,!8(!.*!X/)(.1*A!;<A.1*)3I!
+4(!*`/*)2*79*!4<)A!<3!<!9(73*?0*79*!(@!84*2)!;<A.127;&!:!@0)84*)!%!/*)9*78!<)*!
*382A<8*,!8(!.*!X<8O)23G!;<A.1*)3I!+4(!A<=!;(!(7!8(!.*9(A*!/)(.1*A!;<A.1*)3&a"b!!

5&N [)(.1*A!;<A.127;!4<3!.**7!,*@27*,!<3!o;<A.127;!8(!<!,*;)**!84<8!9(A/)(A23*3>!
,23)0/83!()!,<A<;*3!@<A21=>!/*)3(7<1!()!)*9)*<82(7<1!/0)30283pa#b&!\<1*3!<)*!5!82A*3!
A()*!12G*1=!84<7!@*A<1*3!8(!.*!/)(.1*A!;<A.1*)3&![)(.1*A!;<A.127;!<13(!F<)2*3!.=!<;*!
+284!=(07;!/*(/1*!<;*,!"NO#%!84*!A(38!12G*1=!8(!.*!<@@*98*,&![)(.1*A!;<A.127;!
,23/)(/()82(7<8*1=!<@@*983!/*(/1*!(7!1(+!279(A*3!<7,!84(3*!@)(A!*84729!A27()282*3&!
67,2F2,0<13!(@!:32<7J:32<7!E)28234!4*)28<;*!<7,!E1<9GJE1<9G!E)28234!4*)28<;*!<)*!A()*!
12G*1=!8(!.*!/)(.1*A!;<A.1*)3!84<7!/*(/1*!+4(!2,*782@=!<3!Z428*JZ428*!E)28234a$b&!

5&P '()!/)(.1*A!;<A.1*)3>!4<)A3!9<7!27910,*!42;4*)!1*F*13!(@!/4=329<1!<7,!A*78<1!2117*33>!
,*.8!/)(.1*A3>!)*1<82(7342/!.)*<G,(+7!<7,!9)2A27<128=&![)(.1*A!;<A.127;!23!<13(!
<33(92<8*,!+284!,(A*3829!F2(1*79*!<7,!30.38<79*!A2303*&!d<)A3!@)(A!;<A.127;!<@@*98!
@<)!A()*!/*(/1*!84<7!]038!84*!/)(.1*A!;<A.1*)C!28!23!*382A<8*,!84<8!@()!*F*)=!4<)A@01!
;<A.1*)>!.*8+**7!N!<7,!"T!<,,282(7<1!/*(/1*!<)*!,2)*981=!<@@*98*,!^3094!<3!@)2*7,3>!
@<A21=!()!9(11*<;0*3Da%b&![)(.1*A!;<A.127;!<13(!4<3!<!32;72@29<78!2A/<98!(7!/0.129!
@27<79*3!,0*!8(!279)*<3*,!9(383!8(!84*!+*1@<)*>!4(0327;>!4*<184!<7,!9)2A27<1!]03829*!
3*98()3&!'()!84*3*!)*<3(73>!;<A.127;O)*1<8*,!4<)A!23!279)*<327;1=!)*9(;723*,!<3!<!
/0.129!4*<184!2330*&!!
!

[1] Institute for Public Policy and Research (2016). Cards on the table. The cost to government associated with 
people who are problem gamblers in Britain. !
[2] Lesieur, H. R. & Rosenthal, M. D. (1991). Pathological gambling: A review of the literature (prepared for the 
American Psychiatric Association Task Force on DSM-IV Committee on disorders of impulse control not elsewhere 
classified). Journal of Gambling Studies, 7 (1), 5-40.!
[3] See 1 above.!

Page 42

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! $"!

[4] Local Government Association and Public Health England (2018). Tackling gambling related harm, A whole 
council approach.!

Y(9<1!)23G!<33*33A*783 
5&Q Y29*73**3!<)*!)*?02)*,!8(!07,*)8<G*!<!1(9<1!)23G!<33*33A*78!+4*7!<//1=27;!@()!<!7*+!

/)*A23*3!129*79*&!-4*2)!)23G!<33*33A*78!A038!<13(!.*!0/,<8*,C!

• +4*7!<//1=27;!@()!<!F<)2<82(7!(@!<!/)*A23*3!129*79*!
• 8(!8<G*!<99(078!(@!32;72@29<78!94<7;*3!27!1(9<1!92)90A38<79*3>!27910,27;!84(3*!
2,*782@2*,!27!<!129*7327;!<084()28=I3!/(129=!38<8*A*78!

• +4*7!84*)*!<)*!32;72@29<78!94<7;*3!<8!<!129*73**I3!/)*A23*3!84<8!A<=!<@@*98!84*2)!
A282;<82(7!(@!1(9<1!)23G3&!

5&R Y29*73**3!A038!<33*33!84*!1(9<1!)23G3!8(!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3!/(3*,!.=!84*!/)(F232(7!
(@!;<A.127;!@<921282*3!<8!*<94!(@!84*2)!/)*A23*3>!<7,!4<F*!/(1292*3>!/)(9*,0)*3!<7,!
9(78)(1!A*<30)*3!8(!A282;<8*!84(3*!)23G3&!67!07,*)8<G27;!84*2)!)23G!<33*33A*783>!84*=!
A038!8<G*!278(!<99(078!)*1*F<78!A<88*)3!2,*782@2*,!27!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=I3!/(129=!
38<8*A*78&!

5&"T 67!9(7,09827;!84*2)!)23G!<33*33A*78>!84*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!+211!*`/*98!(/*)<8()3!8(!
@(11(+!84*!;*7*)<1!/)2792/1*3!(@!)23G!<33*33A*78C!

"D 6,*782@=!4<S<),3!^8427G!<.(08!+4<8!A<=!9<03*!4<)A!0327;!84*!27@()A<82(7!/)(F2,*,!
.*1(+!<3!<!;02,*!<7,!<7=!(84*)!A<88*)3!=(0!9(732,*)!)*1*F<78D!

#D :33*33!84*!)23G3!^,*92,*!4(+!12G*1=!28!23!84<8!3(A*(7*!9(01,!.*!4<)A*,!<7,!4(+!
3*)2(03!28!9(01,!.*&!-423!23!<33*3327;!84*!1*F*1!(@!)23GD&!M*92,*C!
2D Z4(!A2;48!.*!4<)A*,!<7,!4(+!
22D Z4<8!=(0c)*!<1)*<,=!,(27;!8(!9(78)(1!84*!)23G3!
222D Z4<8!@0)84*)!<982(7!=(0!7**,!8(!8<G*!8(!9(78)(1!84*!)23G3!
2FD Z4(!7**,3!8(!9<))=!(08!84*!<982(7!
FD Z4*7!84*!<982(7!23!7**,*,!.=!

$D L(78)(1!84*!)23G3!^Y((G!<8!+4<8!=(0c)*!<1)*<,=!,(27;>!<7,!84*!9(78)(13!=(0!<1)*<,=!
4<F*!27!/1<9*&D!:3G!=(0)3*1@C!
2D L<7!6!;*8!)2,!(@!84*!4<S<),!<18(;*84*)r!
22D 6@!7(8>!4(+!9<7!6!9(78)(1!84*!)23G3!3(!84<8!4<)A!23!0712G*1=r!

%D H*9(),!=(0)!@27,27;3!^)*9(),!=(0)!32;72@29<78!@27,27;3D>!27910,27;C!
2D 84*!4<S<),3!^8427;3!84<8!A<=!9<03*!4<)AD!
22D +4(!A2;48!.*!4<)A*,!<7,!4(+!

Page 43

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! $#!

222D +4<8!=(0!<)*!,(27;!8(!9(78)(1!84*!)23G3!
5D H*F2*+!84*!9(78)(13&!^l(0!A038!)*F2*+!84*!9(78)(13!=(0!4<F*!/08!27!/1<9*!8(!A<G*!
30)*!84*=!<)*!+()G27;&D!l(0!34(01,!<13(!)*F2*+!84*A!2@C!
2D 84*=!A<=!7(!1(7;*)!.*!*@@*982F*!
22D :13(!9(732,*)!<!)*F2*+!2@!=(0)!+()G*)3!4<F*!3/(88*,!<7=!/)(.1*A3!()!84*)*!
4<F*!.**7!<7=!<992,*783!()!7*<)!A233*3&!

222D 8(!8<G*!<99(078!(@!32;72@29<78!94<7;*3!27!1(9<1!92)90A38<79*3>!27910,27;!84(3*!
2,*782@2*,!27!8423!/(129=!38<8*A*78!

2FD +4*7!84*)*!<)*!32;72@29<78!94<7;*3!<8!84*!/)*A23*3!84<8!A<=!<@@*98!=(0)!
A282;<82(7!(@!1(9<1!)23G3!

FD U/,<8*!=(0)!)23G!<33*33A*78!)*9(),!+284!<7=!94<7;*3!=(0!A<G*&!

5&"" -4*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!9(732,*)3!84*!@(11(+27;!<3!32;72@29<78!94<7;*3!<8!84*!/)*A23*3!
84<8!A<=!<@@*98!=(0)!A282;<82(7!(@!1(9<1!)23G3C!

• e8<@@27;!94<7;*3!
• Y<=(08!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!
• L4<7;*3!8(!;<A27;!@<921282*3!/)(F2,*,!

5&"# -4*!:084()28=!+211!*`/*98!84*!1(9<1!)23G!<33*33A*78!8(!9(732,*)!84*!0).<7!3*8827;C!!

• -4*!/)(`2A28=!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!8(!394((13!
• -4*!9(AA*)92<1!*7F2)(7A*78!
• '<98()3!<@@*9827;!84*!@((8@<11!
• Z4*84*)!84*!/)*A23*3!23!27!<7!<)*<!(@!,*/)2F<82(7!
• Z4*84*)!84*!/)*A23*3!23!27!<7!<)*<!30.]*98!8(!42;4!1*F*13!(@!9)2A*!<7,J()!,23(),*)!
• -4*!*84729!/)(@21*!(@!)*32,*783!27!84*!<)*<&!
• -4*!,*A(;)</4293!(@!84*!<)*<!27!)*1<82(7!8(!F017*)<.1*!;)(0/3!
• -4*!1(9<82(7!(@!3*)F29*3!@()!9421,)*7!3094!<3!394((13>!/1<=;)(07,3>!8(=!34(/3>!
1*230)*!9*78)*3!<7,!(84*)!<)*<3!+4*)*!9421,)*7!+211!;<84*)!

• -4*!)<7;*!(@!@<921282*3!27!84*!1(9<1!<)*<!3094!<3!(84*)!;<A.127;!(081*83>!.<7G3>!
/(38!(@@29*3>!)*@)*34A*78!<7,!*78*)8<27A*78!8=/*!@<921282*3!

• j7(+7!/)(.1*A3!27!84*!<)*<!3094!<3!/)(.1*A3!<)2327;!@)(A!38)**8!,)27G*)3>!
=(0843!/<)8292/<827;!27!<782O3(92<1!.*4<F2(0)>!,)0;!,*<127;!<982F28=>!*89&!

• -4*!/)(`2A28=!(@!940)94*3>!A(3?0*3>!8*A/1*3!()!<7=!(84*)!/1<9*!(@!+()342/!

Page 44

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! $$!

5&"$ -4*!1(9<1!)23G!<33*33A*78!A038!34(+!4(+!F017*)<.1*!/*(/1*>!27910,27;!/*(/1*!+284!
;<A.127;!,*/*7,*792*3>!<)*!/)(8*98*,!84)(0;4C!

• -4*!8)<2727;!(@!38<@@!27!.)2*@!278*)F*782(7!+4*7!9038(A*)3!34(+!32;73!(@!*`9*332F*!
;<A.127;>!84*!<.2128=!(@!38<@@!8(!(@@*)!.)2*@!278*)F*782(7!<7,!4(+!84*!A<7727;!(@!
/)*A23*3!<@@*983!8423&!

• 67@()A<82(7!4*1,!.=!84*!129*73**!)*;<),27;!3*1@O*`91032(73!<7,!2792,*79*3!(@!
07,*)<;*!;<A.127;&!!

• :))<7;*A*783!27!/1<9*!@()!1(9<1!*`94<7;*!(@!<7(7=A23*,!27@()A<82(7!)*;<),27;!
3*1@O*`91032(7!<7,!;<A27;!8)*7,3&!

• B<A27;!8)*7,3!84<8!A<=!A2))()!,<=3!@()!@27<792<1!/<=A*783!3094!<3!/<=!,<=3!()!
.*7*@28!/<=A*783&!

• :))<7;*A*783!@()!A(728()27;!<7,!,*<127;!+284!07,*)<;*!/*(/1*!<7,!F017*)<.1*!
/*(/1*>!+4294!A<=!27910,*C!

o ,*,29<8*,!<7,!8)<27*,!/*)3(77*1!
o 1*<@1*83!<7,!/(38*)3!
o 3*1@O*`91032(7!394*A*3!
o +27,(+!,23/1<=3!<7,!<,F*)823*A*783!,*32;7*,!8(!7(8!*7829*!9421,)*7!<7,!
F017*)<.1*!/*(/1*&!

• -4*!/)(F232(7!(@!32;7<;*!<7,!,(90A*783!)*1<827;!8(!;<A*3!)01*3>!;<A.127;!9<)*!
/)(F2,*)3!<7,!(84*)!)*1*F<78!27@()A<82(7!.*!/)(F2,*,!27!.(84!K7;1234!<7,!84*!
(84*)!/)(A27*78!@2)38!1<7;0<;*!@()!84<8!1(9<128=!

• -4*!/)(`2A28=!(@!/)*A23*3!84<8!A<=!.*!@)*?0*78*,!.=!F017*)<.1*!/*(/1*!3094!<3!
4(3/28<13>!)*32,*782<1!9<)*!4(A*3>!A*,29<1!@<921282*3>!,(98()!30);*)2*3>!9(07921!
9(AA0728=!40.3>!<,,2982(7!9127293!()!4*1/!9*78)*3>!/1<9*3!+4*)*!<19(4(1!()!,)0;!
,*/*7,*78!/*(/1*!A<=!9(7;)*;<8*!

5&"% -4*!1(9<1!)23G!<33*33A*78!34(01,!34(+!4(+!9421,)*7!<)*!8(!.*!/)(8*98*,C!!

• -4*!/)(`2A28=!(@!273828082(73>!/1<9*3!()!<)*<3!+4*)*!9421,)*7!<7,!=(07;!/*(/1*!
@)*?0*78!3094!<3!394((13>!=(084!910.3>!/<)G3>!/1<=;)(07,3!<7,!*78*)8<27A*78!
F*70*3!3094!<3!.(+127;!<112*3>!927*A<3>!*89&!

• -4*!/)(`2A28=!(@!/1<9*!+4*)*!9421,)*7!9(7;)*;<8*!3094!<3!.03!38(/3>!9<@*3>!
34(/3&!

Page 45

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! $%!

• :)*<3!84<8!<)*!/)(7*!8(!2330*3!(@!=(0843!/<)8292/<827;!27!<782O3(92<1!.*4<F2(0)>!
27910,27;!<982F282*3!3094!<3!;)<@@282>!8<;;27;>!07,*)<;*!,)27G27;!*89&!

5&"5 W84*)!A<88*)3!84<8!84*!<33*33A*78!+211!27910,*!<3!<//)(/)2<8*C!O!!

• M*8<213!<3!8(!84*!1(9<82(7!<7,!9(F*)<;*!(@!+()G27;!LL-k!9<A*)<3>!<7,!4(+!84*!
3=38*A!+211!.*!A(728()*,&!

• -4*!1<=(08!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!3(!84<8!38<@@!4<F*!<7!07(.38)098*,!F2*+!(@!/*(/1*!
0327;!84*!/)*A23*3&!

• -4*!70A.*)!(@!38<@@!84<8!+211!.*!<F<21<.1*!(7!84*!/)*A23*3!<8!<7=!(7*!82A*&!6@!<8!
<7=!82A*!84<8!70A.*)!23!(7*>!9(7@2)A!84*!30/*)F23()=!<7,!A(728()27;!
<))<7;*A*783!+4*7!84<8!/*)3(7!23!<.3*78!@)(A!84*!129*73*,!<)*<!()!,238)<98*,!
@)(A!30/*)F2327;!84*!/)*A23*3!<7,!(.3*)F27;!84(3*!/*(/1*!0327;!84*!/)*A23*3&!

• Z4*)*!84*!<//129<82(7!23!@()!<!.*8827;!/)*A23*3!129*79*>!(84*)!84<7!27!)*3/*98!(@!<!
8)<9G>!84*!1(9<82(7!<7,!*`8*78!(@!<7=!/<)8!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!+4294!+211!.*!03*,!8(!
/)(F2,*!@<921282*3!@()!;<A.127;!27!)*12<79*!(7!84*!129*79*&!

5&"N e094!27@()A<82(7!A<=!.*!03*,!8(!27@()A!84*!,*9232(7!84*!:084()28=!A<G*3!<.(08!
+4*84*)!8(!;)<78!84*!129*79*>!8(!;)<78!84*!129*79*!+284!3/*92<1!9(7,282(73>!()!8(!)*@03*!84*!
<//129<82(7&!!

5&"P -423!/(129=!,(*3!7(8!/)*910,*!<7=!<//129<82(7!.*27;!A<,*!<7,!*<94!<//129<82(7!+211!.*!
,*92,*,!(7!283!A*)283>!+284!84*!(703!.*27;!0/(7!84*!<//129<78!8(!34(+!4(+!84*!9(79*)73!
9<7!.*!(F*)9(A*&!

Y(9<1!:)*<![)(@21* 

5&"Q -4*!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)!B<A.127;!d<)A3!H*,0982(7!/)(;)<AA*!23!1238*727;!8(!
)*32,*783!+284!12F*,!*`/*)2*79*!(@!;<A.127;!<7,!23!9(AA2332(727;!283!(+7!)*3*<)94!8(!
.*88*)!07,*)38<7,!/)(.1*A!;<A.127;!27!84*!)*;2(7&!:3!@27,27;3!@)(A!8423!)*3*<)94!
*A*);*>!129*73*!4(1,*)3!+211!.*!*`/*98*,!8(!30//()8!84*!,*12F*)=!(@!)*9(AA*7,<82(73!8(!
4*1/!A272A2S*!;<A.127;!4<)A3!8(!84*!1(9<1!/(/01<82(73&!-423!)*3*<)94!<7,!*F2,*79*!+211!
.*!<F<21<.1*!(7127*!<8C!488/3CJJ+++&;)*<8*)A<794*38*)O9<&;(F&0GJ+4<8O+*O
,(J4*<184J;<A.127;J07,*)38<7,27;O;<A.127;O)*1<8*,O4<)A3J!<7,!34(01,!.*!)*@*))*,!8(!27!
Y(9<1!H23G!:33*33A*783&!

Page 46

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! $5!

d(+!84*!/)*A23*3!+211!(/*)<8*!9(73238*78!+284!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3 
5&"R Z*!*`/*98!42;4!38<7,<),3!@)(A!<11!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3&!W/*)<8()3!+211!.*!*`/*98*,!8(!

,*A(738)<8*!84<8!84*=!4<F*!;2F*7!9<)*@01!9(732,*)<82(7!8(!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3!<7,!
4<F*!<//)(/)2<8*!A*<30)*3!27!/1<9*!8(!0/4(1,!84*A&!

5&#T -4*!@(11(+27;!/<)<;)</43!27,29<8*!84*!/4=329<1!<7,!A<7<;*A*78!@<98()3!84<8!84*!
129*7327;!<084()28=!A<=!8<G*!278(!<99(078!+4*7!9(732,*)27;!<//129<82(73!@()!7*+>!F<)2*,!
129*79*!<//129<82(73!<7,!)*F2*+3&!-4*3*!<)*!7(8!A<7,<8()=!)*?02)*A*783!.08!34(01,!.*!
03*,!<3!<!;02,*!8(!<//129<783!<7,!129*73**3!<3!8(!84*!3()8!(@!<))<7;*A*783!84<8!28!34(01,!
4<F*!27!/1<9*!<7,!,*A(738)<8*!84*3*!<)*!27!/1<9*!84)(0;4!84*2)!.*3/(G*!)23G!
<33*33A*78&!Z4*)*!<7!<//129<78!()!129*73**!9<7!,*A(738)<8*!84<8!84*3*!@<98()3!<)*!7(8!
)*1*F<78>!()!<18*)7<82F*!<))<7;*A*783!<)*!A()*!<//)(/)2<8*>!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!
8<G*!84*3*!278(!<99(078&!

[)*F*7827;!;<A.127;!@)(A!.*27;!<!3(0)9*!(@!9)2A*!()!,23(),*)>!.*27;!<33(92<8*,!

+284!9)2A*!()!,23(),*)!()!.*27;!03*,!8(!30//()8!9)2A*C 
5&#" -4*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!/1<=!<!1*<,27;!)(1*!27!/)*F*7827;!;<A.127;!@)(A!.*27;!<!

3(0)9*!(@!9)2A*>!84)(0;4!A<278<2727;!)2;()(03!/)(9*,0)*3!84<8!<2A!8(!/)*F*78!9)2A27<13!
@)(A!/)(F2,27;!@<921282*3!@()!;<A.127;>!()!.*27;!<33(92<8*,!+284!,(27;!3(>!<3!<!)*3018!(@!
84*!(/*)<827;!129*79*!/)(9*,0)*&!

5&## d(+*F*)>!<3!<!Y29*7327;!:084()28=>!+*!+211!8<G*!278(!<99(078!<7=!1(9<1!9(732,*)<82(73!
84<8!A<=!2A/<98!+284!)*;<),!8(!8423!129*7327;!(.]*982F*>!/<)82901<)1=!27!)*3/*98!8(!84*!
1(9<82(7!(@!84*!/)*A23*3>!8(!*730)*!84*!3028<.2128=!(@!84*!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3&!Z4*7!
9(732,*)27;!+4*84*)!<!,2380).<79*!+<3!3*)2(03!*7(0;4!8(!9(7382808*!,23(),*)>!+*!+211!
4<F*!)*;<),!8(!84*!27,2F2,0<1!A*)283!(@!84*!3280<82(7!27910,27;>!.08!7(8!12A28*,!8(>!+4*84*)!
/(129*!<33238<79*!+<3!)*?02)*,!<7,!4(+!84)*<8*727;!84*!.*4<F2(0)!+<3!8(!84(3*!+4(!
9(01,!3**!()!4*<)!28&!Z*!<9G7(+1*,;*!84<8!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!42;412;483!27!283!
;02,<79*!8(!1(9<1!<084()282*3!84<8!o,23(),*)!23!278*7,*,!8(!A*<7!<982F28=!84<8!23!A()*!
3*)2(03!<7,!,23)0/82F*!84<7!A*)*!7023<79*p&!

5&#$ Z42138!)*;01<8()=!2330*3!<)2327;!@)(A!84*!/)*F*782(7!(@!,23(),*)!<)*!12G*1=!8(!@(903!<1A(38!
*`91032F*1=!(7!/)*A23*3!129*7327;>!)<84*)!84<7!(7!(/*)<827;!129*79*3i!2@!84*)*!<)*!
/*)3238*78!()!3*)2(03!,23(),*)!/)(.1*A3!84<8!+*!9(732,*)!<7!(/*)<8()!9(01,!()!34(01,!,(!
A()*!8(!/)*F*78>!+*!+211!.)27;!8423!8(!84*!<88*782(7!(@!84*!L(AA2332(7!3(!84<8!28!9<7!
9(732,*)!84*!9(7827027;!3028<.2128=!(@!84*!(/*)<8()!8(!4(1,!<7!(/*)<827;!129*79*!

Page 47

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! $N!

5&#% Y29*73**3!<7,!<//129<783!+211!.*!*`/*98*,!8(!,*A(738)<8*!84<8!84*=!4<F*!;2F*7!9<)*@01!
9(732,*)<82(7!8(!/)*F*7827;!;<A.127;!@)(A!.*27;!<!3(0)9*!(@!9)2A*!<7,!,23(),*)>!.*27;!
<33(92<8*,!+284!9)2A*!()!,23(),*)!()!.*27;!03*,!8(!30//()8!9)2A*&!!

5&#5 67!<,,282(7!8(!84*!7**,!8(!9(73018!<!1(9<1!L)2A*!H*,0982(7!W@@29*)>!84*!(/*)<8()3!(@!7*+!
/)*A23*3J/)*A23*3!07,*);(27;!<!)*@0).234A*78!34(01,!<13(!*7;<;*!+284!84*!/(129*I3!
<)9428*980)<1!12<23(7!0728!<8!84*!,*32;7!38<;*!8(!*730)*!9)2A*!/)*F*782(7!<7,!,*8*982(7&!

5&#N Z*!*79(0)<;*!84<8!/)*A23*3!12<23*!+284!84*2)!V*2;4.(0)4((,![(12927;!-*<A!8(!,*F*1(/!
)*1<82(7342/3!<8!<!1(9<1!1*F*1!<7,!/)(A(8*!*@@*982F*!9(AA0729<82(7!<7,!9(O(/*)<82(7&!
:,,282(7<11=>!(/*)<8()3!<)*!*`/*98*,!8(!<982F*1=!30//()8!<7,!/<)8292/<8*!27!<7=!1(9<1!
.0327*33!/<)87*)342/!394*A*3>!+4*)*!<7=!3094!394*A*3!<)*!27!(/*)<82(7>!<7,!+4*)*!
3094!394*A*3!<)*!)*<3(7<.1=!9(73238*78!+284!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3&!

5&#P -4*!A*<30)*3!8(!.*!9(732,*)*,!34(01,!27910,*C!!

• -4*!<))<7;*A*783!27!/1<9*!8(!9(78)(1!<99*33!^/)*F*7827;!07<084()23*,!<99*33!
34<11!7(8!.*!12A28*,!8(!84*!/)(F232(7!(@!30/*)F23()=!/*)3(77*1i!(84*)!(/82(73!A<=!
27910,*>!.08!<)*!7(8!12A28*,!8(>!82A*O1(9G!()!A<;1(9G!*78)<79*3D!

• -4*!(/*727;!4(0)3!!
• -4*!/)(F232(7!(@!)*;238*)*,!,(()!30/*)F23()3t!
• -4*!/)(F232(7!(@!LL-k!!
• -4*!70A.*)!(@!38<@@!(7!,08=!<7,!*@@*982F*!38<@@!8)<2727;>!*3/*92<11=!27!)*1<82(7!8(!
1(7*!+()G27;!

• -4*!/)(F232(7!(@!8(21*8!@<921282*3!!
• [)*F*782(7!(@!<7823(92<1!.*4<F2(0)!<33(92<8*,!+284!84*!/)*A23*3>!3094!<3!38)**8!
,)27G27;>!1288*)>!<982F28=!(0832,*!84*!/)*A23*3!27910,27;!84*!A<7<;*A*78!(@!912*783!
1*<F27;!84*!/)*A23*3!

• :,*?0<8*!12;4827;!2732,*!<7,!(08!^<//)(/)2<8*!8(!84*!/)*A23*3!27!?0*382(7D!8(!
*730)*!<;<2738!)(..*)=!<7,!(84*)!9(F*)8!<982F28=&!

t!W71=!38<@@!,2)*981=!*A/1(=*,!.=!L<327(3!<7,!E27;(!L10.3!4<F*!<7!*`*A/82(7!@)(A!e6:!
)*;238)<82(7&!Z4*)*!,(()!30/*)F23()3!<)*!/)(F2,*,!<8!84*3*!/)*A23*3!84*!(/*)<8()!34(01,!
*730)*!84<8!<7=!/*(/1*!*A/1(=*,!27!8423!9</<928=!<)*!@28!<7,!/)(/*)!8(!9<))=!(08!3094!
,082*3&![(332.1*!+<=3!8(!<942*F*!8423!9(01,!.*!8(!9<))=!(08!<!9)2A27<1!)*9(),3!^MEeD!
94*9G!(7!/(8*782<1!38<@@!<7,!@()!3094!/*)3(77*1!8(!4<F*!<88*7,*,!27,038)=!)*9(;723*,!
8)<2727;&!

Page 48

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! $P!

K730)27;!84<8!;<A.127;!23!9(7,098*,!27!<!@<2)!<7,!(/*7!+<= 
5&#Q B*7*)<11=>!8423!(.]*982F*!+211!.*!<,,)*33*,!.=C!

• -4*!A<7<;*A*78!(@!84*!;<A.127;!.0327*33!^27!9(7]07982(7!+284!84*!B<A.127;!
L(AA2332(7>!+4(!<)*!)*3/(732.1*!@()!233027;!<7,!*7@()9*A*78!(@!84*!(/*)<827;!
129*79*D&!

• -4*!/*)3(7<1!129*79*!4(1,*)3!/)(F27;!84*2)!3028<.2128=!<7,!<982(73!^+4294!<;<27!23!
84*!)*3/(732.2128=!(@!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7D!

5&#R Z4*)*!+*!303/*98!84<8!;<A.127;!23!7(8!.*27;!9(7,098*,!27!<!@<2)!<7,!(/*7!+<=>!+*!+211!
.)27;!8423!8(!84*!<88*782(7!(@!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7>!@()!84*2)!@0)84*)!9(732,*)<82(7>!
<7,!+()G!27!/<)87*)342/!+284!84*2)!(@@29*)3&!67!84*!9<3*!(@!84(3*!/)*A23*3!84<8!,(!7(8!
4(1,!<7!(/*)<827;!129*79*!3094!<3!8)<9G3>!<,,282(7<1!9(7,282(73!A<=!.*!)*?02)*,!
,*/*7,*78!(7!84*!)23G3!(08127*,!27!84*!<//129<82(7&!

[)(8*9827;!9421,)*7!<7,!(84*)!F017*)<.1*!/*)3(73!@)(A!.*27;!4<)A*,!()!*`/1(28*,!

.=!;<A.127; 

5&$T -4*!B<A.127;!:98!,*@27*3!X9421,)*7I!<3!84(3*!/*)3(73!07,*)!"N!=*<)3!(@!<;*!<7,!X=(07;!
/*)3(73I!<3!84(3*!/*)3(73!<;*,!"N!()!"P!=*<)3!(@!<;*&!-4*!8*)A!XF017*)<.1*!/*)3(73I!23!
7(8!,*@27*,!<7,!+4<8!9(7382808*3!4<)A!()!*`/1(28<82(7!+211!4<F*!8(!.*!9(732,*)*,!(7!<!
9<3*O.=O9<3*!.<323&!

5&$" B<A.127;O)*1<8*,!4<)A3!<)*!84*!<,F*)3*!2A/<983!@)(A!;<A.127;!(7!84*!4*<184!<7,!
+*11.*27;!(@!27,2F2,0<13>!@<A212*3>!9(AA07282*3!<7,!3(92*8=&!-4*3*!4<)A3!<)*!,2F*)3*>!
<@@*9827;!)*3(0)9*3>!)*1<82(7342/3!<7,!4*<184>!<7,!A<=!)*@1*98!<7!278*)/1<=!.*8+**7!
27,2F2,0<1>!@<A21=!<7,!9(AA0728=!/)(9*33*3&!-4*!4<)A@01!*@@*983!@)(A!;<A.127;!A<=!.*!
34()8O12F*,!.08!9<7!/*)3238>!4<F27;!1(7;*)O!8*)A!<7,!*7,0)27;!9(73*?0*79*3!84<8!9<7!
*`<9*).<8*!*`23827;!27*?0<1282*3&!

5&$# H*;<),!+211!.*!4<,!8(!90))*78!*F2,*79*!27!)*1<82(7!8(!F017*)<.2128=!8(!;<A.127;O)*1<8*,!
4<)A&!67!#T"5>!\<794*38*)!L28=!L(07921!27!/<)87*)342/!+284!Z*38A2738*)!L(07921!
9(AA2332(7*,!)*3*<)94!278(!8423!2330*!<7,!/0.1234*,!<!)*/()8C!K`/1()27;!<)*<O.<3*,!
F017*)<.2128=!8(!;<A.127;O)*1<8*,!4<)AC!Z4(!23!F017*)<.1*r!'27,27;3!@)(A!<!?029G!
39(/27;!)*F2*+!.=!d*<84*)!Z<),1*>!B<A.127;!<7,![1<9*!H*3*<)94!d0.>!B*(@080)*3!
"$84!g01=!#T"5&!e2A21<)1=>!67!#T"N!Y**,3!L28=!L(07921!9(AA2332(7*,!Y**,3!E*9G*88!
U72F*)328=!8(!07,*)8<G*!)*3*<)94!278(![)(.1*A!B<A.127;!!^[)(.1*A!B<A.127;!27!Y**,3i!

Page 49

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! $Q!

j*7=(7>!W)A*)(,>![<)3(73!<7,!Z<),1*>!#T"ND!1((G27;!3/*92@29<11=!<8!2,*782@=27;!;)(0/3!
(@!84*!3(92*8=!84<8!9(01,!.*!9(732,*)*,!^A()*D!F017*)<.1*!8(!/)(.1*A!;<A.127;C!

• l(07;*)!/*(/1*>!27910,27;!380,*783!
• -4(3*!+4(!<)*!07*A/1(=*,!<7,J()!+284!9(738)<27*,!@27<792<1!92)90A38<79*3 
• -4(3*!@)(A!A27()28=!*84729!;)(0/3 
• -4(3*!07,*)!84*!27@10*79*!(@!<19(4(1!()!,)0;3!
• [)(.1*A!;<A.1*)3!3**G27;!8)*<8A*78 
• d(A*1*33!/*(/1* 

• -4(3*!12F27;!27!<)*<3!(@!;)*<8*)!,*/)2F<82(7 

• -4(3*!+284!(84*)!A*78<1!4*<184!2330*3!<7,!30.38<79*!<.03*JA2303*!,23(),*)3 
• -4(3*!+284!/(()*)!278*11*980<1!@07982(727;! 
• L038(,2<1!<7,!7(7O9038(,2<1!(@@*7,*)3!

5&$$ Y29*73**3!<7,!<//129<783!+211!.*!*`/*98*,!8(!,*A(738)<8*!84*=!4<F*!9<)*@011=!
9(732,*)*,!4(+!8(!/)(8*98!9421,)*7!<7,!F017*)<.1*!/*)3(73!@)(A!4<)A!<7,!4<F*!
<,*?0<8*!<))<7;*A*783!@()!/)*F*7827;!07,*)<;*!;<A.127;!(7!84*2)!/)*A23*3&!-4*!
A*<30)*3!84<8!34(01,!.*!9(732,*)*,!+4*)*!<//)(/)2<8*!<)*C!!

• -4*!/)(F232(7!(@!LL-k!
• Y(9<82(7!(@!*78)<79*3!!
• H*38)298*,!(/*727;!<7,!91(327;!82A*3!8(!/)(8*98!)*32,*783!F017*)<.1*!8(!4<)A!
• e0/*)F232(7!(@!*78)<79*3!! ! ! ! ! ! !
• L(78)(11*,!<99*33!8(!84*!/)*A23*3!.=!9421,)*7!07,*)!84*!<;*!(@!"Q! 
• M*<127;!+284!/0/213!+4(!<)*!8)0<7827;>!<7,!/(1292*3!8(!<,,)*33!3*<3(7<1!/*)2(,3!
+4*)*!9421,)*7!A<=!A()*!@)*?0*781=!<88*A/8!8(!;<27!<99*33!8(!/)*A23*3!<7,!
;<A.1*!3094!<3!/)*!<7,!/(38!394((1!4(0)3>!4<1@!8*)A!<7,!394((1!4(12,<=3 

• M*32;7!1<=(08J12;4827;J@28!(08!8(!7(8!<88)<98!9421,)*7!()!F017*)<.1*!/*)3(73!4<F27;!<!
7<82(7<11=O)*9(;723*,!/)((@!(@!<;*!394*A*!_!-427G!#"J#5 

• -4*!/)(F232(7!(@!)*;238*)*,!,(()!30/*)F23()3 
• L1*<)!3*;)*;<82(7!.*8+**7!;<A27;!<7,!7(7O;<A27;!<)*<3!27!/)*A23*3!
@)*?0*78*,!.=!9421,)*7 

• -4*!/)(F232(7!(@!<,*?0<8*!32;7<;*!<7,!7(829*3! 
• e0/*)F232(7!(@!A<9427*!<)*<3!27!/)*A23*3>!/<)82901<)1=!<)*<3!8(!+4294!9421,)*7!
<)*!<,A288*,! 

Page 50

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! $R!

• L(78)(11*,!(/*727;!4(0)3! 
• K@@*982F*!3*1@O.<))27;!394*A*3! 
• -4*!/)(F232(7!(@!A<8*)2<13!@()!B<AL<)*>!E*8G7(+A()*!Uj!()!32A21<)>!L282S*73!
:,F29*!E0)*<0!27@()A<82(7>!1(9<1!/0.129!<7,!A*78<1!4*<184!<7,!4(0327;J4(A*1*33!
<33(92<82(73>!/)278*,!27!1<7;0<;*3!<//)(/)2<8*!8(!84*!9038(A*)!.<3*&!!

• :,F*)82327;!1(9<1!30//()8!3*)F29*3!27!84*!<)*<!3094!<3!E*<9(7!L(073*1127;!-)038!
()!84*!Vde!B<A.127;!L12729&!

• -4*!70A.*)!(@!38<@@!(7!,08=!<7,!*@@*982F*!38<@@!8)<2727;>!*3/*92<11=!27!)*1<82(7!8(!
84*!<.2128=!8(!*@@*982F*1=!6,*782@=!<7,!*7;<;*!+284!F017*)<.1*!/*)3(73>!27910,27;!
/)2A<)=!278*)F*782(7!<7,!*39<1<82(7 

• :!)*?02)*A*78!84<8!9421,)*7!A038!.*!<99(A/<72*,!.=!<7!<,018!^27!/)*A23*3!+4*)*!
9421,)*7!<)*!<11(+*,D 

• K74<79*,!MEe!94*9G3!(@!38<@@ 
• W.390)27;!+27,(+3!+4*)*!<//)(/)2<8*!<7,!1<.*1127;!/)*A23*3!3(!28!23!91*<)!84<8!
84*=!<)*!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3 

• e*1@O*`91032(7!394*A*3 

5&$% Z284!)*@*)*79*!8(!84(3*!/*)3(73!+284!<!A*78<1!2A/<2)A*78!()!A*78<1!4*<184!,2@@290182*3>!
(/*)<8()3!+(01,!.*!+*11O<,F23*,!8(!9(73018!<!3028<.1*!\*78<1!d*<184!:,F23()!<7,!
@()A01<8*!<!/(129=!8(!/)(8*98!8423!9<8*;()=!(@!F017*)<.1*!/*)3(7!@)(A!.*27;!4<)A*,!()!
*`/1(28*,!.=!;<A.127;!

5&$5 '()!A0182O(990/2*,!/)*A23*3!9(732,*)<82(7!34(01,!.*!;2F*7!8(!84*!<))<7;*A*783!@()!
9(78)(1127;!<99*33!8(!9421,)*7!<7,!84*!9(A/<82.2128=!(@!84*!,2@@*)*78!03*3&!e*/<)<8*!<7,!
2,*782@2<.1*!*78)<79*3!A<=!.*!)*?02)*,!8(!*730)*!84<8!/*(/1*!,(!7(8!,)2@8!27<,F*)8*781=!
278(!<!;<A.127;!<)*<&!

5&$N L421,)*7!<)*!7(8!/*)A288*,!8(!03*!L<8*;()=!L!()!<.(F*!A<9427*3!<7,!27!/)*A23*3!
+4*)*!84*3*!A<9427*3!<)*!<F<21<.1*!<7,!9421,)*7!<)*!/*)A288*,!(7!84*!/)*A23*3!84*!
129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!)*?02)*C!

• <11!L<8*;()=!L!<7,!<.(F*!A<9427*3!8(!.*!1(9<8*,!27!<7!<)*<!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!
+4294!23!3*/<)<8*,!@)(A!84*!)*A<27,*)!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!.=!<!/4=329<1!.<))2*)!8(!
/)*F*78!<99*33!(84*)!84<7!84)(0;4!<!,*32;7<8*,!*78)<79*!!

• <,0183!(71=!<,A288*,!8(!84*!<)*<!+4*)*!84*3*!A<9427*3!<)*!1(9<8*,!!
• <,*?0<8*!30/*)F23*,!<99*33!8(!84*!<)*<!+4*)*!84*!A<9427*3!<)*!1(9<8*,!!

Page 51

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! %T!

• 84*!<)*<!+4*)*!84*3*!A<9427*3!<)*!1(9<8*,!23!<))<7;*,!3(!84<8!28!9<7!.*!
(.3*)F*,!.=!84*!38<@@!()!84*!129*79*!4(1,*)!!

• /)(A27*78!7(829*3!,23/1<=*,!<8!84*!*78)<79*!8(>!<7,!2732,*>!<7=!3094!<)*<3!84*)*!
27,29<827;!84<8!<99*33!8(!84*!<)*<!23!/)(42.28*,!8(!/*)3(73!07,*)!"Q!!

K`/*98<82(73!(@!(/*)<8()3C!e8<@@27;!/)(F232(7! ! ! ! !  

5&$P e8<@@!27!129*73*,!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3!<)*!)*9(;723*,!<3!.*27;!30.]*98!8(!)23G!27!84*!
+()G/1<9*!@)(A!F2(1*79*!<7,!F*).<1!<.03*>!*3/*92<11=!2@!+()G27;!<1(7*&!67!<,,282(7>!1(7*!
+()G*)3!A<=!7(8!.*!<.1*!8(!30@@292*781=!3*)F*!<7,!30/*)F23*!84*!9038(A*)3>!2,*782@=!<7,!
/)*F*78!=(07;!/*(/1*!@)(A!;<A.127;>!/)(8*98!F017*)<.1*!/*)3(73>!,*<1!+284!9038(A*)3!
+4(!A<=!.*!9(730A27;!<19(4(1!<7,!/)*F*78!84*!/)*A23*3!.*27;!03*,!<3!<!3(0)9*!(@!
9)2A*!()!30//()827;!9)2A*&!!

5&$Q Z*!*`/*98!/)*A23*3!A<7<;*A*78!8(!)*9(;723*!<7,!<,,)*33!8423!<3!/<)8!(@!84*2)!
A<7<;*A*78!<))<7;*A*783>!*3/*92<11=!<8!82A*3!+4*)*!28!4<3!.**7!2,*782@2*,!84<8!84*)*!
23!<!3/2G*!27!9)2A*3!<)(07,!84*!/)*A23*3&!!

5&$R Z*!*`/*98!84*)*!8(!.*!<7!<,*?0<8*!70A.*)!(@!38<@@!<7,!A<7<;*)3!(7!84*!/)*A23*3!8(!
9(F*)!G*=!/(2783!84)(0;4(08!84*!,<=>!*3/*92<11=!+4*)*!/)*A23*3!<)*!91(3*!8(!
394((13J9(11*;*3J072F*)3282*3>!/0.3>!.<)3>!34(//27;!9*78)*3!<7,!38<,2<&!

K`/*98<82(73!(@!(/*)<8()3C!M<8<!;<84*)27;!<7,!34<)27;!
5&%T j**/27;!8)<9G!(@!84*!2792,*79*!<7,!4<7,127;!(@!/)(.1*A!;<A.127;!27!\<794*38*)!23!<!

G*=!/<)8!(@!/)(A(827;!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3&!Z*!*`/*98!<11!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3!8(!
A<278<27!<!1(;!<7,!34<)*!8423!<7,!(84*)!27@()A<82(7!+284!84*!Y29*7327;!U728!0/(7!
)*?0*38&!

5&%" M<8<!84<8!+*!9(732,*)!34(01,!.*!)*9(),*,!<7,!34<)*,!27910,*3!^.08!23!7(8!*`91032F*!8(D!
Z*!+(01,!*`/*98!84<8!<11!)*9(),3!27910,27;!82A*!<7,!,<8*!<1(7;!+284!<!34()8!,*39)2/82(7!
(@!84*!2792,*78!<7,!<982(7!8<G*7C!

1) L038(A*)!278*)F*782(73 
2) L<3*3!+4*)*!/*)3(73!+4(!4<F*!,*92,*,!8(!F(1078<)21=!*`910,*!84*A3*1F*3!@)(A!
84*!/)*A23*3!4<F*!8)2*,!8(!;<27!*78)= 

3) \<7,<8()=!*`91032(73!7**,27;!*7@()9*A*78! 
4) :88*A/83!8(!*78*)!.=!84(3*!07,*)<;*!27!<!9<1*7,<)!A(784! 
5) :88*A/83!8(!*78*)!.=!84(3*!07,*)<;*!27!84*!9(A/<7=!(@!<,0183! 
6) :88*A/83!8(!*78*)!.=!84(3*!07,*)<;*!+284!9(A/12928!<,0183! 

Page 52

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! %"!

7) 6792,*783!(@!X<8!)23G!.*4<F2(0)I! 
8) 6792,*783!(@!X.*4<F2(0)!)*?02)27;!2AA*,2<8*!278*)F*782(7I! 

5&%# Z*!*`/*98!84<8!8423!<//129<82(7!+211!.*!/)(F2,*,!8(!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!<770<11=&!!
5&%$ :!8*A/1<8*!@()!8423!27@()A<82(7!8(!.*!/)(F2,*,!23!<8!://*7,2`!#&!!

K`/*98<82(7!(@!<//129<783C!e8<@@!-)<2727;!<7,!j7(+1*,;* 

5&%% Z*!*`/*98!<11!9038(A*)O@<927;!<7,!A<7<;*A*78!38<@@!27!/)*A23*3!129*73*,!07,*)!84*!
B<A.127;!:98!#TT5!8(!4<F*!30@@292*78!G7(+1*,;*!8(!8<9G1*!)23G3!<33(92<8*,!+284!
;<A.127;!<7,!G7(+!4(+!8(!/)(A(8*!)*3/(732.1*!;<A.127;&!:A(7;38!(84*)!*1*A*783>!
38<@@!G7(+1*,;*!34(01,!27910,*!^+4*)*!<//)(/)2<8*DC!

1) -4*!2A/()8<79*!(@!3(92<1!)*3/(732.2128=!^[)*A23*3!A<=!+234!8(!3**G!<7!<0,28!@)(A!
B<AL<)*!27!(),*)!8(!(.8<27!<!9*)82@29<8*!(@!e(92<1!H*3/(732.2128=D 

2) L<03*3!<7,!9(73*?0*79*3!(@!/)(.1*A!;<A.127; 

$D 6,*782@=27;!<7,!9(AA0729<827;!+284!F017*)<.1*!/*)3(73C!/)2A<)=!278*)F*782(7!<7,!
*39<1<82(7>!30//()8*,!.=!42;4!?0<128=!8)<2727;!;2F*7!84*!94<11*7;27;!7<80)*!(@!
84*3*!9(7F*)3<82(73&!

4) M*<127;!+284!/)(.1*A!;<A.1*)3C!*`91032(7!^A<7,<8()=!<7,!F(1078<)=D!<7,!
*39<1<827;!@()!<,F29*J8)*<8A*78!27910,27;!1(9<1!8)*<8A*78!/)(F2,*)3 

5) H*@03<1!(@!*78)=!^<19(4(1!<7,!,)0;3D! 
6) :;*!F*)2@29<82(7!/)(9*,0)*3!<7,!7**,!8(!)*80)7!38<G*3J+284,)<+!+27727;3!2@!07,*)!
<;*!/*)3(73!@(07,!;<A.127; 

7) 6A/()8<79*!<7,!*7@()9*A*78!(@!82A*J3/*7,!12A283 
8) -4*!9(7,282(73!(@!84*!129*79* 

9) \<278<2727;!<7!2792,*78!1(; 

10) W@@*79*3!07,*)!84*!B<A.127;!:98 
11) L<8*;()2*3!(@!;<A27;!A<9427*3!<7,!84*!38<G*3!<7,!(,,3!<33(92<8*,!+284!*<94!
A<9427* 

12) -=/*3!(@!;<A27;!<7,!84*!38<G*3!<7,!(,,3!<33(92<8*,!+284!*<94 

13) :.2128=!8(!32;7/(38!9038(A*)3!8(!30//()8!3*)F29*3!+284!)*3/*98!8(!/)(.1*A!
;<A.127;>!@27<792<1!A<7<;*A*78>!,*.8!<,F29*!*89& 

14) e<@*!9<34O4<7,127;J/<=A*78!(@!+27727;3 
15) 6,*782@=!@();*,!6M!<7,!.<)!84(3*!0327;!@();*,!6M!@)(A!84*!/)*A23*3 

Page 53

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! %#!

16) j7(+1*,;*!(@!<!/)(.1*A!;<A.127;!4*1/127*!70A.*)!^@()!84*2)!(+7!03*!<3!+*11!<3!
84<8!(@!9038(A*)3D 

17) -4*!2A/()8<79*!(@!7(8!*79(0)<;27;!9038(A*)3!8(C 
(a) 679)*<3*!84*!<A(078!(@!A(7*=!84*=!4<F*!,*92,*,!8(!;<A.1*! 
^.D K78*)!278(!9(78270(03!;<A.127;!@()!<!/)(1(7;*,!/*)2(,!
^9D L(78270*!;<A.127;!+4*7!84*=!4<F*!*`/)*33*,!<!+234!8(!38(/!
^,D H*O;<A.1*!+27727;3!
^*D L4<3*!1(33*3&!

5&%5 :.(F*!<7,!.*=(7,!8423!+*!*`/*98!A<7<;*)3!8(!4<F*!<7!27O,*/84!G7(+1*,;*!(@!<11!(@!84*!
<.(F*!<7,!.*!<.1*!8(!30//()8!38<@@!27!*730)27;!84*!42;4*38!38<7,<),3!+284!)*;<),!8(!
/)(8*9827;!9421,)*7!<7,!(84*)!F017*)<.1*!/*)3(73!@)(A!.*27;!4<)A*,!()!*`/1(28*,!.=!
;<A.127;&!67!3(!@<)!<3!8)<2727;>!+*!,(!7(8!278*7,!8(!,0/129<8*!<7=!*`23827;!8)<2727;!
)*?02)*A*78>!3094!<3!A<=!.*!)*?02)*,!.=!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7I3!L(,*!(@![)<9829*&!

K`/*98<82(7!(@!<//129<783C!B<A27;!A<9427*3!J!1<=(083!
5&%N 68!23!<7!(/*)<8()I3!)*3/(732.2128=!8(!*730)*!38<@@!<)*!<.1*!8(!*@@*982F*1=!A(728()!;<A27;!

A<9427*!/1<=!@()!<!70A.*)!(@!)*<3(73!84<8!<)*!/<)8!(@!84*!(/*)<8()I3!129*79*!9(7,282(73&!
:;*!F*)2@29<82(7>!9038(A*)!278*)<982(7!<7,!3*1@O*`91032(7!/(1292*3!<11!)*?02)*!(/*)<8()3!8(!
8<G*!278(!<99(078!84*!38)0980)*!<7,!1<=(08!(@!84*2)!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3&!!

5&%P -4*!Y29*79*!9(7,282(73!<7,!9(,*!(@!/)<9829*!^YLL[D!38<8*C!X'<921282*3!@()!;<A.127;!A038!
(71=!.*!(@@*)*,!27!<!A<77*)!+4294!/)(F2,*3!@()!<//)(/)2<8*!30/*)F232(7!(@!84(3*!@<921282*3!
.=!38<@@!<8!<11!82A*3I&! !

5&%Q :!39)**7!()!/(,!<)(07,!<!;<A27;!A<9427*>!,*32;7*,!8(!279)*<3*!84*!/)2F<9=!(@!84*!
/1<=*)>!9(01,!/)*F*78!38<@@!27!<!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3!@)(A!*@@*982F*1=!A(728()27;!;<A27;!
A<9427*!/1<=!!

5&%R W/*)<8()3!+211!.*!*`/*98*,!8(!.*!<.1*!8(!*F2,*79*!8(!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!4(+!84*=!
4<F*!9(732,*)*,!84*!)23G!8(!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3!<7,!2A/1*A*78*,!*@@*982F*!9(78)(13>!
/)2()!8(!84*!278)(,0982(7!(@!<7=!7*+!A<9427*!<))<7;*A*783&!

5&5T 68!+211!.*!2A/()8<78!8(!9(732,*)!84*!A*<73!.=!+4294!;<A27;!A<9427*3!<)*!30/*)F23*,!
^*&;&!127*!(@!32;48!8(!9(078*)>!*@@*982F*!LL-k>!A2))()3!()!@1(()!38<@@D!<7,!9(732,*)!+4*84*)!
84<8!23!<//)(/)2<8*!@()!84<8!/)*A23*3&!! ! ! ! !

Page 54

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! %$!

5&5" Z4*84*)!<A*7,A*783!8(!<!/)*A23*3!<A(078!8(!<!XA<8*)2<1!94<7;*I!+<))<7827;!<7!
<//129<82(7!8(!F<)=!84*!/)*A23*3!129*79*!07,*)!3&"QP!(@!84*!B<A.127;!:98!23!<!A<88*)!@()!
1(9<1!,*8*)A27<82(7!<7,!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!<,(/8!<!9(AA(7O3*73*!<//)(<94&!

Page 55

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! %%!

6. [)*A23*3O3/*92@29!9(732,*)<82(73 

:,018!B<A27;!L*78)*3 
N&" :,018!;<A27;!9*78)*3!^:BL3D!<)*!/)*A23*3!<.1*!8(!A<G*!9<8*;()=!E>!L!<7,!M!;<A27;!

A<9427*3!<F<21<.1*!8(!84*2)!9038(A*)3&![*)3(73!(/*)<827;!<7!:BL!A038!4(1,!<!;<A27;!
A<9427*3!;*7*)<1!(/*)<827;!129*79*!@)(A!84*!L(AA2332(7!<3!+*11!<3!<!/)*A23*3!129*79*!
@)(A!84*!L(07921&!

N&# -423!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!3/*92@29<11=!4<F*!)*;<),!8(!84*!7**,!8(!/)(8*98!9421,)*7!<7,!
F017*)<.1*!/*)3(73!@)(A!4<)A!()!.*27;!*`/1(28*,!.=!;<A.127;!<7,!+211!*`/*98!84*!
<//129<78!8(!3<823@=!84*!<084()28=!84<8!84*)*!+211!.*!30@@292*78!A*<30)*3!8(>!@()!*`<A/1*>!
*730)*!84<8!07,*)!"Q!=*<)!(1,3!,(!7(8!4<F*!<99*33!8(!84*!/)*A23*3&!!!

N&$ Z4*)*!;<A.127;!@<921282*3!<)*!/)(F2,*,!<8!/)*A23*3!<3!<!30//1*A*78<)=!<982F28=!8(!84*!
A<27!/0)/(3*!(@!84*!/)*A23*3i!*&;&!A(8()+<=!3*)F29*!<)*<3!<7,!34(//27;!A<113&!-4*!
9(07921!+211!*`/*98!84*!;<A.127;!<)*<!8(!.*!91*<)1=!,*@27*,!8(!*730)*!84<8!9038(A*)3!<)*!
@011=!<+<)*!84<8!84*=!<)*!A<G27;!<!94(29*!8(!*78*)!278(!84*!;<A.127;!/)*A23*3!<7,!84<8!
84*!/)*A23*3!23!<,*?0<8*1=!30/*)F23*,!<8!<11!82A*3&!

L<327(3 
N&% \<794*38*)!(71=!4<3!9<327(3!84<8!+*)*!/)*F2(031=!129*73*,!07,*)!84*!B<A27;!:98!"RNQ!

<7,!4<F*!.**7!30.3*?0*781=!9(7F*)8*,!278(!B<A.127;!:98!#TT5!L(7F*)8*,!L<327(!
[)*A23*3!Y29*79*3&!-4*)*!<)*!7(!3A<11!()!1<);*!9<327(3&!

N&5 -4*!B<A.127;!:98!38<8*3!84<8!<!9<327(!23!<7!<))<7;*A*78!+4*)*.=!/*(/1*!<)*!;2F*7!84*!
(//()80728=!8(!/<)8292/<8*!27!(7*!()!A()*!9<327(!;<A*3!+4*)*.=!9<327(!;<A*3!<)*!
,*@27*,!<3!<!;<A*!(@!94<79*!+4294!23!7(8!*?0<1!94<79*!;<A27;&!-423!A*<73!84<8!
9<327(!;<A*3!(@@*)!84*!94<79*!@()!A0182/1*!/<)8292/<783!8(!8<G*!/<)8!27!<!;<A*!
9(A/*827;!<;<2738!84*!4(03*!()!.<7G!<8!,2@@*)*78!(,,3!8(!84*2)!@*11(+!/1<=*)3&!!L<327(3!
9<7!<13(!/)(F2,*!*?0<1!94<79*!;<A27;!<7,!;<A27;!A<9427*3&!

XV(!L<327(3I!)*3(1082(7 

N&N -423!129*7327;!<084()28=!4<3!7(8!/<33*,!<!X7(!9<327(I!)*3(1082(7!07,*)!e*982(7!"NN!(@!84*!
B<A.127;!:98!#TT5>!.08!23!<+<)*!84<8!28!4<3!84*!/(+*)!8(!,(!3(&!!!e4(01,!8423!129*7327;!
<084()28=!,*92,*!27!84*!@080)*!8(!/<33!3094!<!)*3(1082(7>!28!+211!0/,<8*!8423!/(129=!

Page 56

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! %5!

38<8*A*78!+284!,*8<213!(@!84<8!)*3(1082(7&!!:7=!3094!,*9232(7!+211!.*!A<,*!.=!84*!'011!
L(07921&!

E27;(!/)*A23*3 
N&P -4*!B<A.127;!:98!#TT5!,(*3!7(8!9(78<27!<!,*@27282(7!(@!E27;(&!68!23!8(!4<F*!283!(),27<)=!

<7,!7<80)<1!A*<727;!<7,!84*!:98!,(*3!382/01<8*!84<8!o.27;(p!A*<73!<7=!F*)32(7!(@!84<8!
;<A*>!2))*3/*982F*!(@!4(+!28!23!,*39)2.*,&!-+(!8=/*3!(@!.27;(!A<=!.*!(@@*)*,C!

• L<34!.27;(>!+4*)*!84*!38<G*3!/<7*1!A<,*!0/!84*!9<34!/)2S*!84<8I3!+(7i!()!
• [)2S*!.27;(>!+4*)*!F<)2(03!@()A3!(@!/)2S*3!23!+(7>!7(8!,2)*981=!)*1<827;!8(!84*!
38<G*3!/<7*1!

N&Q e0.]*98!8(!84*!)01*3!(@!27,2F2,0<1!(/*)<8()3>!9421,)*7!<7,!=(07;!/*(/1*!<)*!<11(+*,!278(!
.27;(!/)*A23*3&!d(+*F*)>!84*=!<)*!7(8!/*)A288*,!8(!/<)8292/<8*!27!84*!.27;(!<7,!2@!
9<8*;()=!E!()!L!A<9427*3!<)*!A<,*!<F<21<.1*!@()!03*!84*3*!A038!.*!3*/<)<8*,!@)(A!
<)*<3!+4*)*!9421,)*7!<7,!=(07;!/*(/1*!<)*!<11(+*,&!

N&R Z4*)*!9<8*;()=!L!()!<.(F*!A<9427*3!<)*!<F<21<.1*!27!/)*A23*3!8(!+4294!9421,)*7!<)*!
<,A288*,!84*7!84*!9(07921!+211!*730)*!84<8C!

• <11!3094!A<9427*3!<)*!1(9<8*,!27!<7!<)*<!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!3*/<)<8*!@)(A!84*!
)*A<27,*)!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!.=!<!/4=329<1!.<))2*)!+4294!23!*@@*982F*!8(!/)*F*78!
<99*33!(84*)!84<7!84)(0;4!<!,*32;7<8*,!*78)<79*&!'()!8423!/0)/(3*>!<!)(/*>!@1(()!
A<)G27;3!()!32A21<)!/)(F232(7!+211!7(8!30@@29*!<7,!84*!9(07921!A<=!273238!(7!<!
/*)A<7*78!.<))2*)!(@!<8!1*<38!(7*!A*8)*!42;4!!

• (71=!<,0183!<)*!<,A288*,!8(!84*!<)*<!+4*)*!84*!A<9427*3!<)*!1(9<8*,!
• <99*33!8(!84*!<)*<!+4*)*!84*!A<9427*3!<)*!1(9<8*,!23!30/*)F23*,!<8!<11!82A*3!
• 84*!<)*<!+4*)*!84*!A<9427*3!<)*!1(9<8*,!23!<))<7;*,!3(!84<8!28!9<7!.*!(.3*)F*,!
.=!38<@@!

• <8!84*!*78)<79*!8(>!<7,!2732,*!<7=!3094!<)*<!84*)*!<)*!/)(A27*781=!,23/1<=*,!
7(829*3!27,29<827;!84<8!<99*33!8(!84*!<)*<!23!/)(42.28*,!8(!/*(/1*!07,*)!"Q!

• 9421,)*7!+211!7(8!.*!<,A288*,!8(!.27;(!/)*A23*3!071*33!<99(A/<72*,!.=!<7!<,018&!!

N&"T -4*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!4<3!/)(F2,*,!B02,<79*!@()!Y29*7327;!:084()282*3!<7,!
Y29*79*!L(7,282(73!<7,!L(,*!(@![)<9829*!+4294!<)*!<//12*,!8(!W/*)<8()I3!Y29*79*3&!!
-4*!9(07921!+211!8<G*!8423!278(!9(732,*)<82(7!+4*7!,*8*)A2727;!129*79*!<//129<82(73!@()!
.27;(!/)*A23*3&!!

Page 57

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! %N!

N&"" Z4*)*!9*)8<27!A*<30)*3!<)*!7(8!<1)*<,=!<,,)*33*,!.=!84*!A<7,<8()=J,*@<018!
9(7,282(73>!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!L(,*!(@![)<9829*!()!84*!<//129<78>!84*!9(07921!
A<=!9(732,*)!129*79*!9(7,282(73!8(!<,,)*33!3094!2330*3&!

K1*98)(729!.27;(!;<A27;!A<9427*3 
N&"# Z4*)*!<!/)*A23*3!278*7,3!(7!/)(F2,27;!*1*98)(729!8*)A27<13!8(!/1<=!.27;(>!+*!+211!*`/*98!

(/*)<8()3!^<3!/<)8!(@!84*2)!<//129<82(7D!8(!/)(F2,*!<!.)*<G,(+7!(@!84*!70A.*)!(@!
*1*98)(729!.27;(!8*)A27<13!84<8!+211!.*!/)(F2,*,!<8!84*!/)*A23*3!

B<A27;!A<9427*3!<8!.27;(!/)*A23*3!
N&"$ 67!<,,282(7!8(!.27;(>!8423!/)*A23*3!129*79*!+211!<084()23*!84*!/)(F232(7!(@!<!12A28*,!

70A.*)!(@!;<A27;!A<9427*3!27!127*!+284!84*!/)(F232(73!(@!84*!:98&!E27;(!/)*A23*3!
129*79*3!<084()23*!<!A<`2A0A!(@!#Tf!(@!84*!8(8<1!70A.*)!(@!;<A27;!A<9427*3!+4294!
<)*!<F<21<.1*!@()!03*!(7!84*!/)*A23*3!9<8*;()2*3!E$!()!E%&!

N&"% E27;(!@<921282*3!27!.27;(!/)*A23*3!A<=!7(8!.*!(@@*)*,!.*8+**7!84*!4(0)3!(@!A2,72;48!<7,!
R<A&!d(+*F*)>!84*)*!<)*!7(!)*38)2982(73!(7!<99*33!8(!;<A27;!A<9427*3!27!.27;(!
/)*A23*3&!!

N&"5 -4*!YLL[!)*?02)*3!^e(92<1!H*3/(732.2128=!L(,*![)(F232(7!RD!84<8!;<A27;!A<9427*3!<)*!
(71=!A<,*!<F<21<.1*!27!9(A.27<82(7!+284!84*!7<A*,!7(7O)*A(8*!<982F28=!(@!84*!(/*)<827;!
129*79*&!e(>!071*33!<!.27;(!/)*A23*3!(/*)<8()!(@@*)3!30.38<782F*!@<921282*3!@()!7(7O
)*A(8*!.27;(!28!34(01,!7(8!A<G*!;<A27;!A<9427*3!<F<21<.1*!@()!03*!(7!84*!/)*A23*3!27!
?0*382(7&!

N&"N :3!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=>!+*!+211!7**,!8(!3<823@=!(0)3*1F*3!84<8!<!/)*A23*3!<//1=27;!@()!
()!129*73*,!@()!.27;(!23!(/*)<827;!()!+211!(/*)<8*!27!<!A<77*)!+4294!<!9038(A*)!+(01,!
)*<3(7<.1=!.*!*`/*98*,!8(!)*9(;723*!<3!<!/)*A23*3!129*73*,!@()!84*!/0)/(3*3!(@!
/)(F2,27;!@<921282*3!@()!.27;(&!K?0<11=>!+*!A038!*730)*!84<8!<!/)*A23*3!129*73*,!@()!84*!
/0)/(3*3!(@!/)(F2,27;!@<921282*3!@()!.27;(!23!(/*)<827;!<3!3094!<7,!23!7(8!A*)*1=!<!F*4291*!
8(!(@@*)!42;4*)!38<G*!<7,!/)2S*!;<A27;!A<9427*3&!

N&"P -4*)*@()*>!+*!+211!*`/*98!(/*)<8()3!^<3!/<)8!(@!84*2)!<//129<82(7D!8(!/)(F2,*!27@()A<82(7!
(7C!

• <7=!82A*3!84*=!278*7,!8(!/)(F2,*!;<A27;!A<9427*3!<8!<7=!82A*3!84<8!.27;(!
@<921282*3!<)*!7(8!/)(F2,*,!

• 4(+!84*!/)*A23*3!+211!.*!)*9(;723*,!<3!<!/)*A23*3!129*73*,!@()!/)(F2,27;!
@<921282*3!@()!.27;(!

Page 58

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! %P!

• :!.)*<G,(+7!(@!;<A27;!A<9427*!70A.*)3!^.=!9<8*;()=D!!

N&"Q -4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!23!9(79*)7*,!84<8!1<8*)!(/*727;!4(0)3!+211!<88)<98!84*!A()*!
F017*)<.1*>!3094!<3!84(3*!+4(!<)*!278(`29<8*,!()!+4(!4<F*!;<A.127;!<,,2982(73&!-4*!
129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!*`/*98!<//129<783!9<7!,*A(738)<8*!84<8!)(.038!A*<30)*3!+211!.*!
27!/1<9*!8(!/)(8*98!84*!F017*)<.1*!<7,!84*!<,,282(7<1!4(0)3!<)*!7(8!.*27;!3(0;48!8(!8<G*!
<,F<78<;*!(@!84*!;<A27;!A<9427*!*78281*A*78&!

N&"R -4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!03*!84*2)!/(+*)!8(!)*38)298!84*!92)90A38<79*3!27!+4294!84*=!
<)*!<F<21<.1*!@()!03*!+4*7!<//)(/)2<8*!.=!+<=!(@!9(7,282(73&!Z4*7!9(732,*)27;!
2A/(327;!9(7,282(73>!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!8<G*!278(!<99(078>!<A(7;!(84*)!@<98()3C!!

• 84*!32S*!<7,!/4=329<1!1<=(08!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!!
• 84*!70A.*)!(@!9(078*)!/(3282(73!<7,!38<@@!(7!84*!/)*A23*3!!
• 84*!<.2128=!(@!38<@@!8(!A(728()!84*!03*!(@!A<9427*3!.=!9421,)*7>!=(07;!/*)3(73!
07,*)!84*!<;*!(@!"Q!()!F017*)<.1*!/*(/1*!

N&#T -4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!7(8!3**G!8(!12A28!84*!70A.*)!(@!;<A.127;!A<9427*3!.=!
9<8*;()=!<3!8423!*78281*,!/)(F232(7!23!,*@27*,!27!84*!B<A.127;!:98&!d(+*F*)>!+*!+211!3**G!
8(!*730)*!84<8!84*!70A.*)!<7,!/)(F232(7!(@!;<A27;!A<9427*3!<)*!(71=!/)(F2,*,!27!<!
A<77*)!+4294!<!9038(A*)!+(01,!)*<3(7<.1=!.*!*`/*98*,!8(!)*9(;723*!<3!<!/)*A23*3!
129*73*,!@()!84*!/0)/(3*3!(@!/)(F2,27;!@<921282*3!@()!.27;(&!

N&#" -(!9(78<27!84*!07<F(2,<.1*!)23G!8(!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3!<33(92<8*,!+284!;<A27;!
A<9427*3>!/)*A23*3!+4294!(@@*)!A<9427*3!A038!.*!<//)(/)2<8*1=!30/*)F23*,&!

N&## -4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!27@()A<82(7!)*?02)*,!@)(A!<7!<//129<78!@()!<!7*+!/)*A23*3!()!
@()!<!F<)2<82(7!8(!<7!*`23827;!/)*A23*3!27!(),*)!8(!3<823@=!84*A3*1F*3!<3!8(!84*!A<88*)3!
3*8!(08!<8!3"5$!(@!84*!:98&!-423!27910,*3!84*!9(,*3!(@!/)<9829*!<7,!84*!B<A.127;!
L(AA2332(7I3!;02,<79*!8(!129*7327;!<084()282*3&!

cK78*)8<27A*78I!E27;(!!
N&#$ :!/4*7(A*7(7!(F*)!)*9*78!=*<)3!4<3!.**7!84*!*F(1082(7!(@!.0327*33*3>!3094!<3!

E(7;(I3!E27;(>!/)(F2,27;!@<921282*3!@()!42;4!80)7(F*)!.27;(!^84*!<;;)*;<8*!38<G*3!()!
/)2S*3!@()!.27;(!27!<7=!3*F*7!,<=!/*)2(,!A<=!*`9**,!m#>TTTDi!8=/29<11=!/)(F2,27;!*?0<1!
94<79*!;<A27;!<8!/0.3!<7,!72;48910.3>!27!)*12<79*!(7!84*!<19(4(1!129*79*!4*1,!.=!84*!
/)*A23*3>!<7,!84*)*@()*!,(27;!3(!07,*)!84*!)01*3!@()!*`*A/8!;<A27;&!

N&#% Z*!7(8*!84<8!28!23!<!9(7,282(7!(@!3(A*!3094!9(A/<72*3I!(/*)<8()I3!129*79*!84<8!84*=!A038!
7(82@=!.(84!84*!L(AA2332(7!<7,!84*!)*1*F<78!Y:!<8!1*<38!#Q!,<=3!.*@()*!<7=!*F*78!8<G*3!

Page 59

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! %Q!

/1<9*!27!7*+!/)*A23*3>!.=!/)(F2,27;!<!,*39)2/82(7!(@!84*!*F*78!8<G27;!/1<9*>!<!9(/=!(@!
84*!/)*A23*3!9(78)<98!<7,!<7=!<A*7,A*78!8(!84*!)01*3!(@!84*!.27;(&!

N&#5 Z*!+(01,!*79(0)<;*!F*70*3!4(3827;!3094!*F*783!8(!/)(A(8*!)*3/(732.1*!;<A.127;!
A*33<;27;!<8!84*A&!

E*8827;![)*A23*3! ! ! ! ! ! !  

N&#N Z*!*79(0)<;*!(/*)<8()3!8(!/<)8292/<8*!27!84*!e<@*.*8!:112<79*!27!(),*)!8(!4*1/!*730)*!
84*!42;4*38!38<7,<),3!@()!84*!3<@*8=!<7,!3*90)28=!(@!38<@@!+()G27;!<8!.*8827;!/)*A23*3&!
Z4*)*!<7!(/*)<8()!,(*3!7(8!/<)8292/<8*!27!84*!394*A*>!28!23!*`/*98*,!84<8!84*=!9<7!
3<823@<98()21=!,*A(738)<8*!84*!3*90)28=!A*<30)*3!84*=!279()/()<8*!<)*!<,*?0<8*&!!

N&#P Y29*73*,!.*8827;!/)*A23*3!<)*!(71=!/*)A288*,!8(!(@@*)!;<A.127;!@<921282*3!.*8+**7!P<A!
<7,!"T/A>!071*33!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!4<3!;)<78*,!<!F<)2<82(7!<//129<82(7!8(!*`8*7,!
84*3*!4(0)3&!-4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!23!9(79*)7*,!84<8!1<8*)!(/*727;!4(0)3!+211!<88)<98!84*!
A()*!F017*)<.1*>!3094!<3!84(3*!+4(!<)*!278(`29<8*,!()!+4(!4<F*!;<A.127;!<,,2982(73&!
-4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!<13(!4<3!9(79*)73!84<8!129*73*,!.*8827;!/)*A23*3!(/*)<8()3!A<=!
3**G!8(!*`8*7,!84*!/*)A288*,!4(0)3!@()!84*!/)2A<)=!/0)/(3*!(@!A<G27;!;<A27;!A<9427*3!
<F<21<.1*!8(!9038(A*)3!@()!1(7;*)&!!

N&#Q :3!<!9(73*?0*79*>!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!23!0712G*1=!8(!;)<78!F<)2<82(7!(@!4(0)3I!
<//129<82(73!071*33!<//129<783!9<7!,*A(738)<8*!84<8!)(.038!A*<30)*3!+211!.*!27!/1<9*!8(!
/)(8*98!84*!F017*)<.1*!<7,!84*!<,,282(7<1!4(0)3!<)*!7(8!.*27;!3(0;48!8(!8<G*!<,F<78<;*!
(@!84*!;<A27;!A<9427*!*78281*A*78&!!

N&#R -4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!03*!84*2)!/(+*)!8(!)*38)298!84*!70A.*)!(@!.*8827;!A<9427*3!
^.*8!)*9*2/8!8*)A27<13D>!84*2)!7<80)*!<7,!84*!92)90A38<79*3!27!+4294!84*=!<)*!<F<21<.1*!
@()!03*!+4*7!<//)(/)2<8*!.=!+<=!(@!9(7,282(73&!Z4*7!9(732,*)27;!2A/(327;!9(7,282(73>!
84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!8<G*!278(!<99(078>!<A(7;!(84*)!@<98()3C!!

• !84*!32S*!<7,!/4=329<1!1<=(08!(@!84*!/)*A23*3!!
• !84*!70A.*)!(@!9(078*)!/(3282(73!<7,!38<@@!(7!84*!/)*A23*3!!
• !84*!<.2128=!(@!38<@@!8(!A(728()!84*!03*!(@!A<9427*3!.=!9421,)*7>!=(07;!/*)3(73!
07,*)!84*!<;*!(@!"Q!()!F017*)<.1*!/*(/1*!!

N&$T E*8827;!A<9427*3!O!-423!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211>!<3!/*)!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7c3!
B02,<79*>!8<G*!278(!<99(078!84*!32S*!(@!84*!/)*A23*3>!84*!70A.*)!(@!9(078*)!/(3282(73!
<F<21<.1*!@()!/*)3(7O8(O/*)3(7!8)<73<982(73>!<7,!84*!<.2128=!(@!38<@@!8(!A(728()!84*!03*!(@!
84*!A<9427*3!.=!9421,)*7!<7,!=(07;!/*)3(73!^28!23!<7!(@@*79*!@()!84(3*!07,*)!"Q!8(!.*8D!

Page 60

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! %R!

()!.=!F017*)<.1*!/*(/1*>!+4*7!9(732,*)27;!84*!70A.*)J7<80)*J92)90A38<79*3!(@!.*8827;!
A<9427*3!<7!(/*)<8()!+<783!8(!(@@*)&!68!23!7(8*,!84<8!84<8!9421,)*7!<)*!7(8!<.1*!8(!;(!278(!
/)*A23*3!+284!84*!.*7*@28!(@!<!E*8827;![)*A23*3!Y29*79*&! ! ! !

^Y29*73*,D!'<A21=!K78*)8<27A*78!L*78)*3 
N&$" -4*!:98!9)*<8*3!8+(!91<33*3!(@!@<A21=!*78*)8<27A*78!9*78)*!^'KLD&!Y29*73*,!'KLI3!

/)(F2,*!9<8*;()=!L!<7,!M!A<9427*3!<7,!)*?02)*!<!/)*A23*3!129*79*&!U7129*73*,!'KLI3!
/)(F2,*!9<8*;()=!M!A<9427*3!(71=!<)*!)*;01<8*,!84)(0;4!'KL!;<A27;!A<9427*!/*)A283&!

N&$# -423!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!3/*92@29<11=!4<F*!)*;<),!8(!84*!7**,!8(!/)(8*98!9421,)*7!<7,!
F017*)<.1*!/*)3(73!@)(A!4<)A!()!.*27;!*`/1(28*,!.=!;<A.127;!<7,!+211!*`/*98!84*!
<//129<78!8(!3<823@=!84*!<084()28=>!@()!*`<A/1*>!84<8!84*)*!+211!.*!30@@292*78!A*<30)*3!8(!
*730)*!84<8!07,*)!"QO=*<)O(1,3!,(!7(8!4<F*!<99*33!8(!84*!<,018!(71=!;<A27;!A<9427*!
<)*<3&!W/*)<8()3!34(01,!*730)*!84<8!<!/)((@!(@!<;*!394*A*!23!27!@()9*&!

N&$$ -423!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211>!<3!/*)!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7I3!;02,<79*>!)*@*)!8(!84*!
L(AA2332(7I3!+*.328*!8(!3**!<7=!9(7,282(73!84<8!<//1=!8(!(/*)<827;!129*79*3!9(F*)27;!
84*!+<=!27!+4294!84*!<)*<!9(78<2727;!84*!9<8*;()=!L!A<9427*3!34(01,!.*!,*127*<8*,&!!
-423!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!<13(!A<G*!283*1@!<+<)*!(@!<7=!A<7,<8()=!()!,*@<018!
9(7,282(73!(7!84*3*!/)*A23*3!129*79*3>!+4*7!84*=!4<F*!.**7!/0.1234*,&!

W99<32(7<1!03*!7(829*3! ! ! ! ! !  

N&$% W99<32(7<1!U3*!V(829*3!^WUVD!<)*!,*32;7*,!8(!<11(+!129*73*,!.*8827;!(/*)<8()3!8(!
/)(F2,*!.*8827;!@<921282*3!<8!;*7027*!3/()827;!*F*783>!3094!<3!/(278O8(!/(278!)<9*9(0)3*3!
<7,!;(1@!9(0)3*3!@()!A<]()!9(A/*8282(73>!+28427!84*!.(07,<)2*3!(@!84*!2,*782@2*,!F*70*!(7!
<!3/*92@29!,<8*&!

N&$5 :7!WUV!A038!.*!30.A288*,!@()!K:Ld!,<=!84<8!84*!.*8827;!<982F28=!+211!.*!9(7,098*,!(7!
84*!/)*A23*3&!'()!*`<A/1*>!@(0)!7(829*3!@()!@(0)!9(73*9082F*!,<=3!(@!.*8827;!<7,!7(8!(7*!
7(829*!9(F*)27;!84*!@(0)!,<=3&!

N&$N Z*!+211!12<23*!+284!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!34(01,!+*!)*9*2F*!<7!WUV!84<8!,(*3!7(8!
)*1<8*!8(!<!;*7027*!)*9(;723*,!3/()827;!*F*78!8(!*730)*!84<8!WUVI3!<)*!7(8!A2303*,>!@()!
*`<A/1*>!F*70*3!3**G27;!8(!.*9(A*!8)<9G3!84)(0;4!<!9(78)2F*,!3/()827;!*F*78>!08212327;!
WUV3!8(!3(1*1=!()!/)2A<)21=!@<92128<8*!.*8827;!8<G27;!/1<9*!(7!*F*783!(990))27;!<+<=!@)(A!
84*!2,*782@2*,!F*70*&

Page 61

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! 5T!

7. [*)A283!<7,!(84*)!/*)A2332(73 

:19(4(1!Y29*73*,![)*A23*3!B<A27;!\<9427*![*)A283 
P&" [)*A23*3!129*73*,!8(!3*11!<19(4(1!84<8!4<F*!<!.<)!<7,!84*!<19(4(1!23!7(8!<79211<)=!8(!@((,!

@()!9(730A/82(7!(7!84*!/)*A23*3>!4<F27;!A()*!84<7!8+(!;<A27;!A<9427*3>!+211!7**,!8(!
<//1=!@()!<!/*)A28!<7,!A038!<13(!7(82@=!84*!Y29*7327;!:084()28=!2@!84*=!4<F*!(7*!()!8+(!
A<9427*3&!67!9(732,*)27;!+4*84*)!8(!;)<78!<!/*)A28>!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!4<F*!
)*;<),!8(!84*!129*7327;!(.]*982F*3>!;02,<79*!2330*,!.=!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!<7,!
<7=!(84*)!)*1*F<78!A<88*)3&![*)A283!+211!7(8!.*!;)<78*,!8(!129*73**3!+4(!4<F*!@<21*,!8(!
,*A(738)<8*!9(A/12<79*!+284!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7I3!L(,*!(@![)<9829*&!! ! !

7.2 67!<,,282(7!8(!84*!)*?02)*A*783!(@!84*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7I3!L(,*!(@![)<9829*>!84*!
Y29*7327;!:084()28=!*`/*983!<//129<783!8(C! !  

• ,23/1<=!<,*?0<8*!7(829*3!<7,!32;73>!<,F*)82327;!84*!)*1*F<78!<;*!)*38)2982(73!!  

• /(3282(7!A<9427*3!+28427!F2*+!(@!84*!.<)!27!(),*)!@()!38<@@!8(!.*!<.1*!8(!A(728()!84*!
A<9427*3!@()!03*!.=!07,*)!<;*!()!A2303*!(@!84*!A<9427*3 

• 94<11*7;*!<7=(7*!303/*98*,!(@!.*27;!07,*)!<;*!<7,!)*@03*!<99*33 
• /)(F2,*!27@()A<82(7!1*<@1*83!<7,!J!()!4*1/O127*!70A.*)3!@()!();<723<82(73!3094!<3!
B<AL<)*!<7,!E*8G7(+A()*!Uj& 

[)2S*!B<A27;!\<9427*![*)A283!  

P&$ [)2S*!;<A27;!/)*A23*3!+211!<//*<1!8(!9421,)*7!<7,!=(07;!/*)3(73!<7,!+*2;48!+211!.*!
;2F*7!8(!9421,!/)(8*982(7!2330*3&!-4*)*@()*>!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!*`/*98!84*!
<//129<78!8(!,*A(738)<8*!84<8!84*=!<)*!3028<.1*!8(!4(1,!<!/*)A28!^2&*&!2@!84*!<//129<78!4<3!
<7=!9(7F2982(73!+4294!+(01,!A<G*!84*A!073028<.1*!8(!(/*)<8*!/)2S*!;<A27;D!<7,!84*!
3028<.2128=!(@!84*!/)*A23*3&!

P&% -4*!129*7327;!<084()28=!*`/*983!<//129<783!8(!3*8!(08!84*!8=/*3!(@!;<A27;!A<9427*3!84<8!
84*=!278*7,!8(!(@@*)!<7,!.*!<.1*!8(!,*A(738)<8*!84<8C!!

• 84*=!07,*)38<7,!84*!12A283!8(!38<G*3!<7,!/)2S*3!84<8!<)*!3*8!(08!27!)*;01<82(73 
• 84<8!84*!;<A27;!(@@*)*,!23!+28427!84*!1<+ 

P&5 -4*!B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!+*.328*!;2F*3!<,F29*!(7!8=/*3!(@!/*)A283>!9(7,282(73>!38<G*3!
<7,!/)2S*3&!e**!488/3CJJ+++&;<A.127;9(AA2332(7&;(F&0G!

Page 62

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! 5"!

U7129*73*,!'KL3!^0'KLD 
P&N U7129*73*,!@<A21=!*78*)8<27A*78!9*78)*3!^'KLI3D!+211!/*)4</3!.*!A(38!9(AA(71=!

1(9<8*,!<8!/1<9*3!3094!<3!<2)/()83!<7,!<8!A(8()+<=!3*)F29*!9*78)*3>!<7,!+211!9<8*)!@()!
@<A212*3>!27910,27;!07<99(A/<72*,!9421,)*7!<7,!=(07;!/*)3(73&!U7129*73*,!'KLI3!+211!
.*!<.1*!8(!(@@*)!(71=!9<8*;()=!M!A<9427*3!27!)*12<79*!(7!<!;<A27;!A<9427*!/*)A28&!!

P&P Z4*)*!<!/)*A23*3!,(*3!7(8!4(1,!<!/)*A23*3!129*79*!.08!+234*3!8(!/)(F2,*!;<A27;!
A<9427*3>!28!A<=!<//1=!8(!84*!129*7327;!<084()28=!@()!8423!/*)A28&!!68!34(01,!.*!7(8*,!84<8!
84*!<//129<78!A038!34(+!84<8!84*!/)*A23*3!+211!.*!+4(11=!()!A<271=!03*,!@()!A<G27;!
;<A27;!A<9427*3!<F<21<.1*!@()!03*!^e*982(7!#$QD&!:3!<!)*3018>!28!23!;*7*)<11=!7(8!
/*)A2332.1*!@()!3094!/)*A23*3!8(!9())*3/(7,!8(!<7!*782)*!34(//27;!9*78)*>!<2)/()8>!
A(8()+<=!3*)F29*!38<82(7!()!32A21<)&!-=/29<11=>!84*!A<9427*3!+(01,!.*!27!<!,*32;7<8*,>!
*791(3*,!<)*<&!

P&Q B2F*7!84<8!84*!/)*A23*3!23!12G*1=!8(!<//*<1!/<)82901<)1=!8(!9421,)*7!<7,!=(07;!/*)3(73>!
+4*7!9(732,*)27;!<//129<82(73!@()!/*)A283!+*!+211!;2F*!+*2;48!8(!A<88*)3!)*1<827;!8(!
/)(8*982(7!(@!9421,)*7!@)(A!.*27;!4<)A*,!()!*`/1(28*,!.=!;<A.127;!<7,!<)*!G**7!8(!
*730)*!84<8!38<@@!30/*)F232(7!<,*?0<8*1=!)*@1*983!84*!1*F*1!(@!)23G!8(!8423!;)(0/&!
-4*)*@()*>!+*!+211!;*7*)<11=!*`/*98!3094!)23G3!8(!.*!<,,)*33*,!84)(0;4!*@@*982F*C!

• e8<@@!30/*)F232(7!<7,!8)<2727;! 
• M*8<21*,!/1<7! 
• e(92<1!)*3/(732.2128=!/(1292*3! 
• e8<@@!.*27;!*<321=!2,*782@2<.1*! 
• L1*<)!32;7<;* 

P&R :3!/<)8!(@!<7!<//129<82(7!@()!<!0'KL>!28!23!(0)!/(129=!84<8!<!/1<7!@()!84*!0'KL!A038!.*!
30.A288*,&!

eA<11!e(92*8=!Y(88*)2*3!
P&"T :!1(88*)=!23!3A<11!2@!84*!8(8<1!F<10*!(@!829G*83!/08!(7!3<1*!27!<!327;1*!1(88*)=!23!m#T>TTT!()!

1*33!<7,!84*!<;;)*;<8*!F<10*!(@!84*!829G*83!/08!(7!3<1*!27!<!9<1*7,<)!=*<)!23!m#5T>TTT!()!
1*33&!

P&"" -(!.*!X7(7O9(AA*)92<1I!<!3(92*8=!A038!.*!*38<.1234*,!<7,!9(7,098*,C!

• @()!94<)28<.1*!/0)/(3*3> 
• @()!84*!/0)/(3*!(@!*7<.127;!/<)8292/<82(7!27>!()!30//()827;>!3/()8>!<841*8293!()!<!
90180)<1!<982F28=i!() 

Page 63

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! 5#!

• @()!<7=!(84*)!7(7O9(AA*)92<1!/0)/(3*!(84*)!84<7!84<8!(@!/)2F<8*!;<27& 

P&"# -423!129*7327;!<084()28=!+211!<,(/8!<!)23GO.<3*,!<//)(<94!8(+<),3!283!*7@()9*A*78!
)*3/(732.21282*3!@()!3A<11!3(92*8=!1(88*)2*3&!-423!<084()28=!9(732,*)3!84<8!84*!@(11(+27;!1238>!
<184(0;4!7(8!*`91032F*>!9(01,!<@@*98!84*!)23G!38<803!(@!84*!(/*)<8()C!

• e0.A2332(7!(@!1<8*!)*80)73!^)*80)73!A038!.*!30.A288*,!7(!1<8*)!84<7!84)**!A(7843!
<@8*)!84*!,<8*!(7!+4294!84*!1(88*)=!,)<+!+<3!4*1,D 

• e0.A2332(7!(@!279(A/1*8*!()!279())*98!)*80)73! 
• E)*<94*3!(@!84*!12A283!@()!3A<11!3(92*8=!1(88*)2*3 
• -4*!*12;2.2128=!(@!3(92*8=!<3!X7(7O9(AA*)92<1I!

Page 64

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! 5$!

8. ://*7,2`!"!_H*3/(732.1*!:084()282*3 

!

Y29*7327;!:084()28=!
-4*![)2792/<1!Y29*7327;!W@@29*)>![)*A23*3!Y29*7327;!!
\<794*38*)!L28=!L(07921>![W!E(`!5$#>!-(+7!d<11!K`8*732(7>!\<794*38*)!\NT!#Y:!
[)*A23*3&129*7327;uA<794*38*)&;(F&0G!!

K7F2)(7A*78<1!d*<184!
Y29*7327;!<7,!W08!(@!d(0)3!-*<A!^B<A.127;!Y29*79*3D!Y*F*1!">!-(+7!d<11!K`8*732(7>!
Y1(=,!e8)**8!\<794*38*)!\#!5ME!
W08(@4(0)3&9(A/12<79*uA<794*38*)&;(F&0G!!

B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)![(129*!
B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)![(129*!Y29*7327;![<)87*)342/!-*<A!Y*F*1!">!-(+7!d<11!K`8*732(7>!
Y1(=,!e8)**8!\<794*38*)!\#!5ME!
9*78)<1129*7327;u;A/&/(129*&0G!!

-4*!@2)*!<7,!)*390*!<084()28=!
V()84!\<794*38*)!'2)*!<7,!H*390*!e*)F29*!^2@!84*!/)*A23*3!4<F*!<!/(389(,*!+28427!84*!
)<7;*3!\"O\%>!\QO\R>!\""O\"$>!\"Q>!\#5D!
!
-4*!'2)*!e<@*8=!\<7<;*)>!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)!'2)*!n!H*390*!e*)F29*!!
\<794*38*)!L*78)<1!'2)*!e8<82(7>!-4(A/3(7!e8)**8>!\<794*38*)!\%!5'[!
7()84A<7129uA<794*38*)@2)*&;(F&0G!
!
e(084!\<794*38*)!'2)*!<7,!H*390*!e*)F29*!^2@!84*!/)*A23*3!4<F*!<!/(389(,*!+28427!84*!
)<7;*3!\"%O\"N>!\"RO\#$>!\%T>!\RTD!
!
-4*!'2)*!e<@*8=!\<7<;*)>!B)*<8*)!\<794*38*)!'2)*!n!H*390*!e*)F29*!!
Z28427;8(7!L*78)<1!'2)*!e8<82(7>!Z21A31(+!H(<,>!Z28427;8(7>!\<794*38*)!\#T!%:Z!
3(084A<7129uA<794*38*)@2)*&;(F&0G!!
!

Page 65

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! 5%!

e<@*;0<),27;!E(<),!
\<794*38*)!e<@*;0<),27;!L421,)*7!E(<),>!\<794*38*)!L28=!L(07921>!Y*F*1!%>!-(+7!d<11!
K`8*732(7>![&W&!E(`!5$#>!\<794*38*)>!\NT!#Y:!
A39.uA<794*38*)&;(F&0G!

d\!H*F*70*!n!L038(A3!
V<82(7<1!H*;238)<82(7!U728>![()8901123!d(03*>!#"!67,2<!e8)**8>!B1<3;(+!G2 4PZ!!
7)0.*8827;n;<A27;u4A)9&;32&;(F&0G!

[1<7727;!
\<794*38*)!Y(9<1![1<7727;!:084()28=!^[)*A23*3!Y29*79*3D>![W!E(`!%$N>!-(+7!d<11!
K`8*732(7>!\<794*38*)!\NT!$Vl!
/1<7727;uA<794*38*)&;(F&0G!!

B<A.127;!L(AA2332(7!
k298()2<!e?0<)*!d(03*!
k298()2<!e?0<)*>!E2)A27;4<A>!E#!%E[!
27@(u;<A.127;9(AA2332(7&;(F&0G!

 
 
 
 
 

://129<82(73!A038!.*!30.A288*,!8(C!
[)*A23*3!Y29*7327;>!\<794*38*)!L28=!L(07921>![W!E(`!5$#>!-(+7!d<11!K`8*732(7>!
\<794*38*)!\NT!#Y:!

 
 

Page 66

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! 55!

R& ://*7,2`!#!_!-*A/1<8*!@()!,<8<!9(11*982(7!

-4*!,<8<!9(11*982(7!8*A/1<8*!23!<F<21<.1*!<3!<7!K`9*1!@21*!0/(7!)*?0*38!@)(A!84*!Y29*7327;!U728&!
-4*!39)**734(83!.*1(+!,*A(738)<8*!84*!27@()A<82(7!8(!.*!9(11*98*,&!

!
!

!
!

!  
Gambling Licence 

Data Collection Template.xls

Page 67

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! 5N!

"T& ://*7,2`!$!O!B1(33<)=!

 
Term  Description  

ATM  Auto teller machine or cash machine.  
Betting  Betting is defined as making or accepting a bet on the outcome of a race, competition or other event 

or process or on the outcome of anything occurring or not occurring or on whether anything is or is 
not true. It is irrelevant if the event has already happened or not and likewise whether one person 
knows the outcome or not. (Spread betting is not included within this definition).  

Betting Machines / Bet 
Receipt Terminal  

Betting machines can be described as automated betting terminals where people can place bets on 
sporting events removing the need to queue up and place a bet over the counter.  

Bingo  There are essentially two types of bingo: cash bingo, where the stakes paid make up the cash prizes 
that can be won and prize bingo, where various forms of prizes can be won, not directly related to the 
stakes paid.  

Book  Running a 'book' is the act of quoting odds and accepting bets on an event. Hence the term 
'Bookmaker'.  

Casino games  A game of chance, which is not equal chance gaming. Casino games includes Roulette and black 
jack etc.  

Chip  Casinos in the UK require you to use chips to denote money. They are usually purchased and 
exchanged at a cashier's booth.  

Coin pusher or penny 
falls machine  

A machine of the kind which is neither a money prize machine nor a non-money prize machine  

Crane grab machine  A non-money prize machine in respect of which every prize which can be won consists of an individual 
physical object (such as a stuffed toy) won by a person’s success in manipulating a device forming 
part of the machine so as to separate, and keep separate, one or more physical objects from a group 
of such objects.  

Default condition  These are prescribed in regulations and will be attached to all classes of premises licence, unless 
excluded by the Authority.  

Equal Chance Gaming  Gaming which does not involve playing or staking against a bank.  
Fixed odds betting  If a gambler is able to establish what the return on a bet will be when it is placed, (and the activity is 

not 'gaming' see below), then it is likely to be betting at fixed odds.  
Fixed Odds betting 
terminals (FOBTs)  

FOBTs are a type of gaming machine which generally appear in licensed bookmakers. FOBTs have 
‘touch-screen’ displays and look similar to quiz machines familiar in pubs and clubs. They normally 
offer a number of games, roulette being the most popular.  

Gaming  Gaming can be defined as 'the playing of a game of chance for winnings in money or monies worth, 
whether any person playing the game is at risk of losing any money or monies worth or not'.  

Gaming Machine  Any type of machine allowing any sort of gambling activity including betting on virtual events but not 
including home computers even though users can access online gaming websites.  

Licensing Objectives  The licensing objectives are three principal goals which form the basis of the Act. Stakeholders who 
have an interest in the Act need to try and promote these objectives. The licensing objectives are:  
• Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or 
disorder or being used to support crime.  
• Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way.  
• Protecting children and other vulnerable people from being harmed or exploited by gambling.  

Lottery  A lottery generally refers to schemes under which prizes are distributed by chance among entrants 
who have given some form of value for their chance to take part. A lottery is defined as either a simple 
lottery or a complex lottery. A simple lottery is one where people are required to pay to participate and 
one or more prizes are allocated to one or more members of a class and the prizes are allocated by 
a process which relies wholly on chance. A complex lottery is where people are required to pay to 
participate and one or more members of a class and the prizes are allocated by a series of processes 
where the first of those processes relies wholly on chance. Prize means money, articles or services 
provided by the members of the class among whom the prize is allocated. (It should be noted that the 
National Lottery is not included in this definition of lottery and is regulated by the National Lottery 
Commission).  

Money prize machine  A machine in respect of which every prize which can be won as a result of using the machine is a 
money prize.  

Page 68

Item 5Appendix 1,



!

! 5P!

Term  Description  

Non-money prize 
machine  

A machine in respect of which every prize which can be won as a result of using the machine is a 
non-money prize. The winner of the prize is determined by:  
(i) the position in which the coin or token comes to rest after it has been inserted into the machine, 
together with the position of other coins or tokens which have previously been inserted into the 
machine to pay a charge for use, or  
(ii) if the insertion of a single coin to pay the charge for use enables the person using the machine to 
release one or more tokens within the machine, the position in which such tokens come to rest after 
being released, together with the position of other tokens which have previously been so released.  

Odds  The ratio to which a bet will be paid if the bet wins, e.g. 3-1 means for every £1 bet, a person would 
receive £3 of winnings.  

Off-course betting 
operator  

Off-course betting operators may, in addition to premises away from the track, operate self-contained 
betting premises within a track premises. Such self-contained premises will provide facilities for 
betting on both events taking place at the track (on-course betting), as well as other sporting events 
taking place away from the track (off-course betting). In essence such premises operate like a 
traditional high street bookmakers. They will however only normally operate on race days.  

On-course betting 
operator  

The on-course betting operator is one who comes onto on a track, temporarily, while races are taking 
place, and operates at the track side. On-course betting operators tend to offer betting only on the 
events taking place on the track that day (on-course betting).  

Pool Betting  For the purposes of the Gambling Act, pool betting is made on terms that all or part of the winnings:  
1) Shall be determined by reference to the aggregate of the stakes paid or agreed to be paid by the 
people betting  
2) Shall be divided among the winners or  
3) Shall or may be something other than money. For the purposes of the Gambling Act, pool betting 
is horse-race pool betting if it relates to horse-racing in Britain.  

Regulations or 
Statutory instruments  

Regulations are a form of law, often referred to as delegated or secondary legislation. They have the 
same binding legal effect as Acts and usually state rules that apply generally, rather than to specific 
people or things. However, regulations are not made by Parliament. Rather, they are made by people 
or bodies to whom Parliament has delegated the authority to make them, such as a minister or an 
administrative agency.  

Representations  In the context of the Gambling Act representations are either positive statements of support or 
negative objections which are made in relation to a licensing application. Representations must be 
made in time, e.g. during a designated notice period.  

Responsible authority 
(authorities)  

Responsible authorities (RAs) are agencies which have been appointed by the Gambling Act or 
regulations to fulfil a designated role during the licensing process. RAs must be sent copies  
of all licensing applications and have the power to make representations about such  
applications.  RAs also have the power to ask for licences to be reviewed. 

Skill machine / Skill 
with prizes machine  

The Act does not cover machines that give prizes as a result of the application of pure skill by players. 
A skill with prizes machine is one on which the winning of a prize is determined only by the player’s 
skill – any element of chance imparted by the action of the machine would cause it to be a gaming 
machine. An example of a skill game would be trivia game machines, popular in pubs and clubs, 
which require the player to answer general knowledge questions to win cash prizes.  
 

Spread betting  A form of investing which is more akin to betting, and can be applied either to sporting events or to 
the financial markets. Spread betting is regulated by the Financial Services Authority.  

Stake  The amount pledged when taking part in gambling activity as either a bet, or deposit to the bank or 
house where the house could be a gaming machine.  

Statement of principles 
document  

A document prepared by the Authority which outlines the areas that applicants need to consider 
before applying for gaming permits.  

Table gaming  Card games played in casinos.  
Tote  "Tote" is short for Totaliser, a system introduced to Britain in 1929 to offer pool betting on racecourses.  
Track  Tracks are sites (including horse tracks and dog tracks and stadia) where races or other sporting 

events take place 
 

Page 69

Item 5Appendix 1,



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Revised Gambling Policy 2022 - 2025
	Manchester GA2005 Statement of PrinciplesDraft (Final)


